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October24,2Q14

Comptroller
304 South Indiana Avenue
Kankakee, Illinois 60901

(S15) 933 0491 Ftx (8r5) 936-7329

Honorable Mayor, City Aldermen, and Citizens of the City of Kankakee:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Kankakee, Illinois (City) for the

fiscalyeaiendedApril 30,ZOl4 isherebyiuUmitted. Responsibilityforboththeaccuracyofthedataand
the cornpletenes urd fui-"., of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with City of Kankakee

management. To the best of the Comptroller's knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all

mateiial resp€cts and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results

of operations of atl the govemmental activities, business-type activities, component units' and funds of

tne bity of Kankakee. lJt disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the

City's irnancial activities have been included. The financial statements presented here are in conformity

witi accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and aud,ited in-

accordance wiiir 
^auditing 

sLraaras geneially accepted in the United States of America by a firm of

licensed certified public accountants.

This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with management's discussion and analysis

(MD&A) to obtain the most complete usr"rr-"nt of the City's current financial status and its future

outlook.

The Reporting Entity and its Services

This report includes all of the funds for the City of Kankakee (the primary government), as well as its two

compo;ent units, the Kankakee Public Library and Special Service Area #1 (SSA)' Component units are

autonomous entities for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The City of Kankakee was incorporated in 1865 and operates as a home rule municipality pursuant to 
^the

1970 Illinois Constitution. The City is governed by an-elected mayor and a City Council comprised of 14

aldermen. Two aldermen are elected from each of the City's seven wards for four-year terms. Mayoral

elections are held every four years.

The city provides a full range of public services, including public safety (police, fire, ambulance, and

code enfoicement), street uria puUti" infrastructure maintenance, sanitation, sanitary sewer collection,

storm drainage, health and social services, culture and recreation, municipat planning and zoning, and

general admtistrative services. Wastewater treatment service is provided by the Kankakee River

foetropolitan Agency (KRMA), which is jointly owned and operated by the lity and the neighboring

Villages of Brailey,'Bourbonnais, and Aroma Park. Water service is provided by Aqua Illinois, Inc', a

private utility.

The city of Kankakee is located in Kankakee county, approximately 60 miles south of chicago in the

northeaitem section of the State of Illinois. The City has extended its boundaries in a southerly direction

through annexation. Since 1990, the area of the City has grown from 10'2- square miles to the current

14.5 lquare miles, an increase of 42%o in land area. With a current population of 27,537 (2010 U'S'

Census), the City aQts as the industrial and service center for the Kankakee metropolitan area, operates at



the center ofa metropolitan populace of approximately 75,000 people, and is the county seat of Kankakee
County, which has a population of I 1 3,5 5 I people.

The Kankakee River

One of the City's greatest assets from an economic and recreational standpoint is the Kankakee River,
which flows in a northwesterly direction through the middle of the City. At the point where it flows
through the City, the river is about one quarter of a mile wide. There are several City parks along the
river's edge that provide opportunities for public fishing and boating activities. The Kankakee River
State Park, which covers an area of about 4,000 acres, is located about seven miles northwest ofthe City.
The park attracts thousands of tourists to the area annually.

The Kankakee River serves as the source for the metropolitan region's drinking water supplied by Aqua
Illinois, lnc., a private utility. The river has a dam close to the downtown area of the City. The water
behind the dam powers a City owned low-head hydroelectric plant. The plant generates electricity that is
used for the operation of the KRMA wastewater treatment plant.

Transportation

The City is situated in the center of Kankakee County, which is contiguous to Will County on its northem
border. One ofthe nation's major north-south routes, I-57, passes along the eastern side ofthe City. This
interstate highway provides access to the heart of the City of Chicago in approximately one hour driving
time. The City of Kankakee is about 30 miles south of I-80, a major national east-west highway
connecting the east and west coasts ofthe nation.

The City's public road transportation needs are met by Greyhound bus line, as well as the region's
metropolitan bus service. Railroads serving the County include Illinois Central Gulf (owned by Canadian

National Railroad), Conrail (owned by Norfolk Southern), and Amtrak. The Kankakee Valley Airport,
located two miles south of the City's downtown area, has hangar space for 110 aircraft. The airport is
utilized by both general aviation aircraft and corporate planes.

Education

Kankakee School District No. 1l I provides educational services for pre-kindergarten through grade 12

with enrollment of approximately 5,200 students. The four parochial schools serving the Kankakee area
(Aquinas Catholic Academy, Bishop McNamara Catholic High School, Grace Christian Academy, and

Kankakee Trinity Academy) have an approximate total enrollment of 1,000 students. Higher education is

available through Olivet Nazarene University, a four-year liberal arts college, in Bourbonnais, and

Governor's State University, located in University Park, which is located about ten miles north of the
county line in Will County. Olivet Nazarene University has increased its enrollment to the current level
of approximately 4,800, which includes 3,335 undergraduates. The number of residential students has

grown substantially from 1,100 in 1990 to 2,212in 2014. The number of graduate level students in20l4
is approximately 1,900. Two-year undergraduate education is offered at Kankakee Community College,

located on a 160 acre campus in Kankakee. There are 4,500 students currently enrolled at the community
college. The college reports that it has a total of 18,900 students taking classes each year.



Internal Control Objectives and Inherent Limitations

The City of Kankakee management is responsible for establishing, implementing and maintaining a

framework of internal controls designed to ensure that City assets are protected from loss, theft or misuse,

and to ensure that sufficiently reliable information is compiled to provide for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of controls should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived, the City of Kankakee's internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather

than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.

The Comptroller's Office is responsible for providing all centralized City financial services, including
financial accounting, reporting, budgeting, payroll, collections, accounts payable, cash and investment

management, and debt management. The Comptroller, who is appointed by the Mayor to supervise the

deparhlent's operations, asserts that, to the best of her knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

Budget Process

The City of Kankakee adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, Band Fund, IMRF Fund, SSA#2

Fund, SSA#3 Fund, and SSA#5 Fund. For the other special revenue funds, legally authorized non-

appropriated budgets are used to control expenditures on a project or designated purpose basis, and are

carried forward each year until the project is completed or the designated purpose has concluded. No
legally adopted budgets are prepared for the capital projects and debt service funds. Expenditures for
capitat proj ect funds are controlled on a project basis. Expenditures for debt service funds are controlled
through general obligation bonds' indenture provisions. Additional information related to the City's
budget process can be found on page 78 ofthis report.

Long-term Financial Planning

The City endorses the concept that those who benefit from the use of the City's capital assets should pay a

proportionate share of the costs of those assets. The City has financed a host of capital projects, over

$54.0 million, over the past 20 years through the issuance ofbonds. This has enabled the City to amortize

the costs of the projects, at least to a degree, over the life of the constructed assets. The Capital Projects

Fund, which provides the financing for maj or capital improvements over a multi-year basis, has been a

useful tool to the City in planning for the replacement and enhancement of its inftastructure assets.

City Government Operations and X'inances

The Cify of Kankakee continues to find ways to operate in a cost-effective manner while not diminishing
the quatity of the services delivered. In response to the national economic downturn beginning in 2008,

the City Administration responded and has continued to in recent years. Beginning in May 2010, the

Public Works Department moved from the General Fund to the Environmental Services Utility to more

properly match the Public Works environmental control of storm water management and solid waste

handling responsibilities with the related utility revenues. The City's General Fund did conhibute $0.3

million to the Sewer Fund in fiscal year 2014 to pay for those Public Works costs not directly attributable

to either environmental control or solid waste handling.

City Administration has further responded by reducing its General Fund payroll costs over the years. The

City has negotiated with its various organized labor groups to hetp with cost containment and the

additional financial constraints through both non-wage cost reductions and direct wage concessions. Over

III



the past five years, the City of Kankakee has decreased the workforce by over 12o/o from 262 employees

in2009 to 230 employees in 2014.

As a result of this restructuring of the past five years, the City has adopted fiscally responsible budgets.

The fiscal year 2014 General Fund budget projected a small surplus of $0.25 million and finished with a

positive fund balance increase of S0.8 million. The current fiscal year 2015 also projects the City of
Kankakee will increase this fund balance.

In fiscal year 2000, the City entered into direct and indirect sales tax sharing agreements with various

firms. These agreements have added a substantial amount of additional sales tax revenue to the City's
General Fund. This tax sharing program is based on a company's willingness to site a purchasing and/or

sales approval office within the boundaries of the City. The agreements provide that the City will share

the l%o municipal portion of the sales ta,xes that are generated on the transactions of the partnering

companies as an economic development incentive.

Legal action was filed by the Regional Transportation Authority, Cook County and the City of Chicago

contesting these agreements and whether the plaintiffs have any right to the sales tax proceeds. The City
of Kankakee strongly defended the lawsuits and showed that there has been almost no shifting of the sales

tax from the jurisdiction of the plaintiffs. The City believed that the contracts it established had not
shifted the point of sale from other Illinois locations and that tle City agreements are legally valid.

On November 21,2013, the Illinois Supreme Court, in the case entitled Hartney Fuel Oil v. Brian Hamer,

Director of the lllinois Department of Revenue (IDOR), considered the issue of the proper siting of a
retail sales business for purposes of determining which municipatity should be entitled to claim the Iocal

share of the sales t&x generated by that particular business. As part of its decision, the Supreme Court
declared tax sharing agreements, such as the ones in place in the City of Kankakee, were valid under the

previous Illinois Administrative Rules and Regulations (pre-November 21, 2013). All of the City's
agreements were executed prior to that date. Going forward (post-November 21, 2013), the Court
declared the Administrative Rules and Regulations need to change in order to be consistent with the

statute upon which they were based. IDOR issued emergency rules that govem the siting issue.

Permanent rules will be forthcoming. The emergency rules now in place have helped retail sale

businesses have greater assurance that its sales tax will be allocated to the proper site. The pending

litigation continues and will hopefully be soon settled.

The City completed renovations to the former Library Building in July 2008, and that building now acts

as the City Administration Building (Mayor, Clerk, Legal, Personnel, Comptroller, and Adjudication).
The old City Hall was also renovated, and opened in April 2009 as the Public Safety Center. It houses the

Police Department and the Fire Department Administration Division. City Council meetings are

conducted in the Council Chambers located on the second floor ofthe Public Safety Center.

Major Initiatives and Economic Outlook

Employment opportunities in the City are diverse. On the private side, several companies in the

Kankakee metropolitan area are manufacturing divisions of Fortune 500 companies making a variety of
products. Many of these industries compete in national and international markets. Major regional

employers include Armstrong World Industries, BASF Corporation, K-Mart and Sears Distribution
Centers, Wal-Mart, Bunge, CSL Behring, Dow International, CIGNA Insurance Claims Processing

Center, Peddinghaus Industries, Valspar, Baker and Taylor, Presence St. Mary's Hospital, Super K-Mart,
Riverside Medical Center and Shapiro Developmental Center.
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Interstate Exit #308 Development
In 2003, the City initiated redevelopment at Exit 308 on the southern border of the City. The project
initially brought a Hilton Garden lnn hotel/convention center complex which was completed late summer

of 2004. A Gas City service station, which includes Dunkin Donuts and Subway, opened in December

2005. A Taco Bell/Kentucky Fried Chicken Restaurant opened in late 2007, and a Wal-Mart Super

Center opened for business in April 2008. During fiscal 2009, a Dollar Tree Store, the El Mexicano
Restaurant, Best Mattress Store, and the Cash Store commenced operations in a retail outlet complex
located between the hotel and the Wal-Mart. Aldi constructed a new store just outside this project area,

which opened in November 2009. In 2013, a new Love's Truck Stop and Arby's opened on the east side

ofthis development area. There is interest and optimism that this project will continue to act as an anchor

for additional commercial and residential growth in south Kankakee.

Other significant economic events during the past few years include the following:

Citv of Kankakee Economic lmprovements

o continued investments in infrastructure improvements throughout the City including street

overlays, sidewalks, curbs, and sewers of over $54.0 million including the development of
the new park as part of a neighborhood stabilization plan

r redevelopment of Meadowview Shopping Center by new developer including O'Reilly Auto
Parts, City Trends, Shelby's Cafe, Embrace Consignment and Riverside Audiology totaling
$4.5 million and a $1.8 million build out of a new Planet Fitness

development of the K4 Wind Farm LLC electrical substation-$4.0 million

expansion of silos and SBS at IKO Midwest Roofing-$3.6 million

addition at Kankakee Ring Container which added 9 new full-time job-$3.5 million

completion of a new Save-a-lot grocery store in downtown Kankakee creating 25 new full-
time jobs-$2.0 million

. major redevelopmenVsite reconstruction, Kankakee Gas and Wash LLC, bordering
downtown Kankakee adding 15 full-time jobs-$1.8 million

development of Murphy Oil gas station by the Walmart creating l0 jobs-$1.7 million

the second expansion of J. Edwards Brush adding more than 20 jobs-$I.0 million

expansion of Westwood Oaks Senior Living facility-$2.4 million

expansion of the Riverside Medical Center facilities for new ICU unit, and catheterization

lab-$2.0 million

r completion of the Riverside Mental Health Transition facility-$0.6 million



relocation of the Heartland Harvest manufacturing facility to an empty building in the
Eastgate Industrial Park

purchase of the empty American Spring Wire facility located in the Eastgate Industrial Park
by Peddinghaus Industries for future expansion

Future Citv of Kankakee economic improvements

West Downtown Redevelopment area, created by the Lakota Group, anchored by Presence

St. Mary's Hospital to the north, the Kankakee River to the west and River Street to the south

> City was awarded a $2.2 million Federal Emergency Management Agency grant to
acquire and demolish 22 properties on River Street to create a River Walk Bike Path

along the Kankakee River

> the development of the Mercy Independent Living Center with Presence St. Mary's
Clinic will be completed in late 2015 and was awarded $15 million in tax credits by
Illinois Housing Development Authority

The National Guard Training and Maintenance facility moving to the Greater Kankakee
Airport with completion targeted at the end 2015-$52.0 million

The K-Mart property at Exit 312 was sold with plans for redevelopment along with the Exit
3 12 interchange redesign currently in Phase 1 engineering with Phase 2 funded

BASF, Millipore, and Sun Chemical Corporations have planned expansions to be completed
in early 2015

In summary, from January of 2012 through the end of October 2074,more than $19,632,846 in
capital investment has been made in the City of Kankakee resulting in the retention of 354 jobs as

well as adding 148 new full time positions. The City's infrastructure, location and an established

home to a large percentage of the industry within Kankakee County places it in an excellent
position to prosper as the economy continues to improve and become stronger.

Independent Audit

Itlinois Compiled Statutes require an annual audit of the City's books of account, financial records, and

transactions by an independent certified public accountant. The Certified Public Accounting firm of
Groskreutz Schmidt Abraham Eshleman & Gerretse performed the audit of the records of the City for the
fiscal year ending April 30,2014. Their report is included herein.

As a recipient of various federal and state financial assistance programs, the City of Kankakee is also

required to have an annual audit of certain major federal grant programs performed under the OMB Circular
4-133. This audit contains information conceming whether grant activity is presented fairly in the general

purpose financial statements, whether internal control is sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the
grant funds are managed properly, and whether material grant compliance requirements have been met. The

Federal Single Audit is also included in this report.



Awards

The Govemment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Kankakee, Illinois for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended April 30,2013. This was the
seventeenth consecutive year that the City of Kankakee has achieved this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a govemment must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisff both generally accepted

accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS MEMBERS OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT ATIDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Kankakee, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financiat statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type

activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate

remaining fund information of the City of Kankakee, Illinois (the City), as of and for the year ended April

30,2Ol4: and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic

financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Slatemenls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

u"co.dun.. with aciounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentaiion of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

errot,

Auditor's Responsibilily

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and

the standards applicable to financial audits containe d in Government Auditing Standords, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation

and fair presentation ofthe financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circJmstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accouflting estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufEcient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinions.
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Phone: (815) 933-7781
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate

discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City, as of April 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable,

cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Olher Matters

Re quired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis and the required supplemental information listed in the table of contents be

presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic

financial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be

an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate

operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information

and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the timited procedures

do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund
financial statements, supplemental schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-ProJit
Organizations, and is also not a required part ofthe basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, the supplemental schedules, and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepaxe the basic financial statements.

Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and

individual fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in

all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole'

.)



The prior year comparative information has been derived from the City's 2013 financial statements and,

in our prior year report dated November 8,2013, we expressed unmodified opinions on the respective

financial statements of the govemmental activities, business-type activities, the aggegate discretely
presented component units, each maj or fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any

assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Audiling Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22,

2014, on our consideration of the City's intemal control over frnancial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope ofour testing of intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Goyernment Auditing Standards in considering the City's intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

q*ofy,+sl*d+, $\r*uht-, v-rkfuw- f Wiru
Kankakee, IIIinois
October 22,2014
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

APRIL 3O,2OI4

The City of Kankakee's (City) is pleased to present its Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) related
to the City's financial information for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2014. The MD&A serves as an introduction
to the City's basic financial statements, and is desigred to: I ) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial
issues, 2) provide an overview of the City's financial activity, 3) identifz changes in the City's financial position
(its ability to address subsequent years' challenges),4) identiff any material deviations from the financial plan
(the approved budget), and 5) identiff individual fund issues or concerns.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

r The assets and deferred outflows of resources ofthe City exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows ofresources by $37 million (net position) at the end ofthe fiscal year 2014.

r The City's total net position increased by $3.2 million. The governmental net position increased

by $6.5 million and the business-type net position decreased by $3.3 million.

o The City's govemmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $9.8 million.
Approximately 28% of this amount, $2.8 million is available for spending at the City's discretion
(unassigned fund balance).

o The City's total bonded debt remained roughly flat. The govemmental total bonded debt

decreased by $7.3 million and the business-type total bonded debt increased by $5.7 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements. The City of Kankakee's
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) govemment-wide financial statements,2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required supplementary

information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

GOYERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

The govemment-wide financial statements in Table l, or page 15, are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City's finances, in a manner that is congruent to private-sector business. The focus of the
Statement of Net Position (the Unrestricted Net Position) is designed to be similar to the bottom line results for
the City and its governmental and business-type activities. This statement combines and consolidates
govemmental funds'current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long
term obligations using the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.

The Statement of Activities on pages 16-17 is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities
(including governmental and business-type), which are supported by the government's general taxes and other
resources. This is intended to summarize and simptiS, the user's analysis of the cost of various govemmental

services. Also, these statements include similar financial information for the various business-type activities and

component units.



The govemment-wide financial statements are a consolidation of all of the City's funds with the exclusion of
financial information related to the fiduciary funds. The govemment-wide financial statements are found on
pages 15-17. The business-type financial statements are found on pages 22-26.

The govemmental activities reflect the City's basic services, including public safety (police, fire, and code
enforcement), hansportation, general administrative services, and culture and recreation. The business-type
activities reflect private sector-type operations of the City which include environmental services (storm water

management and sewer collection and treatment), solid waste (trash) collection services and public works.

The City also includes financial information for two separate legal entities in its report, the City's Public Library
and its Special Service Area #1. Although legally separate, these "component units" are important because the
City is financially accountable for them. Financial information for these component units is reported separately in
this report from the financial information presented for the primary govemment itself.

GOVERNMENTAL FT]ND FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated

for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All the funds of the City can be

divided into three categories: govemmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds
The focus of govemmental funds financial statements is on near-term financial resource inflows and outflows
(sources and uses), on balances of the City's financial resources available at the end ofthe fiscal year, and on the
City's budgeting compliance associated with the financial sources and uses. The financial statements for the
govemmental funds are presented for a second time, but in a different format. This second presentation of the

financial statements by funds provides a comparison of the fund statements to the govemment-wide financial
statements so a reader may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financial
decisions. Both the Govemmental Funds Balance Sheet on page 18 and the Governmental Funds Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances on page 20 provide reconciliations on pages 19 and2l to
facilitate comparisons between the amounts reported in govemmental funds to the arnounts reported as

governmental activities.

The City maintained 23 individuat govemmental funds during fiscal 2014, and two additional govemmental funds

were reported on as component units. Information for the City's major governmental funds: Ceneral Fund and

Capital Proj ects Fund is presented separately in the Govemmental Fund Balance Sheet on page 18 and in the

Govemmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances on page 20. Financial
information for the other 21 govemmental funds is combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the form of
combining statements in the Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Supplemental Schedules

section which begins on page 86 of this report.

Proprietary Funds
The proprietary funds are accounted for as business-type activities. The basic proprietary fund financial
statements can be found on pages 22-26 of this report. Those financial statements do not change (and therefore,

are not redisplayed) as fund financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the govemment. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the City's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 and28.



Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required

supplementary information conceming the budgetary comparison to actual for the General Fund, as well as the
City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and OPEB benefits to its employees. Required

supplementary information can be found on pages 77-85 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is critical to a complete understanding of the data provided in the
govemment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 32-

76 ofthis report.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The City of Kankakee's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded the liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources for the total primary govemment by $37 million at April 30,2014. The largest portion of the City's net
position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment)
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's
investrnent in its capital assets is reported net ofrelated debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay

this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to eliminate
these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City's net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on

how they may be used and are thereby restricted.

The following table presents a condensed, comparative Statement of Net Position:
Table 1: Statement of Net Position as of April 30,2014 and 2013 (in millions)

Assets
Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Oumows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred

Outflows of Resources

Liabiliti6s
Longterm Debt Outstanding

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferrod lnflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred
lnflows of Resources

Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

2014 2013 2014 2013

$34.8 $34.2 $7.7 $7.9

84.0 85.0 28.4 29.2

1 18,8 119.2 36.1 37 .1

$0.7 $0.6 $0.1 $0.1

1 19.5 119.8 36.2 37.2

76.6
7.7

84.3

't7 .6

83.s 15.3 13.6

8.1 1.5 0.9

91 .6 16.8 14.5

17.1 0.0 0.0

Total Primary
Government

?o14 2013

$42.5 $42.1
112.4 114.2

154.9 156.3

s0.8 $0.7

155.7 ',157.0

9'1.9 97.'l

9.2 9.0

101,1 106.1

17.6 17 .',|

101.9 108.7 16.8 14.5 118.7 123.?

Net investrnent in capital assets 44.7 49.0 20.1 2O.9 64.8 69.9

Restricted 5.9 6.3 2.7 1-7 8.6 8.0

unrestricted (33.0) u4.2\ (3.4) 0.1 (36.4) U4.1\
Total Net Position $lZG $111 $19-4 $22-Z $373 $33-g

(Note: There may be some slight differences in totals due to rounding)

For more detailed information, see the Statement of Net Position on page 15.



Governmental Activities - Statemenl of Net Position highlights
The governmental activities columns present a consolidated view of all of the City's governmental funds. Net
position from govemmental activities increased $6.5 million (59% to FY'14 balance of $17.6 million), total assets

and deferred outflows of resources decreasing $0.3 million and total liabilities decreasing $7.3 million, as a result

of the following major shifts in assets and liabilities:

r cash increased $ 2.0 million (243% to FY'14 balance of $10.3 million)
r depreciable assets decreased $ I .5 million (2%) as a result of the $ 1 .7 million charge for normal

depreciation
. long-term liabilities due in more than one year decreased $6.7 million (8.7% to FY'14 balance of $70.0

million); this includes the normal amortization of existing debt and increases in other long-term liabilities
. accounts payable decreased $0.7 million as a result ofregular City operations

Business-Type Aaivities - Slatement of Net Position Highligh*
The business-type activities column presents financial information for the Environmental Service Utility (ESU, a

major fund) and the Motor Vehicle Parking Lot (non-major fund). As the non-major fund represents less than

10% of the total business-type fund balance, only changes to the major fund are highlighted in the following
analysis.

Total net position for the business-type activities decreased $3.3 million (15.6% to FY'14 balance of $17.8

million), with total assets decreasing by $1.2 million (3.4% to FY'14 balance of $36.1 million) and total liabilities
increasing by $ 2.1 million (l3.9Yoro FY'14 balance of $16.9 mitlion). The following major shifts in the Utility
fund assets and liabilities included:

total cash increased by $1.8 million (85.7%to FY'14 balance of $3.9 million) as ESU continued strong

revenues due to increased demand from the industrial customers and received bond proceeds

receivabf es from joint ventures and other governments decreased $4. 1 million (99.4% to FY' 14 balance

of $0.02 million) as Kankakee River Metro Agency (KRMA, the waste processing agency for the metro

region) paid in fult the line-of-credit which the ESU had previously acted as a conduit to provide interim
financing for repairs and improvements to the treatment plant after an accidental explosion at the agency

in December 20 10 severely damaged the treatment plant
o long-term liabilities for FY'14 increased by $2.1 million (13.9%to FY'14 balance of $16.9 million) due

to the issuance of taxable sewer revenue bonds.

Component Units - Statement of Net Position Highlights
The City includes two separate legal entities in its report, the Kankakee Public Library and the Special Service

Area No. 1 (SSA #1). Although legally separate, these "component units" are important because the Ciry is

financially accountable for them. One component unit, the Kankakee Public Library, comprises nearly 89% of
the total assets for the combined component units. There were no significant financial changes in the component
units this fiscal year.

STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES

The Statement of Activities presents information that indicates how the City's net position changed during the

fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change

occurs, regardless ofthe timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement

for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave). The following Statement of Activities table compares the revenues and expenses of the

current and most recent fiscal years for the City's governmental and business activities, and the resulting changes

in net position:

Table 2: Statement of Activities for the X'iscal Years Ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 (in millions)
1



Table 2: Statement of Activities for the Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2014 and 2013 (in millions)

Business-type Total Primary

Activities Government Activities

Governmental

Activities

20r3

$ 2.1

0.3

a,a

13.9

18. s

4.1

3.6

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.0

46.3

17 .1

2.6

1.9

0.1

12.9

2.6

0.0

45.0

1.3

0.1

Chanqe

$ (0.3)

(0.3)

(0.2)

o.7

(2.0)

(0.1)

0.3

(0.1)

0.0

0.6

0.0

(.4\

0.0

0.5

(0.2)

(0.4)

(0.1)

(2.11

(0.3)

0.0
(2.6)

1.3

3.8

Chanqe

$ 2.3

(0.1)

1.8

4.1

0.8

1.1

2.8

(3.8)

2013

$ 14.7

0.3

3.2

13.9

18.5

4.1

3.6

0.1

0.1

0.5

(0.1)

58.9

7.8

17 .1

2.6

1.9

0.1

12.9

3.0

't4.1

59.5

(0.6)

0.0

Chanoe

$ 1.9

(0 3)

(0.2)

o.7

(2.0)

(0.1)

0.3

(0. 1)

0.0

0.5

1.8

2.5

0.0

0.5

(0.2)

(0.4)

(0.1)

(2.1)

(0.1)

0.8

(1.6)

4.1

0.0

l---4:1

Program Revenues

Charges for service

Capital grants/

contributions

Operating granty

contributions

General Revenueg

Property taxes

Sales taxes

Utility taxes

Other iaxes

lntergovernmental

lnvestment income

Other

Equity interest in

joint venture

Total Revenues

Program Exp€nses

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Community

developmenl

Culture and

recreation

Economic

development

lnterest and

fiscalcharges

Proprietary fund

expenses

Total Expenses

Changes in Net

Position before

Transfers

Transfers

Total Changss in

Net Position

?.014

$ 1.8

0.0

3.0

14.6

16.5

4.0

3.9

0.0

0.1

1.0

0.0

44.9

7.8

l/.o

2.4

1.5

0.0

10.8

2.?

0.0

42.3

2.6

3.9

?014

$ 14.8

0.0

1.7

16.5

0.7

14.9
'15.6

0.9

(3.9)

2013

$ 12.6

0.1

(0.1)

12.6

0.4

14.',|

14.5

(1.e)

(0.1)

2014

$ 16.6

0.0

3.0

14.6

16.5

4.0

3.9

0.0

0.1

1.0

'l .7

61 .4

7.8

17 .6

2.4

1.5

0.0

10.8

2.9

'14.9

57.9

0.0

0.3

l---65 J---lrt l--il l--G-O l--I2-0) l__1r-0) l__15 l-Joil

(Note: There may be some slight differences in totals due to rounding)

Governmental Aclivities - Statemenl of Activilies Highligh*
The City posted an increase in net position Aom govemmental activities before transfers of $2.6 million, an

increase of $1.3 million from the prior year. Sales taxes began to decline in light of the Illinois Supreme Court
ruling (see the Letter of Transmittal for greater detail) and decreased by $2.0 million from $18.5 million to $16.5
million as compared to the prior year. Sales tax incentive costs (economic development) also decreased at the

same rate of $2.1 million from $ 12.9 million to $ 10.8 million as compared to the prior year.
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The City began expenditure reduction in FY '14 as a result of the decreased sales tax which occurred due to the
ruling in the Hartney Fuel Oil y. Brian Hamer, Director of the lllinois Department of Revenue,Illinois Supreme
Court case. As part of the Court's decision, the Court declared tax sharing agreements, such as the ones in place
in the City of Kankakee, were valid under the previous Illinois Administrative Rules and Regulations (pre-
November 21,2013). All of the City's agreements were executed prior to that date. However, going forward
(post-November 21, 2013), the Court declared the Administrative Rules and Regulations needed to change in
order to be consistent with the statute upon which they were based. In light of this ruling, the City began the FY
'15 budget restructuring plan. From our analysis, the City expected to lose approximatety $2.4 million annually
of net sales tax revenues. The City planned for permanent reduced expenditures of $1.7 million and added two
new revenue streams: the public safety tax and the vehicle sticker tax slated to generate $0.9 million and $0.35
million, respectively. These measures were taken to ensure that a balanced budget was adopted.

Table 3: Sales taxes and incentives
Gross less

Fiscal
Year

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

20t3
20t4

Amount Incentives Net

Received Paid Sales Tax

22,351 ,192 17,066,791 5,284,401
25,107,826 18,938,693 6,169,',I33

23,695,013't7,678,395 6,016,618
26,611,558 20,109,951 6,501,607
24,419,114 17,617,181 6,801,933

21,098,621 15,658,977 5,439,644
21,276,641 14,799,988 6,476,953
18,699,437 12,250,191 6,449,246
18,584,185 12,670,343 5,913,842
16,514,574 10,625,086 5,889,488

Percent

$ Chanee Chanse

986,780 23.0o/o

884,732 16.70/o

(152,515) -2.5%

484,989 8.10/o

300,326 4.60/o

(1,362,289) -20.0o/o

1,037,309 19.10/o

(27,707) -O.4o/o

(535,404) -8.3o/o

(24,354) -O.4o/o

The City transferred $0.3 million to ESU to reimburse for the City related operations of public works that ESU

assumed. ESU transferred $ 1 .0 million to the General Fund to provide for payments in arrears to the Debt Service

Fund for the 1992A General Obligation Bond, provided for by the General Fund, and $3.3 million to the Debt
Service Fund to provide for bond and interest retirement. These and other interfund transfers are listed in Note 12

of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The following charts graphically illustrate the composition of the City's revenues and expenses from
governmental activities:



Chart 1: Composition of revenu
governmental activities

Operating
granUcontribution

t
Chart 2: Composition of expenses from

governmental activities

lnterest and
fiscal cha

5Yo
General

government
18o/o

Economic
development

260/o

Community
development

3%

Public safety
42o/o

Highways and
streets

60/o
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Business-Type Activilies - Statement of Activities Highlight$
ESU's normal depreciation expense of $ 1.3 million and the $3.3 million payment for bond retirement contributed
to the decline of $3.3 million in business-type net position for the fiscal year. ESU realized a gain from its equity
interest its joint venture with the Kankakee Municipal Regional Agency (KRMA) in the amount of $ 1 .7 million as

compared to a $0.1 mitlion equity loss in the prior year. KRMA operates the regional sewer treatment plant.

The KRMA treatment plant experienced a major explosion at the plant in late 2010, leading to additional
treatment costs because the treatment plant was not fully functional. ESU increased its sewer service rate at the
beginning of FY'12, which provided funds to offset the increased costs that resulted from the KRMA treatment
plant incident.

ESU transferred $3.3 million to the Debt Service Fund for the bond refunding of Utility debt of governmental
general obligation debt, and $ 1 .0 million to the General Fund as payment for the arrearage in a prior year bond
obligation. ESU received $0.3 million from the General Fund as reimbursement for public works services that
were non-sewer and solid waste service related.

Component Unit Activities - Statement of Activities Highlights
The component units, the Library and the SSA#1, saw no sigrificant change in net position from the previous
year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TIIE CITY'S GOVERNMENTAL FUI\DS

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 20l4,the governmental funds reflect a combined fund balance of $9.8 million,
an increase of $0.6 million or 6.10/o from the prior fiscal year. Major changes within the individual funds are
analyzed below. Of the total fund balance for all governmental funds, $2.8 million (28.3%) is unassigned,
indicating avaitability for continuing City services. Nonspendable and restricted fund balances include amounts
for prepaid items, inventories, debt service, unexpended street maintenance programs, culture and recreation,
economic development, retirement obligations, and capital projects.

Analysis of Balances and Transactions of Individual Funds

The fund balance of the General Fund increased insignificantly as the City continues to prudently manage its
resources in light of the national economic challenges. The Capital Projects Fund declined $ 1.6 million (52.9% to
FY'14 balance of Sl .5 million) as the City continued to finance various capital acquisitions and infrastructure
improvements as planned from bond proceeds of an earlier financing.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General, Band, IMRF, Special Service Area No. 2, Special
Service Area No. 3, and Special Service Area No. 5 Funds. The procedures used to control expenditures of the
other govemmental funds are explained further in Note 1, Budgetary Accounting on page 78. As noted earlier,
fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The
General Fund revenue and expenditure budgets were not amended during the fiscal year. A table presenting
budgetary highlights for the City's General Fund is provided below.

Because of the City administration's awareness of the national economic conditions, over the past five years the
City reorganized its operations, laid off employees and realized additional personnel reductions through athition,
allowingtheCitytoadoptabreakevenbudgetagainforFY'14. TheFY'15budgetreducedsalestaxrevenueby
$2.4 million, added the two new revenue streams totaling $1.25 million along with the permanent annual
reduction of $1.7 million from expenditures through reorganization and other adjustments. As a result of these

measures, the City was able to adopt a FY '15 budget that includes a smalt $0.05 million surplus.
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A summary comparison of the General Fund budget to actual results can be found on page 77, and a more detailed
comparison can be found on pages 86 - 88. Interfund transfers are listed in Footnote 12.

Sales tax declined from budget in FY '14 on both the revenue and expenditure side respectively by about $ 2.0

million. Overall, net sales ta-x revenue for the year was about the same as the prior fiscal year. Police Deparhnent
expenditures were greater than budget because of increased salary costs.

Similarly, the City was awarded a federal flow-through grant for the Kankakee Area Metro Enforcement Group
after the budget was adopted, so neither the revenues nor corresponding expenditures charged to the Police
Department were included in the budget. City administration did not feel it was necessary to amend the original
budget for these items. Other individual budget variances for the most part offset one another, and were not
further analyzed in this MD&A.

Table 4: General tr'und Budgetary Highlights

Revenues

Expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers from other flrnds

Transfers to other funds

Net changes in fund balance

Original

Budset

$39,5r 1,967

$38,939,322

s 572,645

Final

Budset

$39,sl1,967

$38,939,322

$ 572,645

Actual

$33,671,566

$33,s39,479

$ 132,087

Over/(U n der)

Final Budget

$ 5,840,401

$ (5,399,843)

$ (440,s58)

$ - $ - $1,000,000 $ 1,000,000

$ (33o,ooo) $ (33o,ooo) $ (330,000) $

__!__242,64s_ __!__242,64L __$___q929!Z_ __!__12,442_

CAPITALASSETS

The City's investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, land

improvements, equipment, vehicles, leasehold improvements, and infrastructure (roads, sidewalks, curbs, gutters,

and bridges). The City's total combined investment in capital assets for fiscal 2014 decreased slightly to $l12.3
million (net of accumulated depreciation).

The following table summarizes the City of Kankakee capital assets (in millions, net of depreciation) for the

current and prior fisca[ year.
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Table 5: Capital Asset Highlights (net of depreciation) for the liscal years ended

April 30, 2014 rnd 2013 (in millions)

Land

Construction in progress

Buildings

Equipment

Vehicles

Land improvements

Leasehold improvements

Infrastructure

Total capital assets, net

General obligation bonds

Revenue bonds

Line ofCredit
Installment notes

Unfunded employer
pension contributions

Compensated absences

Net other post employment

benefit obligations

Total Debt

Governmental
Activities

2014 2013

$ 54.3 $ 61.6

2.0 2.3

14.4 14.0

5.2 5.1

Governmental

Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

2014 2013

$ 7,4 $ 7.4

2.4 r.9

18.3 18.7

0.9 1.0

')< )1
1.9 2.2

0.2 0.2

78.7 80.1

2014

$ s.3

1.5

12.4

0.2

1.7

1.9

2013 2014 2013

$ 5.3 S 2.1 $ 2.1

1.0 0.9 0.9

12.6 5.9 6.1

0.2 0.7 0.8

1.8 0.8 0.9

2.2

0.2 0.2

17.8 18.2

$ 28.4 $ 29.2 s 112.3 s 114.2

60.9 61.9

s 83.9 S 85.0

Additional information on the City's capilal assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 55 - 57.

LONG-TER]\{ DEBT

At fiscal year end, the City's governmental activities had an overall decrease of $6.9 million (8%) in debt as the

City had a net decrease of $7.3 million in general obligation bonds and employee related costs (employer pension

contuibutions and compensated absences) increased $0.5 mitlion. Due to the issuance of the 20134 & B revenue

bonds, ESU's debt tiability increased $5.7 million compared to the prior fiscal year. Duringthe previous FY'13,
ESU's debt liability of $4.3 million was from a line-of-credit where the ESU was acting as a conduit for KRMA.
At the end of FY '14, the line-of-credit was paid in full therefore removing the liability from ESU. The net effect
of this activity was a total Sl.7 million increase to the debt liability. The following table further summarizes the

City's debt for the current and pdor fiscal years:

Table 6: Debt Highlights for the fiscal years ended April 30,2014 and 2013 (in millions, rs

adjusted for premiums and deferred losses)

Business-type

Activities
2014

s 14.0

2013

$ 8.3

4.3

2014

$ 54.3

t4.0

2.0

14.4

6.3

0.9

2013

$ 61.6

8.3

4.3

2.3

l4.o
5.9

0.7

0.8

0.2

l.t

0.20.7

$ 76.6 $ 83.5 $ 15.3 $ 91.9 $ 97.1$ 13.6

Additional information related to the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 10 on pages 60-69.



The City, under its home rule authority, does not have a legal debt limit. The City had a public rating from

Standard and Poor's of A beginning in 2006. In November 2013, the City of Kankakee received a rating of A-.
This rating was mostly assigned due to the lack of cash reserve, great uncertainty hovering with the sales tax
litigation, and increasing pension liabilities. The City has been taking measures to ensure greater financial
stability which are written in the Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget section below. The City anticipates

issuing additional bonds in the future.

ECONOI\flC FACTORS AIYD I\-EXT YEAR'S BIJDGET

The Cify continued to face economic challenges as it started to develop its General Fund budget for FY '15, and

used a combination of attrition and restructuring as the primary steps to balance the FY'15 budget. The City
faces on going contractual wage increases, increases in employer contributions for pensions, increases in medical
insurance and increases in other operating costs for the foreseeable future in this new era of what appears to be

continued municipal revenue shrinkage.

In efforts to provide the City with greater financial strength, the City enacted several measures. First, in the FY
' 15 budget only $3.6 million of net sales tax revenue was budgeted compared to $6.0 mitlion in FY ' 14. This was

done to account for the uncertainty of the new rules from the Illinois Department of Revenue. Also, during FY
'14, the City established an unrestricted cash reserve of $3.0 million to ensure greater long-term stability.
Additionally, the revenue enhancements that were adopted in FY '14, the public safety fee and the vehicle sticker

fee together totaling $ 1.2 million for FY ' 15, will continue for the upcoming fiscal years.

ESU increased its rates for sewer services beginning May 1,2014by 10.5% to a rate of $5.25 per 100 cubic feet

of water used, and wilt again on May l, 2015 by 9.5Yo to a rate of $5.75 per 100 cubic feet of water used. The

sewer rate increases will help offset some of the cost increases that ESU has realized as the regional sewer

treatment facility passes on its increased costs ofoperations.

The solid waste collection fee increases have been beneficial in offsetting some of the General Fund costs the City
incurred in collecting and disposing of solid waste. These rate increases facilitated the transfer of responsibility
for the Public Works Department to the Utility. The General Fund had absorbed most of the costs incurred to
provide solid waste disposal services over the years, but given current economic conditions, determined that it
could no longer maintain that practice.

The unemployment rate (not seasonally adjusted) for the City in June 2014 was 8.602 compared to 11.3% for
2013. The City is greatly pleased as this more closely mirrors tlre national and state unemployment rates of 6.1%

andT.lo/o, respectively. The City's outlook is more favorable than recent years past as the City has begun to see

stronger investment in economic development and greater employment. The City continues to monitor its
General Fund finances on a monthly basis to determine when it might need to implement additional strategies to
respond to the economic challenges faced by municipalities today.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Kankakee's finances for all those

with an interest in the government's finances. Any questions concerning this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Comptroller, City of Kankakee, 304 South Indiana Avenue,

Kankakee, Illinois 6090 1.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30,2014

Primary Government
Govemmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Component

Units

Assets
Cash and i nvestrnents

Restricted cash and investments

Receivables, less allowance for uncollectible
amounts:

Property taxes

Utility taxes
Due ffom joint ventures

Due from other govemmental agencies

Intemal balances

Due liom primary government

Due from component units
Accoults receivable
Special assessments

Matorials inventory
Prepaid items

Capital assets :

Non-depreciable
Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation)

Investrnent in joint venture

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding loss

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued wages payable

lnterest payable

Due tojoint venture
Due to primary government

Due to component units
Due to other govemment agencies

Employer pension contribution payable

Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year

Due within more than one year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Uneamed property tax revenue

Unearned special assessments

Deferred grant revenue

Deferred licenses and fees

Total defened inflows ofresources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Capital projects

Debt service
Economic development
Street maintenance programs

Unrestricted

Total net position

s 10,341,044 $ 250,480
3,732,997

843,000
14,461,022

r6,796,988

20,114,383

2,741,75't

(3,4s4,20s)

_$_!9lq!ry_

$ 10,59r,524
3,732,997

15,830,500

508,814

37,262
4,360,251

-0-

87,790
4,097,126
1,567,426

56,230
604,203

9,773,401
102,546,770

1,067,806

$ 9s8,327

1,845,100

7,167,138

15,830,500

508,814

4,336,077

(206,973)

87,790
1,958,438
1,567,426

4,102
442,883

6,742,599
77.157,299

37,262
24,174

206,973

2,138,688

52,128
161,320

3,030,802
25,389,471

1,067,806

36,092,101

106,822

4s9,287
207,495
395,472
430,712

100

t18,769,999

692,221

s,933,462
613,7 40
748,400

977

600

379,700

6,626,276

69,960,872

84,264,027

15,830,500

r,567,426
25,082

146,579

17,569,587

44,708,704

1,452,279
790,797

1,844,300
1,845,666

(33,013, r40)

_J_r@q!!!_

6,392,749
821,235

1,t43,872
430,712

977
600

379,700

7,469,276

84,421,894

101,061,015

15,830,500

r.567,426
25,082

146,579

t7,569,587

64,823,087

1,452,779
3,532,554
1,844,300
1,845,666

(36,467,34s)

_!_lrp19J1l

35,3 r0

87,790

t26,699
2,481,19

2,730,963

1,845,100

4043

1,849,143

4,559,275

832,261

_q!4Jig_

l54,862,100 9,971,642

799,043 -0-

-0-

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OT ACTIVITIES
For the year ended April 30,2014

Program Revenues

Charges
for Services

Operating Capital
Grants Grants

andContributions andContributions

Primary government:

Govemmental Activities
General govemment

Public safety

Highways and streets

Community development
Culture and recreation

Economic development
Interest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities

Business-Tyoe Activities
Sewer utility
Solid waste utility
Vehicle parking

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component units:
Library
Special Service Area No. I

Total component units

Expenses

g 7,803,797
t7,625,154
2,392,092
1,479,712

16,000

10,755,087
2,283,050

42,354,892

10,470,787
5,I 88,052

I,175

15,660,014

$ 58,014,906

$ 1,870,587
185,884

$ 2,056,471

t,t40,743
558,522

100,000

391,430
957,798

r,603,876
988

1,799,265

13,240,107
3,350,427

324

2,953,104

16,590,858

_g___!u2qJ2r_

$ 72,633

$ 2,953,104

5 107,347

_9______12,631_ _O_____Jo?-347_ _$_______ -9:_

General Revenues:

Property taxes levied for general purposes

Special assessments

Utility taxes
Intergovernmental, not restricted to specific programs:

State replacement income tax
State income tax
Local use tax

State sales tax

Other
Investment income

Other

Total

Transfers

Changes in net position

Net position, May l, 2013

Prior period adjustment

Net position, May 1,2013, restated

Net position, April 30,2014

988

-0-

-t6-



Net (Expense) Revenue and

Change in Net Position
Primary Govemment

Govemmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Component
tJnits

s (6,663,0s4)
(16,67s,202)

( 1,433,306)
224,r64
(16,000)

( 10,7s5,087)
(2,283,050)

(37,601,s35)

s 2,769,320 2,769,320
(1,837,625) (1,837,625)

(8sr) (8sl)

930,844

(37,601,535) 930,844 (36,670,691)

$ (6,663,0s4)
(.16,675,202)

(r,433,306)

224,164
(16,000)

(10,755,087)
(2,283,050)

(37,601,s3s)

r4,629,309
449,074

4,001,543

714,450
2,683,375

483,7t6
16,514,574

50,000
104,12r
535,448

3,946,279

63,995

63,995

(3,946,279)

14,629,309
449,0',14

4,001,543

714,450
2,683,375

483,716

16,514,574
50,000

t 04,12 r

599,443

40,229,605

-0-

$ (1,690,607)

( 185,884)

(1,876,491)

t,782,916

2,048
172,240

't,951,204

6,s10,3s4 (2,951,440)

11,1t8,252 22,698,013

(344,638)

11,118,252 22,353,375

$ t7,628,606 $ 19,401,935

33,471.627 5,310,823

_$__uri9Jl-t_ _q__1,3e-tE!-

3,558,914

33,816,265

(344,63 8)

80,713

5,310,823

accompanying notes.



CITY OF KA}TKAKEE, ILLINOIS
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL F[]I{DS
April 30,2014

General

Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Frmds

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables, less allowance for
uncollectible amounts :

Property taxes

Utility tares
Due from other governmental

agencies

Due from other funds

Due from component units
Accounts receivable
Special assessments

Materials inventory
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued wages payable

Due to other governmental agencies

Due to other funds

Employer pension contribution payable

Due to component units
Total tiabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable loan receivable
Unavailable franchise fees

Unavailable property tax revenue

Unavailable special assessments

Deferred grant revenue

Deferred licenses and fees

Total deferred inflows ofresources

Fund Balance
Nonspendable

Restricted for:
Debt service

S eet maintenance progmms

Economic development
Culture and recreation
Retirement obligations
Community development
Capital projects

Unassigned (deficit)
Total fund balance

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balance

_$ 3,031f22 816,204,4t3

$ 3,752,010

7,030,720

508,814

4,011,524
709,'704

61,s86
1,411,582

4,102
442,883

-$)lw'ezs

$ 5,709,854

s63,756
600

51 1,590

379,700

$ 1,299,052

171,344

1,56t,426

$ 5,289,982

8,799,780

324,553
1,2r7,038

26,204
546,856

s 10,341,044

15,830,500

508,814

4,336,077
2,098,086

8't,790
1,958,438

1,567,426

4,t02
442,883

_$_I,r75,169_

$ 5,933,462

613,740

600

2,305,059

379,700
977

14,390

2,750

977

$ 209,218
49,984

t,790,719

7,165,500 18,117

22,294
7,030,720

25,082
146,579

7,224,675

446,985

3,095,765

3,s42,750

2,049,921

537,705

8,799,780
1,567,426

1,567,426 9,337,485

t,452,279

790,797

1,845,666
1,844,300

t9,291
539,820
97,516

(320,383)

4,817,007r,452,279

9,233,s38

537,705
22,294

15,830,500

1,567 426
25,082

t46,5'79
18,129,586

446,985

790,797

1,845,666

1,844,300

19,29t
539,820

9'.1,516

t,452,279
2,7't5,382

9,812,036

$ 37,175,160_$17W,%_ _$ 3,o3Lw_ _$16204A13_

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KAIYKAKEE, ILLTNOIS
RECONCTLIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALAIICE

TO NET POSITION OF GOVER}IMENTAL ACTTVITIES
April 30,2014

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the

statement ofnet position are different because of the following:

Total fund balance - governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the curent period

and therefore are not reported in the funds. A11 tiabilities-both
current and long-term--are reported in the statement ofnet position.

Bonds payable

Installment notes

Unfunded employer pension c ontributions
Compensated absences

Net other post-employment benefit obligations
Total long-term liabilities (See Note 10)

Deferred charge on bond refunding loss not recorded in funds

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in govemmental funds,

but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.

lnterest payable

Certain long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the govemmental funds.

Loan receivable
Franchise fee receivable

Net position of govemmental activities

$ (54,301,207)
(1,970,020)

(14,408,596)
(5,224,000)

(683,325)

537,705
22,294

$ 9,812,036

83,899,898

(76,587,148)

692,221

(748,400)

559p99

$ 17,628,606

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVf,I[UES, EXPEI\DITI]RX,S

AI\ID CHANGES INFI]I\D BALAI\CE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the year ended April 30,2014

General
Frmd

Capital
Projects

Fund

Other Total
Governmental Govemmental

Funds Funds

Revenues:

Property taxes

Special assessments

Utility taxes

Licenses, permits and fees

Charges for services

Fines and penalties

Intergovemmental
Interest income

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Community development
Culture and recreation
Economic development

Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Tota.l expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditure s

Other financing sources (uses):

Issuance of refunding bonds
Premium on issuance of refunding bonds
Payment to refunded debt escrow

Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, May 1, 2013

Fund balance, April 30, 2014

39,200

33,539,479 1,668,709 10,041,832 4s,2s0,020

t32,087 (1,629,s09) 1,t6s,778 (331,644)

$ 6,506,059

4,001,543

1,332,011

M9,tA
3 t 8,152

20,836,804
13

527,882
33,671,566

5,575,819
t7,328,574

10,62s,086

10,000

602,638
113,285

952,786

$ 8,123,250
449,O74

2,523,462
104,108

7,716
11,207,610

936,242

492,332

1,479,7t2
16,000

130,001

4,616,899
2,370,646

2,63s,000
36,064

$14,629,309
449,074

4,001,543

1,332,011

149,102
318, 152

23,399,466
104,121

535,598

44,918,376

7,114,699
17,44t,859
1,445,1l8
1,479,712

16,000

10,755,087

4,626,899
2,370,646

39,200

2,635,000
36,064

1,000,000
(330,000)
670,000 -o-

802,087 (1,629,509)

2,740,663 3,081,788

(s,723,13s) (s,723,135)

5,274,418 6,274,4t8
(1,998,139) (2,328,139)

224,208 894,208

1,389,986 562,564

3,427,021 9,249,472

J_3,s42Js0_ _9J_s227e_ _$_1,81?,007_ $ 9,812,036

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REYENUES, E)PENDITIIRES

AI{D CHANGES IN FI]ND BALANCE
OT GOVERNMENTAL FT'NDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIYITIES

For the year ended April 30,,2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities on the statement ofactivities

are different because ofthe following:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, on the

statement of activities the cost ofthose assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives as depreciation expense.

Expenditure for capital assets

Depreciation

Repayments ofprincipal from current financial resources is an expenditure in the

govemmental funds, but are a reduction of long-term liabilities on the statement

ofnet position.

Principal payments on bonds payable

Principal payments on long-term notes payable

Payment to refunding debt escrow from bond proceeds

Some expenses reported on the statement ofactivities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Amortized bond premium

Amortized deferred loss

Change in accrued interest on long-term debts

Net change in compensated absences payable

Unfunded pension cost

Qhangs in net other post-employment benefit obligations payable

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt obligations are other financing sources in the

govemmental funds, but the issuance increases the long-term liabilities on the statement

ofnet position. Premiums related to these long-term debt obligations also are reported as

other financing sources in the governmental flrnds, but they increase liabilities on the

statement of net position.
Proceeds from refunding bonds issued

Premium on issuance ofbonds

Revenue in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are

not reported as revenues in the funds:

Franchise fee - long term receivable

Change in net position of governmental activities

s62,s64

634,842
(1,746,869)

4,310,000

316,899
5,723,135

201,209
(r66,513)

s2,900
(104,500)
(445,028)
(1s7,812)

(2,635,000)
(36,064',)

$ 6,510,354

591

Gpanyingnotes.



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
April 30,2014

Enterprise Funds

Kankakee
Environmental

Services
Utility

$ 118,903

1,665,083

37,262
26t,965
24,174

2,138,688
52,128

t6t,320

4,459,523

2,067,914

t,586,994
25,389,471

1,067,806

30,112,185

34,571,708

106,822

459,287
207,495
39s,472
430,712
s4,992

378,000
46s,000

2,390,9s8

704,700
248,084

13,508,238

t4,46t,022

16,851,980

t8,670,57s
2,741,757

(3,s85,782)

$ 17,826,s50

Nonmajor
Motor Vehicle

Parking

s 13t,577

1,443,808

1,,+43,808

1,575,385

-0-

1,443,808

131,577

_[_1,s75;!!_

$ 2s0,480
1,66s,083

37,262

261,965
24,t74

2,138,688
52,t28

t6t,320

Total

Assets

Current assets :

Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Receivables, less allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Due from joint venture

Due from other funds
Due from other govemmental agencies

Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid items

Total curent assets

Non-current assets:

Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable
Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation)

Investment in joint venture

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding loss

Liabilities
Cunent liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued wages payable

Accrued interest
Due tojoint venture
Due to other funds
Accrued employee absences

Revenue bonds payable within one year

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Accrued employee absences

Net other post-employment benefit obligations
Revenue bonds payable, less portion

due within one year

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for debt service

Unrestricted

Total net position

131,577 4,591,100

2,067,914

3,030,802
2s,389471

1,067,806

31,555,993

36,147,093

106,822

459,287
207,495

395,472
430,7t2

54,992
378,000
465,000

2,390,9s8

704,700
248,084

13,508,238

14,461,022

16,851,980

20,t14,383
2,741,757

(3,4s4,20s)

$ 19,401,935

See accompanying notes.
a't



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVE}TUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHAI\GES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended April 3O,2Ol4

Enterprise Funds

Kankakee

Environmental
Services

utility

Nonmajor
Motor Vehicle

Parking Total

g 11,502,262

2,620,711
607,r78
111,996

324

30,709

14,873,180

1,175

1,860,180
931,352
5s0,827
658,445

4,000,804

3,623,744
1,484,210

5,t07,954

9,108,758

4,525,499
1,17 5

1,287,710

t4,923,142

Operating revenues:

Charges for services:

Sewer charges

Solid waste charges

Public works revenue

Intergovemmental
Parking revenues

Miscellaneous charges

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Utility operations:

Sewer utility:
Administration
Sanitary sewers

Lab and industrial services

Technical services

Total sewer utilty

Solid waste utility:
Solid waste

Public works

Total solid waste utility

Total utility operations

Treatment charges

Parking administration
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

11,502,262

2,620,711
607,178
rr1,996

324

30

14,872,856

1,860,180
931,352

s50,827
658,445

4,000,804

3,623,744
1,484,210

5,107,954

9,108,758

4,525.,499

1,287,710

14,921,967

(49,r 11)

324

-0-

-0-

175

(8s l) (49,962)

(Continued)
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REYENTIES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FI]NDS
(Continued)

For the year ended April 30,2014

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Equity interest in joint venture

operating income

Bond interest rebates

Interest and debt-related expenses

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfers

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total transfers

Change in net position

Net position, May I, 2013

Prior period adjustment

Net position, May l, 2013, restated

Net position, April 30, 2014

Enterprise Funds

Kankakee

Environmental Nonmajor
Services Motor Vehicle
Utilit-v Parking

$ r,717,678
63,995

(736,872)

1.044.801

995.690 (8s 1)

330,000

(4,276,27e)

(3,946,279)

(2,950,589)

21,12t,777

(344,638)

20,777,139

$ 17,826,s50

(851)

1,576,236

1,5'.76,236

$ 1,575,385

Total

$ r,717,678
63,995

(736,872)

r,044,801

994,839

330,000

(4,276,279)

(3,946,279)

(2,9s1,440)

22,698,013

(344,638)

,, ?<1 ?75

s 19,401,935

-0-

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASII FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FI]IIDS
For the year ended April 30,2014

Enterprise Funds

Cash flows provided (used) by operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users

Payments to other funds

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities:

Payment on notes payable

Noncapital transfers to other funds

Noncapital transfers from other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment
Additions to construction in progress

Issuance of revenue bonds

Interest and fiscal charges

Bond issue costs

Bond interest rebates received

Net cash provided (used) by capital

and related financing activities

Cash flows provided (used) by investing activities:
Repayments of loans to joint venture

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, May 1,2013

Cash and cash equivalents, April 30,2014

1,085,846 (8s1) t,084,995

Kankakee

Environmental
Services

Utility

$ 14,606,198
(221,0r1)

(9,s20,051)
(3,779,290)

(3,225,000)
(4,276,279)

330,000

(7,171,279)

(270,046)
(238,689)

5,665,372
(203,905)
(r28,422)

63,99s

4,888,305

2,975,000

t,77',|,872

Nonrnajor
Motor Vehicle

Parking

$ 324

(1,175)

Total

$ 14,606,522
(221,01t)

(9,s21,226)
(3,779,290)

(3,225,000)
(4,276,279)

330,000

(7,17t,279)

(270,046)
(238,689)

5,665,3't2
(203,905)
(128,422)

63,995

4,888,305

2,975,000

(851) r,77't ,021

2,074,028 t32,428 2206,456

_q_l!s 1999_ _I__l-i.!,577_ _g-_3 983,471_

(Continued)
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FT'IYDS
(Continued)

For the year ended April 30,2014

Enterprise Funds

Kankakee

Environmental
Services
utilitv

Nonmajor
Motor Vehicle

Parking Total

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income ([oss)

Adjustnents to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable

Due from other flrnds

Due from other govemmental agencies

Inventory
Prepaid insurance and service fees

lncrease (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued wages payable

Due to joint ventwe
Accrued employee absences

Due to other funds

Net other post-emp loyment benefit
obligations

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Noncash transactions related to financing, capital and

investing activities:

Amortization of early debt retirement deferred loss

Construction projects capitalized

General Fund payment on note payable

$ (49,111) $ (851) (49,962)

1,287,710

(490,388)
220,130

8,600
(19,874)

2,112

(7,640)
(10,563)
2t6,334

94,100
(221,011\

ssA47

1,287,7tO

(490,388)

220,t30
8,600

(1e,874)
2,112

(7,640)
(10,563)
2t6,334

94,100
(221,011)

s5A47

s 1,08s,846 _$._(85U _$_1,084e2!_

-0- $ 20s,146

s 1,12s,000

8,217 8,217

$ 205,146

_$._!.12s,999_

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUI\DS
April30,2014

Assets

Cash and short-term inve strnents

Receivables, less allowance for uncollectible amormts:

Employee contributions
Employer contributions
Interest

Investments, at fair value:

Open-end mutual funds

Corporate securities

U.S. treasury and agency securities

Corporate bonds

State and local obligations
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities

Benefits and other payables

Net Position

Net position held in trust for pension benefits

g 2,84',1,461

35,800
3'.79,700

75,792

7,056,631
6,368,093

6,3s9,521
3,675,246

620,461
9,457

27,428,162

424,646

$27,003,s l6

See accompanying notes.



CITY OF KAI{KAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CIIANGES IN FIDUCIARY IIET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FI'NDS
For the year ended April 30,2014

Additions:
Confibutions:

Employer
Employee

Total contributions

Investment income:
Net change in fair value of investments

Interest and dividends

Less : investment expense

Net investment income

Total additions

Deductions:

Beneflts
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net position-restricted for pension benefits

Net position held in trust for pension benefits

May 1,2013

April 30,2014

$ 4,625,978
888,154

5,514,132

t,063,732
493,623

1,557,355

(174,851)

1,382,504

6,896,636

4,890,870

49,549
93,552

5,033,971

1,862,66s

25,140,851

$ 27,003,516

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

COMPONENT UNITS
April 30,2014

Kankakee

Public Library

Special
Service Area

No. I Totals

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables, less allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes

Pledges

Due from primary government

Capital assets:

Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to primary govemment

Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year

Due within more than one year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable property tax revenue

Deferred grant revenue

Total defened inflows ofresources

Net Position

Net investrnent in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 747,849

t,720,750
100

6,401,902

8,870,601

$ 210,478

t24,350

977

765,236

1,101,041

$ 958,327

1,845,100
100

977

7 ,167,138

9,97r,642

33,148

71,538

126,699
2,481,164

2,712,549

2,162
16,252

18,414

35,310

87,790

126,699
2,481,164

2,730,963

1,720,750
4,043

t,724,793

124,350

t24,350

1,845,100

4,043

1,849,143

3,'194,O39

639,220
765,236
193,041

$ 958,277

4,559,275

832,261

$ 4,433,259 $ 5,391,536

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KAI{KAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES

COMPONENT UNTTS

For the year ended April 30, 2014

Prosam Revenues

Kankakee Public Library:
Culture and recreation
Interest and fiscal charges

Special Sewice Area No. l:
General government

Total

Expenses

$ 1,736,905

133,682

185,884

Charges
for Services

Operating
Grants

72,633 107,347

72,633 g 10'1,347$ 2,056,471

General Revenues:

Property taxes levied for general purposes

Interest

Other

Total

Changes in net position

Net position, May 1, 2013

Net position. April 30,2014

-30-



Net (Expense) Revenue and

Change in Net Position

Kankakee Special Service

Public Librarv Area No. I__-.--1

s (1,556,92s)
(133,682)

(1,690,607)

$ (1,ss6,925)
(133,682)

$ (185,884) (18s,884)

(18s,884) (t,876,491)

Total

1,658,617

1,838

154,627

1,815,082

124,475

4,308,784

124,299
210

17,613

142,122

(43;t62)

1,002,039

$ 958,277

t,782,916
2,O48

172,240

1,957,204

80,713

5,310,823

g 4,433,259 $ 5,391,536

See accompanying notes.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SIIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOI]NTING POLICIES:

The City of Kankakee, Illinois (City), is a home rule unit under the 1970 Constitution of Illinois,
Article VIL The City was incorporated in 1865 and operates under an elected Mayor/Council form of
govemment. The City Council is comprised of the Mayor and fourteen Council members. The City's
major operations include public safety (police, fire, code enforcement and animal control), public works,
highways and streets, community development, culture and recreation, economic development, sewer and

solid waste utility, and general adminishative services. The following significant accounting policies
apply to the City and its component units.

A. Reportine Entitv

The City follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial
reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its component units, which
are legally separate organizations for which the elected ofhcials of the primary govemment

are financially accountable.

The financial data of the component units is included in the City's reporting entity because

of the significance of their operational or financial relationship with the City.

Blended Component Unit - A blended component unit is a legally separate entity from
the City, but is so intertwined with the City that it is, in substance, tJre same as the City.
For financial reporting pulposes, the following component units are reported as if they
were part of the City's operations.

1 . Kankakee Environmental Services Utility (Utility) - The Utility is

governed by a board which is comprised mainly of City Council members.

As stated in the Utility bylatvs, one City Council member from each ward is

required to serve on the Utility Board. The Utility accounts for the operation

of the sewer and solid waste systems, including the public works services

which benefit the citizens of the City.

2. Community Development Agency - The Community Development Agency
is govemed by the City Council. Its major sources of revenue are

intergovemmental grants that are used to benefit the citizens of the Clty.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - A discretely presented component unit is an

entity that is legally separate from the City, but for which the City is financially
accountable, or whose relationship with the City is such that exclusion would cause the

City's basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The following discretely
presented component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are

legally separate from the City.

1 . Kankakee Public Library (Library) - The Library is governed by a board

appointed by the City Council. The majority of the Library's revenues are

from a property tax levy approved by the Council' The City has also

assumed the obligation to finance the Library's deficits.



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2014

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

2. Special Service Area No' 1 (SSA No. 1) - SSA No. 1 promotes and develops

downtown Kankakee. Its major source of revenues is from a property tax
lely approved bY the CitY Council.

Separately audited financial statements for the component units are not available.

Combining financial statements for the discretely presented component units are

presented after the basic financial statements and prior to the notes to the financial

statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide statement of net

position and statement of activities report the overall financial activities of the City and

its component units, excluding fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to

minimize the double-counting of intemal activities of the City. These statements

distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City.

Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in

whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. Additionally, the primary

government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for
which the primary government is financially accountable'

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those

ihat are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Certain indirect

expenses for centralized functions are included in the direct expenses. Program

.evenue. include 1) fines, fees, and charges to customers or applicants who purchase,

use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational

or capital requirement of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements - The fund financial statements provide information about

the City,s funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund

category - governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis on

fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each

displayed in a separate column. All remaining govemmental and enterprise funds are

aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to

account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Capital Projects Fund - This fund accounts for the resources used for capital

acquisition and other major capital improvement projects including streets,

sidewalks and community development projects. The City has elected to treat

the Capital Projects Fund as major, although it has not met the criteria
requiring such treatment for fiscal year 2014.

-33 -



CITY OF KAI{KAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

Kankakee Environmental Services Utility - This fund accounts for the

provision of sewer services to the residents of the City and operation of the

City's waste collection and disposal services. All activities necessary to
provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including administration,
operations, financing, public works, billing and collection. Activities are

funded with user fees.

Additionalty, the City reports the following fiduciary fund type:

Pension Trust Funds - These funds account for the accumulation of retirement
and disability benefits for police and firefighters' pension plans.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting:

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements - The

government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported

using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a

liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Nonexchange

transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in
exchange, include property tax revenue, grants, and other contributions' On an

accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the period for which the

levy is intended to finance, which is the year after the taxes are levied' For
example, the 20l2levy is recognized as revenue for the year ended April 30,2014.

Revenues from gtants and other contributions are recognized in the fiscal year in
which atl eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which speciff the year when

the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted;

matching requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to be used

for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resoutces are

provided to the City on a reimbursement basis.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating

items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from exchange

transactions associated with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing activities.
Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up

essentially equal values. The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise

funds come from charges to customers for sales and services which include sewer

and solid waste charges, utility fees and parking fees. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and

depreciation on capital assets. A11 revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINAI{CIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2014

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Pension trust funds recognize employer and participant contributions in the period
in which contributions are due and the City has made a formal commitment to
provide the contributions. Retirement benefits and refunds are recognized when

due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Govemmental fund financial statements

are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the

modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are

both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues, except for
property ta-xes and income tax, to be available if they are collected within 90 days

ofthe end of the current fiscal period. Revenues for properly taxes are considered

to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
year for the year intended to finance. Revenues for the income taxes are

considered to be available if they are collected within 120 to 150 days ofthe end of
the current fiscal year due to further delay in receipt from the State. Expenditures
generalty are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, principal and interest on general long-term debt and claims and
judgments are recorded only when payment is due. Compensated absences are

recorded only when retirement or separation has occurred. General capital asset

acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases ate reported as other
financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, income taxes, utility taxes, intergovernmental revenues,

franchise taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all

considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of
the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due

within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue

of the current period.

Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, charges for sales and services (other

than utility) and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in
cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received.

The City reports unavailable/unearned revenue on its financial statements.

Unavailable/unearned revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both

the measurable and available or eamed criteria for recognition in the current period.

Unavailable/unearned revenues also arise when the resources are received by the

City before it has a legal claim to them or prior to the provision of services. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the

City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability or deferred inflow is removed

from the financial statements and revenue is recognized.

Grant funds are considered to be eamed to the extent of expenditures made under

the provisions ofthe grant and, accordingly, when such funds are received they are

recorded as deferred inflows ofresources until eamed.



CITY OF KAI{KAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOITNTING POLICIES (Continued):

D. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which

approximates fair value. The value of open-end mutual funds are determined by the pool's

share price. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last

reported sales price at current exchange rates. Managed funds related to the retirement

systems not listed on an established market are reported at estimated fair value as

determined by the respective fund managers based on quoted sales prices of the underlying

securities. Cash deposits are reported at carrying amount which reasonably estimates fair
value. Al1 external investment pools are reported at fair value based on the fair value per

share of the pool's underlying portfolio.

E. InterfundTransactions

Activities between funds that are representative of lending,borrowing arrangements

outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds"

for the current portion of interfund loans or "advances to/from other funds" for the non-

current portion of interfund loans. All other outstanding balances between funds are

reported as "due tolfrom other funds." Interfund balances between governmental funds and

between proprietary funds are not included in the govemment-wide statement of net

position. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and

business-type activities are reported in the govemment-wide financial statements as

"internal balances." Advances between funds are offset by a nonspendable fund balance

account in applicabte governmental funds to indicate that they are not expendable available

financial resources.

The City has the following types of interfund transactions:

Loans - Amounts provided with a requirement for repayment. Interfund loans are

reported as interfund receivables (i.e., due from other funds) in lender funds and

interfund payables (i.e., due to other funds) in borrower funds in the fund balance

sheets or fund statements ofnet position.

Services Provided and Used - Sales and purchases of goods and services between

funds for a price approximating their extemal exchange value. Interfund services

provided and used are reported as revenues in seller funds and expenditures or
expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are reported as interfund receivables

and payables in the fund balance sheets or fund statements of net position.

Reimbursements - Repayments from the funds responsible for particular

expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements

are reported as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of
expenditures in the reimbursed fund.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Transfers - Flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent flows of assets

in retum and without a requirement for repayment. In govemmental funds,

transfers are reported as other financing uses in the funds making transfers and as

other financing sources in the funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds,

transfers are reported after nonoperating revenues and expenses.

F. lnventory and Prepaid Items

Inventory, such as fuel and office supplies, is accounted for using the consumption method

and is valued at an average weighted cost.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are

recorded as prepaid items in both govemment-wide and fund financial statements.

lnventory and prepaids reported in the governmental funds are not available for

appropriation and therefore result in nonspendable fund balance.

Restricted Assets - Enterprise Funds

Certain cash and investments in the Kankakee Environmental Services Utility are

restricted in accordance with the ordinances authorizing the issuance ofthe revenuo bonds.

These assets are reflected as restricted cash and investments and restrictions of furancial
position.

Lone-Term Debt. Bond Premiums. Discounts. and Bond Issue Costs

In the govemment-wide and proprietary fund financial statemerts, outstanding debts are

reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the

fife of the bonds using the shaightJine method. Bonds payable are reported net of the

applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issue costs are expensed in the period

incuned.

In the firnd financiat statements, government fund Ypes recogflize bond premiums and

discounts, as well as bond issue costs during the current period. The face amount of debt

issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuances are reported as

other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing

uses. Issuance costs whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, axe

reported as expenditures in the period incurred.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (roads,

bridges, drainage systems, traffic controls, etc.) are reported in the applicable

governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial

itat"ments. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost

of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Purchased capital

assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated

G.

-3'.7 -
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historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date received.

Minimum capitalization costs are as follows:

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or

materially extend asset lives are not capitalized, whereas improvements extending the

useful lives of the related capital assets are capitalized'

Capital assets of the City and its component units are depreciated using the straightJine

method over the following useful lives:

Land
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Buildings, land improvements, leasehold
improvements

Infrastructure assets

Buildings, major plant and sewerage equipment
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Improvements
Infrastructure

$ 25,000
5,000

100,000
250,000

Years

20-75
5 -20
7 -40

25 - 100

Net Position

In the govemment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is displayed in

three components as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This consists of capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation, less the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other

borrowings that afe attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets, plus any material unspent bond proceeds.

Restricted - This consists ofnet position that is tegally restricted by outside parties or

by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. When both

restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is the City's
practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources when they are

needed.

unrestricted - This consists of net position that does not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."
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K. CompensatedAbsences

City employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of
employment. With minor exceptions, compensated absences either vest or accumulate and
are accrued when they ate earned.

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and proprietary
fund statements consists of unpaid, accumulated vacation and sick leave balances. The
liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both
employees who currently are eligible to receive termination pa)ments and other

employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments

upon termination are included.

L. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits

and short-term investments, inctuding cash in excess of daily requirements that is invested
in marketable securities, substantially all of which have a maturity of three months or less

when acquired.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and

deferred inflows and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fund Equitv - Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned.

Nonspendable fund balance is reported for amounts that are either not in a spendable form
or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restrictions in fund balance are

reported for amounts constrained by legal restrictions from outside entities. Committed
fund balance is constrained by an ordinance of the City Council, which is considered the
City's highest level of decision making authority. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by
the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another
ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. Assigned fund balance represents amounts
constrained by the City's intent to use them for a specific pulpose but do not meet the

criteria to be classified as committed. The City Council by resolution authorized the

Comptroller to assign fund balance. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist

temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the

removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential

to either remove or revise a commitment. Any residual fund balance of the General Fund

and any deficits in other funds, if any, are reported as unassigned.

M.

N.
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The City's flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest level of
constraint are expended first. If restricted funds are available for spending, the restricted

funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of unrestricted funds are available for
spending, the City considers committed funds to be expended first, followed by assigned

and then unassigned.

O. Investment in Joint Venture

The Kankakee Environmental Services Utility has two investments in joint ventures which
are reported on the equity rnethod of accounting.

P. Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section

for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred

outflow of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)

until then. The City only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the

deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded

debt and its reacquisition price. The amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of
the life ofthe refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate

section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,

deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow ofresources (revenue) until that
time. The City has multiple types of these items, which qualifu for reporting in this
category, including grant, license and fee revenue received in advance of meeting the time
requirements as well as property taxes and special assessment revenue received or reported

as a receivable prior to the period for which it was levied. These amounts are deferred and

recognized as an inflow ofresources in the period that the amounts are intended to finance

on both the govemment-wide statement of net position and the govemmental fund balance

sheet. The City also has other deferred inflows of resources that arise only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting that also qualifu for reporting in this category.

Accordingty, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds

balance sheet. The governmental fund report unavailable revenues from two sources:

franchise fees and loan receivables. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an

inflow ofresources in the period that the amounts become available.

NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND IN\'ESTMENTS:

Investing is performed in accordance with investment policies complying with state statutes (as

outlined in the Illinois Public Funds Act of 1943) and City charter. These statutes and the City charter

authorize the City to invest in direct and general obligations of the United States of America, obligations
issued or guaranteed by instrumentalities or agencies of the United States of America, direct and general

obligations of any state, interest-bearing demard or time deposits or interest in money market portfolios
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issued by state banks or trust companies or national banking associations or savings and loan associations

that are continuously and fully insured, shares of a diversified open-end management investment

company, state pooled investment funds, or repurchase agreements of govemment securities through
banks or hust companies. Police and Fire pension investments are governed by the Iltinois Pension Code

which authorize, in addition to the above investments, investments in common stock, mutual funds and

life insurance company contracts. The City's Police and Firefighters' Pension funds, under the direction
of their respective Boards of Trustees, contractually delegate investment oversight to investment

managers.

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by the General Fund,

Capital Projects Fund, and all special revenue funds (except the Motor Fuel Tax Fund and the Community
Development Agency). tn addition, non-pooled cash and investments are separately held by several of
the City's funds including component units. The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds are

held separately from those ofthe other City funds.

Deposits:

The City, component units and pension trust funds' investment policies require all uninsured

deposits with financial institutions to be fully collateralized with the collateral held by an independent

third party acting as the City's agent and held in the name of the City, component units and pension trust
funds, respectively.

At April 30,2014, the carrying amount of the City's deposits for governmental and business-type
activities was $10,424,017 and the bank balance was $10,763,682. The entire bank balance was covered

through federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the City or its agent, in the City's name.

At April 30, 2014, the carrying amount of deposits of fiduciary activities was $762,424 and the

bank balance was $762,561 of which $27,628 was uninsured and uncollateralized. This portion of the

bank balance that is uninsured and uncollateralized is a violation of the City's investment policy.

At April 30,2014, the carrying amount of deposits of the City's component units was $957,843

and the bank balance was $969,102 ofwhich $507,941 was uninsured and uncollateralized. This portion

ofthe bank balance that is uninsured and uncollateralized is a violation ofthe City's investment policy.

Investments:

The following table presents the investments and investment maturities of the City and its

component units as of April 30,2014. Categorized investments are insured or registered for which tlre
securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Uncategorized investments are not subject

to categorization because they are not securities. The relationship between the City and the investment

agent is a direct contractual relationship.
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Investrnent Maturities (in Years)
Morc

Less Than I 1-5 GlO tlmn 10Investnent TvDe

Governmental and business-type activities:

Uncategorized investnents:

lllinois Funds

Illinois Metropolitan Investnent
Fund(IMEQ

Fiduciary activities:

Categorized investrnents:

U. S. Treasury obligation
U.S. Govemment agencies

State and local obligation
Uncategorized investsnents:

Illinois Futds
Corporate bonds
Mutual funds

Money market
Common stock (1)

Total investrnents

(l) Risk disclosures do not apply to equities.

FHLMC
FNMA
GNMA
TVA
FFC

Total

$3,755,982

142.585

3.898.s67 $ -0- $

579,801 2,463,82i
191,t43 1299491

193,8&

59

95,483 1,075,8&
7,056,631

Lou,978

1,083,026 420,546

10,087 311$04
225,601 200996

2,083,M7 420,852

5.033.042 3.40136t 1.354.998

$5J33@ $3JoEt S1i54,ee8

Fair Value

$3,755,982

142.585

3.898.567

4,547,196

t,812,325
620A61

59

3,675,246
7,056,631
2,0u,978
6.368.093

26.r@.989

$30&1J56

10.008.095

$1396.662

-0- $ -0-

The investments in the securities of U.S. government agencies were all rated AA+ by Standard &
Poor's, and AAA by Moody's Investors Services. The securities of U.S. government agencies at April 30,

2014 consist of the following:

$ 860,111
826,287
48,835
39,080
38.012

$r-812J25

In accordance with the City's investment policy, the City invests in mortgage-backed securities.

These securities are reported at fair value and are based on the cash flows from interest and principal

payments by the underlying mortgages. As a result, they are sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees,

which may result from a decline in interest rates. For example, if interest rates decline and homeowners

refinance mortgages, thereby prepaying the mortgages underlying these securities, the cash flow from

interest payments is reduced and the value of these securities declines. Likewise, if homeowners pay on

mortgages longer than anticipated, the cash flows are greater and the refum on the initial investment

would be higher than anticipated. The City invests in mortgage-backed securities to diversi$ the

portfolio and to increase the retum while minimizing the extent of risk.
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The City invests in Illinois Funds, an extemal investment pool administered by the State

Treasurer, which is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's Investment Services. The City also invests in
Illinois Mehopolitan Investment Fund, an external investment pool administered by and for Illinois public
funds managers and financial officers, which is rated AAAf/S 1 by Standard & Poor's Investment

Services. No rating is available for the City's investment in money market and corporate bonds which are

managed by an investment broker.

Interest Rate Risk

The City's investment policy limits investment maturities in the General Fund and special revenue
funds to a maximum of 36 months. Investments in other funds may be purchased with a longer maturity
to match future project or liability requirements as limited by bond ordinances. However, in practice, the

City generally limits the average duration of its investments to less than one year in order to control fair
value losses arising from increasing interest rates and to remain sufficiently liquid to meet operating
needs. lnterest rate risk for investments held by pension trust funds is managed by establishing

investment parameters for the investment managers.

Credit Risk

The City's investment and cash management policy, as well as the investment policies of the

Police and Firefighters' Pension Trust Funds, prescribe to the "prudent person" rule, which states,

"investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons

of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the possible

income to be derived." The City's investment policy follows the requirements of the State of Itlinois
Public Funds Investment Act, which prescribes allowable investment vehicles. According to the City's
investment policy governing diversification, its investment in Illinois Funds shall not exceed 40 percent

of the total investment portfolio unless specifically authorized by the City Council. The City places no

limit on the amount the City may invest in any other issuer. The Police and Firefighters' Pension Trust
Funds each have separate investment policies, which establish criteria for allowable investments. Both
funds follow the requirements of the Illinois Pension Code. The following significant investments (other

than those explicitly guaranteed or issued by the U.S. govemment or those invested in mutual funds,

external investment pools or other pooled investments) in the Police and Firefighters' Pension Plans

represent 5 percent or more of the net position available for benefits ofthe respective plans:

Firefighters' Pension Fund:
FHMLC $60I1s,1

NOTE 3 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS:

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund :

Plan Descrirrtion

The City contributes to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund ([MRF), which provides

retirement and disability benefits, post-retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and

beneficiaries. IMRF is an agent-multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a

-43
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common investment and administrative agent for local governments and school districts in Illinois. The

IMRF covers all City employees who occupy a job normally requiring 600 hours or more per year, are

paid on a regular payroll from City funds, were under age 60 when first entering employment and are not

covered by another state-created retirement system for the same service. Employees not qualifuing above

are considered "nonparticipating employeest' and are covered under Social Security or under the Police
Pension or Firefighters' Pension Plans. The Illinois Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the

plan that can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly. IMRF issues a publicly available

financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan as

a whole, but not for individual employers. That report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1,2011, are

etigible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of service.

Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight

years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an

amount equal to I 213 percent of their final rate of eamings, for each year of credited service up to 15

years, and 2 percent for each year thereafter.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2
employees, pension benefits vest after 10 years of service. Participating members who retire at age 62

(reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with 10 years of credited service are entitled to an annual

retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 213 percent of their final rate of
eamings, for each year ofcredited service up to 15 years, and 2 percent for each year thereafter.

Fundins Policy

As set by statute, employees participating in IMRF are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their
annual covered salary. The statutes require employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to

member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer

contribution rate for calendar year 2013, used by the City, was 11.42 percent of annual covered payroll.

The employer annual required contribution rate for calendar year 2013 was 13.33 percent. The City
employer also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all
of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the

IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Oblieation

For the fiscal year ending April 30,2014, the employer's actual contributions for pension cost

were $739,277. Its required contribution for calendar year 2013 was $833,380. The required contribution

for 201 3 was determined as part of the December 3 1, 20 1 1 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal

actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2011, included (a) 7.5 percent

investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary

increases of 4.0 percent a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging

from 0.4 percent to 10.0 percent per year depending on age and services, attributable to seniority/merit,
and (d) post-retirement benefit increases of 3.0 percent annually. The actuarial value of IMRF assets was

determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments over a five-year period with a 20.0 percent corridor between the actuarial and market value of
assets. IMRF's unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31,2011 is being amortized as a level

percentage of projected payroll on an open 30 year basis.

-44-



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLTNOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 3 - EMPLOYEE RETIRDMENT SYSTEMSAND PENSIONPLANS (Continued):

Three-Year Trend lnformation :

Percentage
ofAPC

Contributed

87%
83o/o

78%

$840,303
38,687

(28.213\

850,777

739-277

111,500
5 15.829

sol]p

Fiscal Year
Ended April 30

2014
2013
20t2

Annual Pension
Cost (APC)

$850,777
792,2t9
718,005

Net Pension
Obligation fNPO)

9627,329
515,829
3 80,5 82

The City's APC and NPO are calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost

Contributions made

Increase in net pension obligation
Net pension obligation, beginning ofyear

Net pension obligation, end of year

Funded Status and Fundine Prosress

As of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City's IMRF plan was

78.19 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was$22,012,290 and the actuarial value
of assets was $17,210,709, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $4,801,581.

The covered payroll for calendar year 2013 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was

$6,251,915 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 77 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the

actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued

liability for benefits.

Police Pension and Firelighters' Pension Funds:

A. Plan Descriptions

The City contributes to two single-employer defined benefit pension plans: the Police Pension

Plan and the Firefighters' Pension Plan (Plans). Each plan provides retirement, disability, and

death benefits, and annual cost-ofJiving adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. Sworn

police and fire personnel are covered by the Plans. Although these are single-employer pension

plans, the defined benefits and employee and employer contribution levels are governed by
Illinois Compiled Statues (ILCS) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The City
accounts for the Plans as pension trust funds. The City does not, however, separately issue

audited financial reports for the Plans.
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Police Pension Plan

Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable service

are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of 2.5 percent of final salary for each year of
service up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75 percent of such salary.

Employees with at least 8 years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age

60 and receive a reduced benefit of 2.5 percent offinal salary for each year ofservice.

Surviving spouses receive 100 percent of final salary for fatalities resulting from an act of duty,

or otherwise the greater of50 percent offinal salary or the employee's retirement benefit.

Employees disabled in the line of duty receive 65 percent offinal salary'

The monthly pension of a covered employee who retired with 20 or more years of service after
January l, 1977, shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement

and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years by 3 percent of the originally granted

pension. Beginning with increases granted on or after July 1, 1993, the second and subsequent

automatic annual increases shall be calculated as 3 percent of the amount ofthe pension payable

at the time of the increase.

Employees are required by ILCS to contribute 9.91 percent of their base salary to the Police

Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service,

accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest.

For employees hired after January 1,2}ll,the normal retirement age is attainment of age 55 and

completion of 10 years of service. Early retirement age is attainment of age 50, completion of 10

years of service and the early retirement factor is 6 percent per year. The employee's accrued

benefit is based on the employee's final eight year avelage salary not to exceed $106,800 (as

indexed). Cost of living adjustments are simple increases, not compounded, of the lesser of three

percent or 50 percent ofthe Consumer Price Index beginning the later of the anniversary and age

60. Surviving spouse's benefits are 66.67 percent of the employee's benefit at the time of death.

Firefighters' Pension Plan

Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of creditable service

are entitled to receive an annual retirement beneht of one-half of the monthly salary attached to

the rank held in the fire service at the date of retirement. The monthly pension shall be increased

by one-twelfth of 2.5 percent of such monthly salary for each additional month of service over 20

years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75 percent of such monthly salary'

Employees with at least 10 years, but less than 20 years of credited service, may retire at or after

age 60 and receive a reduced retirement benefit ranging from 15 percent of final salary for l0
years of service to 45.6 percent for 19 years of service.
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Surviving spouses receive 100 percent of final salary for fatalities resulting from an act of duty,

or otherwise the greater of 54 percent of final salary or the monthly retirement pension that the

deceased firefighter was receiving at the time of death. Surviving children receive 12 percent of
final salary. The maximum family survivor benefit is 75 percent of final salary'

Employees disabled in the line of duty receive 65 percent of lural salary.

The monthly pension of a covered employee who retired with 20 or more years of service after

January 1, 1977, shalt be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement

and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55, by 3 percent of the amount of the pension

payable at the time ofthe increase.

Covered employees are required by ILCS to conhibute 9.455 percent of their base salary to the

Firefighters' Pension Plan. If an emptoyee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of
service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest.

For employees hired after January 1,2011, the annual retirement benefit is 2.5 percent of final
average salary for each year of service up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75 percent of such salary,

the normal retirement age is attainment of age 55 and completion of 10 years of service. Early
retirement age is attainment of age 50, completion of l0 years of service and early retirement

factor of 6 percent per yeax. The employee's accrued benefit is based on the employee's final

eight year average salary not to exceed $106,800 (as indexed). Cost of tiving adjustmentf are

simple increases, not compounded, of the lesser of 3 percent or 50 percent of Consumer Price

Index beginning the later of the anniversary date and age 60. Surviving spouse's benefits are

66.67 percent ofthe employee's benefits at the time ofdeath.

Membership of the Plans is as follows:
Police
Pension

55

Firefighters'
Pension

68
Retirees and beneficiaries

receiving benefits
Terminated plan members

entitled to but not
yet receiving benefits

Active vested plan members
Active nonvested plan members

Total

Summarv of Sisnificant Accountins Policies and Plan Asset Matters

The financial statements of the Plans are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Employee contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.

Employer contributions are recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide the

contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in

accordance with the terms of the Plan. All plan inveshnents are reported at fair value' Short-term

investments are reported at cost, which apgoximates fair value. Securities traded on a national

8

30
2t

127

I
51

l5

t22

B.
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exchange are valued at the last reported sales price. Investments without an established market

are reported at estimated fair value. Administrative costs are financed through investment

earnings.

C. Sisnificant Investments

There are no significant investments (other than those guaranteed or issued by the U.S.

government) in any one organization that represent 5 percent or more of the net position available

for benefits except for the following investments:

Police Pension Fund:
SPDR S&P Midcap 400
SPDR Trust Series

Firefighters' Pension Fund:
Thomburg tntl Value
SPDR Trust Series

Fundine Policv and Actuarial Assumptions

The City funds its contribution to the Plans through an annual tax levy. The lely amount is

actuariaily determinod as the annual contribution necessary to fund the normal cost, plus the

amount to amortize the unfunded accrued liability. Actuarial valuations are performed annually'

There are no material current year changes to the actuarial assumptions and benefit provisions.

Employer contributions have been determined as follows:

g 876,282
1.316.971

$2J93251

s 533,077
941.5s0

$lAtA-LL

D.

Actuarial valuation date

Employer contribution rate

Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Police
Pension

April30,20l3

42.'l60/o of covered
payroll

Entry-age normal

Market

Firefighters'
Pension

April 30,2013

59.87% of covered
payroll

Entry-age normal

Market
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E.

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Signifi cant actuarial assumptions:

(a) Investment rate of return*

(b) Projected salary increases*

(c) Cost of living adjustments

* Includes inflation at

Percentage of APC contributed:

Police
Pension

Level percentage of
payroll, closed

28 years

7.002 compounded
annually

5olo compounded
annually

Tier 1:3Yo per year,
compounded

Tier 2: Z'Yo per year,
simple

3o/o

Firefighters'
Pension

Level percentage of
payroll, closed

28 years

7.0o2 compounded
annually

50% compounded
annually

Tier 1: 3o/o per year,
compounded

Tier 2;2Yo per year,
simple

3%

s2,395,4s0
2,279,047
2,269,936

91.7%
92.9%
90.1%

$8,197,402
7,999,0t2
7,836,985

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Oblisation

Employer APC, percentage of APC contributed and the NPO are as follows. The NPO is the

cumulative difference between the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) and the contributions
actually made.

Year
Ending
April30.

2014
2013
20t2

2014
2013
2012

2014
2013
2012

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension

$2,238,219
2,t26,t97
2,073,464

94.0%
93.5%
95.0%

$5,583,86s
5,448,727
5,310,998



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 3 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AltD PENSION PLANS (Continued):

The City's APC and NPO are calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required conhibution

Annual pension cost

Contributions made

Increase in net pension obligation
Net pension obligation, beginning of year

Net pension obligation, end ofyear

F. Pension Financial Statements

Assets:
Cash and short-term investments
Receivables, less allowance for

uncollectible amounts:
Employee contributions
Employer contributions
Interest

lnvestments, at fair value:
Open-end mutual frrnds
Corporate securities
U.S. treasury and agency securities
Corporate bonds
State and local obligations

Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities:
Benefits and other payables

Net position held in trust
for pension benefits

Police
Pension

$2,103,081
381,41I

(246.273\

2,238,219

2.103.081

l3 5,138
5.448-727

$5-583-865

Firefighters'
Pension

s2,197,060
559,931

G-61I4D

2,395,450

2.t97.060

198,390
7.999.012

$8J97,402

The following is a combining statement of plan net position as of April30,2014:

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Totals

$ 1,446,013 $1,401,448 g 2,847,461

21,614
153,926
41,000

4,004,556
5,304,514
3,749,t27
2,290,056

406,746

77 ,417,552

194.598

$u222-9s4

-50-

14,186
225,7',14

34,792

35,800
379,700

75,792

3,052,075 7,056,631
1,063,579 6,368,093
2,610,394 6,359,521
1,385,190 3,675,246
213,715 620,461

9.451 9.457

10,010,610 27,428,162

230.048 424-646

$9J8Q@ $27-00Ur6



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 3 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS Al\lD PENSION PLANS (Continued):

The following is a combining statement of changes in plan net position for the year ended April
30,2014:

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Totals

Additions:
Contributions:

Employer
Employee

Total contributions

Investment income:
Net change in

fair value of investments
lnterest and dividends

Less: investment expenses

Net investment income

Total additions

Deductions:
Benefits
Refund of contributions
Adminishative expenses

Total deductions

Net increase

Net position held in trust for
pension benefits:

May 1,2013

April30, 2014

G. Funded Status and Fundine Prosress

The funded status ofthe Plans based on actuarial valuations performed as ofApril 30, 2013, is as

follows. The actuarial assumptions used to determine the funded status of the plans are the same

actuarial assumptions used to determine the employer annual pension contribution of the plans as

disclosed above in Note 3 D.

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratios (actuarial value of plan

assets / AAL)
Covered payroll (active plan members)

UAAL as a percentage ofcovered payroll

$2,23r,894 $2,394,084 $ 4,62s,978
523^141 365.013 888.154

2.755.A35 2.759.097 5-514-132

816,540
268.898

247,192 1,063,732
224.725 493.623

1,085,438 471,917 1,557,355

Gt!.11l) (60.676) Gl4,E L)

97t-263 411.241 1.382.s04

3,726.298 3.170.338 6.896.636

2,262,725 2,628,145 4,890,870
49,549 49,549
43.257 s0.295 935s2

2.355.531 2^678.440 5.033.971

r,370,767 491,898 1,862,66s

15.852.187 9.288.664 25.140.851

$u222954 S9JE0j62 $27-003-tt6

Police
Pension

$s3,641,749
r7,9s5,268
35,686,481

335%
4,917,819

725.7%

Firefighters'
Pension

$48,0s3,263
9,288,664

38,764,599

19.3%
3,669,527
t,0s6.4%

-51 -



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 3 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (Continued):

The schedules of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
following the notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the

actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

NOTE 4 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB):

Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the City provides post-employment health

care benefits for retired employees through a single employer defined benefit plan. The benefits, benefit

levels, employee contributions and any employer contributions are governed by the City and can be

amended by the City through its personnel manual and union contracts. The plan is not accounted for as a

trust fund, an irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the plan. The plan does not issue a

separate report. The activities of the plan are reported in the City's governmental and business-type
activities.

Benefits Provided

The City provides post-employment health care benefits to its retirees. To be eligibte for benefits,

an employee must qualifu for retirement under one of the City's retirement plans or meet Consolidated
Ominbus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) requirements.

All health care benefits are provided through the City's health plan. The benefit levels are the

same as those afforded to active employees. Benefits include genera-l inpatient and outpatient medical
services; mental, nervous, and substance abuse care; and prescriptions. Eligibility in the City sponsored

health care plan is not discontinued upon eligibility for federally sponsored health care benefits. The

retirees may continue on the City's health plan as a supplement to other plans for which the retirees are

eligible.

Membership

At April 30,2014, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but

not yet receiving them
Active vested plan members
Active nonvested plan members

Total

20

-0-
t66
76

262



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 4 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued):

Fundine Policv

The City negotiates the contribution percentages between the City and employees through the

union contracts and personnel policy. All retirees contribute 100% of the actuarially determined premium

to the plan (except for the Kankakee Environmental Services Utility retirees who contribute 20% of
premium for the first three years only), to cover the cost of providing the benefits to the current members

via the insured plan (pay as you go) which results in an implicit subsidy to the City as defined by the

GASB Statement No. 45. For the fiscal year ending April 30,2014 retirees contributed $136,951 and the

City contributed 595,141 toward the implicit subsidy. The City is not required to and currently does not

advance fund the cost of benefits that will become due and payable in the future. Active employees do

not contribute to the plan until retirement.

Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Oblieation

The City had its actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of April 30,2013. The net OPEB

obligation has been updated through April 30, 2014. The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of
annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation were as follows:

Year
Ending

April 30.

2014

2013

2012

Annual
OPEB
Cost

$308,400

366,387

367,658

$95,141

t45,422

t45,422

30.9%

39.7%

39.6%

Net OPEB
Obligation

$93 1,409

718,150

49'7,185

Percentage of
Employer Annual OPEB

Contributions Cost Contributed

The net OPEB obligation (NOPEBO) as of April 30,2014, was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation, end of year

$303,612
28,726

(23.93 8)

308,400
95.141

213,259
718.150

$93L409

-53



CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 4 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued):

Funded Status and Fundins Prosress

The funded status of the plan as of April30,2014 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liabilitv (AAL)

Actuarial value of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAl)

Covered payroll (active plan members)

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$4,352,020

-0-

4,3s2,020

0.0%

t4,839,26t

29.3%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and

assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include

assumptions about future employment, mortatity, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined

regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject

to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made

about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether

the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued

liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan

as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and historicat pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan

members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed

to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent

with the long-term perspective ofthe calculations.

ln the April 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The

actuarial assumptions included a 4.00%o investment rate of retum (net of administrative expenses) and an

annual healthcare cost trend rate starting at 8.00 % initially and 6.00Yo ultimately. Both rates include a
3.00% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the City has not advance

funded its obligation. The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level

percentage of projected payroll on a open basis. The remaining amortization period at April 30, 2013,

was 30 years.



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE5.CAPITALASSETS:

A summary of changes in capital assets of the
April 30, 2014 is as follows:

City and its component units for the year ended

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being
depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets

not being depreciated

Capital assets being
depreciated:

Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Land improvements
Infrastructure

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Land improvements
Infrastructure

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Total capital assets, net

$ s,268,162
t.046.678

6.314.840

t4,282,745
780,803

4,476,068
3,s30,55 8

79.720.293

102.790.467

1,690,371
574,707

2,632,633
1,376,050

17.819.621

24.093.382

78.697.085

$ 85CI1_L925

Balance
May l,

2013 Additions

$ 427.759

427.759

Deletions

s6,022

56.022

Balance
April 30,

2014

5,268,162
r.474.437

6.742.599

14,282,745
851,945

4,555,988
3,s30,55 8

79.720.293

102.94t.s29

1,886,148
679,018

2,869,989
1,540,617

18.808.458

25.784.230

77.t57.299

$ 83.E99.89E

-0-

7t,t4l
135,942

Depreciation expense for govemmental
to functions as follows:

General govemment
Public safety
Highways and streets

s6,022

56.022

for the year ended April 30,2014 was charged

$ 387,190
370,842
988.837

$1J4869

207.083

195,777
104,309
293,378
164,568
988.837

1.746.869

(1.539.786)

$(1JL2-02Z)

-0-

$ -0-

-55



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)r

The beginning balance of the capital assets reported for the Kankakee Environmental Services

Utility was restated to reclassis, a project in the amount of $24,028 from infrastructure assets to
construction in progress.

Balance
May 1,

2013
(Restated)

Business-type activities:
Kankakee Environmental Services Utility:

Capital assets not being
depreciated:

Land S 642,263
Construction in progress 91 1.188

Total capital assets
not being depreciated 1,553,451

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Leasehold improvements
Infrastructure

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Leasehold improvements
Inlrastructure

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets

being depreciated, net

Total capital assets, net

Motor Vehicle Parking:
Capital assets not being

Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment
Vehicles
Land improvements

TotaI capital assets

being depreciated

$1.443.808

82,384
18,555

73t.992

832.93t

Additions Deletions

Balance
April 30,

20t4

11,965,986
3,399,725
2,660,784

289,696
30.138.048

48.454.239

5,820,233
2,661,229
1,799,662

82,032
1 1.889.094

22.2s2.250

26.201.989

s27J55A4O

$ 238.689

238.689

95,486
93,483

286.223

475.192

243,198
151,979
183,887

7,019
70t.627

1 .287 .7 t0

$205.146

205.146

$ 642,263
944.731

1.586.994

11,96s,986
3,495,211
2,',|54,267

289,696
30.424.271

48.929.431

6,063,431
2,813,208
1,983,549

89,051
12.590;t2t

(812.s 18)

(51i-W)

-0- 23.539.960

-0- 2s.389.471

$205.146 $26.915A55

$1.443.808

82,384
18,55s

731.992

832.931-0- -0-



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLTNOIS
NOTES TO FINAI{CIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

Less accumulated depreciation:
Equipment
Vehicles
Land improvements

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Total capital assets, net

Component Units:
Kankakee Public Library:

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
Leasehold improvements

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Equipment
Leasehold improvements

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets, net

Special Service Area No. 1 :

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements

Total capital assets, net

Additions Deletions

Balance
May 1,

2013

$ 82,384
18,555

731.992

832.931

-0-

$L143-808

$7,7s8,883
59,489

294.670

8.113.042

1,445,394
59,489
91.996

t.596.879

$61_15-15l

$1.126.132

305.978

$ 820-ts,1

$&

-0-

$+

-0-

99,527

t4.734

t14.261

$(11426r)

54.918

$ (s4,9,13)

Balance
April 30,

2014

$ 82,384
18,5s5

731.992

832.93r

-0-

$L443.E0E

$7,7s8,883
59,489

294.670

8.113.042

1,544,921
59,489

I06.730

1.71 1,140

$6J0u02

$1.126.132

360.896

$ 7t52)5

-0-

$ -0-

-0-

$ -0-

$ -0-

-0-

$ -0-

$ -0-

-0-

$ -0-

-57 -



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO TINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30' 2014

NOTE 6 - INTERFTJI\D RECEWABLES AND PAYABLES:

Interfund balances at April 30,2014 consisted of the following:

Primary govemment:
G overnmental funds:

Due to General Fund from:
Capital Projects Fund
Kankakee Environmental Services Utility
Nonmajor governmental funds

Total

Component units:
Library

Due to Capital Projects Fund from:
Nonmajor govemmental funds

Due to nonmajor govemmental funds from:
Nonmajor govemmental funds
General Fund
Kankakee Environmental Services Utility

Total

Component units:
Library

Enterprise funds:
Due to Kankakee Environmental Services Utility from:

Nonmaj or governmental funds

Component units:
Due to Special Service Area #l from:

Capital Projects Fund

$ 2,750
52,906

654.048

$709J04

$61586

$12L344

$ 703,362
51 1,590

2.086

$lzuCIrS

sxz&A

$261-9i5

s91L

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that l) interfund goods and services

are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system,

and 3) payments between firnds are made. All these interfund balances are expected to be repaid within
one year,

-58-



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINAIYCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 7 - ACCOI]NTS RECETVABLE:

An analysis of the coltectibility of accounts receivable for sewer, garbage collection, Community

Development Agency loans and other receivables was performed as of April 30,2014. The analysis

shows ihat the colleition of approximately $394,024 of these accounts is doubtfut. An allowance for

uncollectible accounts for this amount has been recorded. At April 30, 2014, the City has deferred

economic development loans receivable of $537,705 since they will not be available to pay curent period

expenditures. All other receivables are scheduled for collection during the fiscal year ending April 30,

2015.

Accounts receivable at April 30,2014, are as follows:

Govemmental activities I

Trash collection
Franchise fees

Economic development loans
Other receivables

Total

Less: allowance for doubtful
accounts

Accounts receivable, net

Business-type activities :

Sewer charges
Garbage collection

Total

Less: allowance for doubtful
accounts

Accounts receivable, net

General
Fund

$ 160,024
99,285

1.312.297

1,571,606

(160.024)

$L[L582

Kankakee
Environmental

Services
Utility

$1;729,673
455.015

2,184,688

G6-aAS)

$2J38-688

Nonmajor
Govemmental

Funds

g'134,443

413

734,856

0_88&q)

$ 546,856

$3,300,958
tt4,t99
I17,900
421,536

19,938
36.993

$4.011.524

Total
Govemmental

Activities

s 160,024
99,28s

734,443
1.312.710

2,306,462

G48.424)

$1-958-438

NOTE 8 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES:

The following receivables are included in due from other governmental agencies:

Govemmental activities :

General Fund:
Sales tax
Local use tax
State replacement tax
Income tax
Gaming tax
Various grants

Total General Fund

-59-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2014

NOTEE - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES (Continued):

Nonmaj or governmental funds :

CDBG Grant
Lead Grant
Home Grant
Home Modification Grant
Motor Fue[ Taxes

Total nonmajor govemmental funds

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities :

Kankakee Environmental Services Utility:
Kankakee Township

s 76,957
25,542
41,979
9,924

170.151

324-553

s4335-A17

$24JA

NOTE 9 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS:

The special assessments receivable of 51,567,426 results from the creation of Indian Meadows

Special Tax Assessment District for infrastructure costs. The special assessments are recorded when

levied. Deferred assessments consist of unbilled special assessments which are liens against the property

benefited. $1,398,000 of the special assessments receivable is not expected to be collected within one

year.

NOTE 10. LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS:

A summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended April 30, 2014 is as follows:

Balance

May 1. 2013

Primary Govemment:
Govemmental activities:

Bonds Payable:

Generalobligationbonds 960,842j27
Premium on bond proceeds 779.025

Total bonds payable 61,621,352

Installment notes 2,286,919

Unfunded employer pension

contributions
Compensated absences

Net other post employment

benefit obligation

Total longterm debt

Increases Decreases

Balance Due within
April 30.2014 One Year

13,963,568

5,119,500

525.513

$E116852

$2,63s,000

36.064

2,67t.064

445,028

1,484,500

228.2t6

$4.828308

$ 9,790,000

201.209

9,991,209

316,899

1,3 80,000

70.404

$11J5&5_12

$s3,687,327
613.880

54,301,207

1,970,020

14,408,596

5,224,000

683.32s

$?6J!1J48

$4,462,672

4,462,672

329,604

I,834,000

s6,626.276



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued):

Business-type activities:

Kankakee Environmental Services Utility:
Bonds Payable:

Revenue bonds S

Discount on bond proceeds

Total bonds payable

Note payable

Compensated absences

Net other post employment
benefit obligation

Total long-term debt

Component units:
Capital lease obligations

8,31 5,000
(10.068)

8,304,932

4,350,000

774,300

192,637

$13-62L869

52J28.U5

$5,720,000
(s4.628)

5,665,172

718,300

55.447

$6J39.119

$+

$ (2.934)

(2,934)

4,350,000

409,900

$4J15,956

$120133

$14,035,000
(61.762)

t3,973,238

-0-

I,082,700

248.084

$uJa4@

$2"607.863

$46s,000

465,000

378,000

$!43@

$!26@

Long-term liabilities other than debt typically have been liquidated
Kankakee Environmental Services Utility.

Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

General Oblisation Bonds

The City has issued several general obligation serial bonds
to provide for the costs of the City's various public
infrastructure and capital improvement progftlms.

General obligation bonds at April 30, 2014, consist of
the following:

$9,555,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
September 15, 2006, due in annual installments
on January 1 ofamounts ranging from $40,000 to
51,125,000, through January 2025, plus interest
ranging from 3.50% to 5.25%, payable
semiannually.

$5,405,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
August 2, 2007, due in annual installments on
January I of amounts ranging from $110,000 to
$700,000, through January 2027, plus interest
ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%, payable
semiannually.

in the General Fund and

Govemmental
Aotivities

$7,71s,000

-61-

3,765,000



CITY OF KANKAIGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINAi\CIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued):

$1,422,327 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
August 2, 2007, due in annual installments on
January 1 of amounts ranging from $267,496 to
5402,672, through January 2018, plus interest
ranging from 4 .25Yo to 4 .360/o, payab le annually.

$6,930,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
June 1, 2008, due in annual installments on
January I of amounts ranging from $315,000 to
$1,075,000, through January 2024, phts interest
ranging from 3.45% to 5.25% payable
semiannually.

$10,180,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
April 15, 2009, due in annual installments on
January I of amounts ranging from $80,000 to
$1,025,000 through January 2029, plus interest
ranging from 2.30% to 5.00% payable
semiannually.

$14,905,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
April 15, 2009, due in annual installments on
January 1 of amounts ranging from $35,000 to
$2,275,000, through January 2025, plus interest
ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% payable
semiannually.

$5,000,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
April 27 , 201 1, due in annual installments on
January 1 of amounts ranging from $105,000 to
$955,000 through January 2025, plus interest
ranging from 2.50% to 490% payable
semiannually.

$370,000 City of Kankakee bonds dated April 27,
2011, due in a single installment on January l,
2020, plus interest of 4.10% payable
semiannually.

$1,310,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
April 27,2011, due in annual installments on
January 1 of amounts ranging from $255,000 to
$365,000 through January 2015, plus interest
ranging from 2.00% to 3.00% payable
semiannually.

Govemmental
Activities

$1,422,327

6,930,000

9,850,000

6,120,000

4,895,000

370,000

62-

255,000



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued):

Governmental
Activities

$2,645,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
March 13, 2012, ilte in annual installments on
January I of amounts ranging from $80,000 to
$465,000, through January 2019, plus interest
ranging from 2.00% to 2.50% payable
semiannually.

$3,915,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
October ll,2012, due in annual installments on
January I of amounts ranging from $20,000 to
$535,000, through January 2024, p1'ts interest
ranging from 2.00% to 2.90% payable
semiannually.

$3,790,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
November 1,2012, due in annual installments on
January 1 of amounts ranging from 100,000 to
1,820,000 through January 2020 plus interest
ranging from 2.00% to 3.00% payable
semiannually.

$2,635,000 City of Kankakee serial bonds dated
December 23, 2013, due in annual installments
on January 1 of amounts ranging from $120,000
to $620,000 through January 2024 phts interest
ranging from 2.00% to 3.95% payable
semiannually.

$ 2,17s,000

3,895,000

3,660,000

Total general obligation bonds

2.635.000

53,687,327

613.880

$54,30L207

Unamortized premium on bond issuance

Total general obligation bonds payable

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds outstanding at April 30,2014,
are as follows:

Year Ending
April 30.

2015
2016
2017
2018
20t9
2020-2024
2025-2029

Govemmental Activities
Princioal lnterest Total

I 4,462,672
4,645,125
5,002,496
4,8t7,034
5,245,000

21,125,000
8.390.000

s53.687.327
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$ 2,188,827
2,064,865
1,929,250
t,899,475
t,502,984
4,682,895

872.103

$15.140J19

$ 6,651,499
6,709,990
6,931,746
6,716,509
6,747,984

2s,807,895
9.262.103

s68,8A;726



NOTE 10 - LONG-TERMDEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued):

CITY OF KAI\TKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

lnstallment Notes

Non-interest bearing $200,000 loan dated February 22,2005, from
the Illinois Finance Authority for the purchase of a fire truck,
payable in twenty annual installments of $10,000, commencing
on November 1, 2005 through November 1,2024.

$2,876,532 general obligation bank note, dated January 30, 2008,
secured by the full faith, credit and resources of the City,
payable in l0 annual installments of$352,500, including interest
at 4.l4Vo, through January 1, 201 8.

$500,000 Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Section 108

loan dated February 27, 2008, secured by current and future
CDBG funding allocations. The loan is payable in a one time
payment of $500,000 on December 2017, plus interest paid
semi-annually at 1.64%o.

Total installment notes

Govemmental
Activities

$1r0,000

1,360,020

500.000

$D70-020

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term installment loans outstanding at April 30,
2014, are as follows:

Year Ending
April 30.

2015
2016
2017
2018
20t9
2020-2024
2025

$ 329,604
342,836
356,615
870,96s

10,000

50,000
10.000

$1p7!-020

$ 64,533
51,301
3',7,522

19,058

s 394,137
394,137
394,137
890,023

10,000

50,000
10.000

Govemmental Activities
Principal Interest Total

s172-4r4 s2-142-434
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued):

Capital Lease Obligation

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition ofthe library
building. This lease agreement quatifies as capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been

recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments in the accompanying financial

statements. The fotlowing is a schedule of capital lease obligations and the minimum lease payments:

Component Unit -
Library

$7,758,882 lease, plus interest of $2,628,206,
due in monthly installments of $21,185,
including interest, t}rough October 2028.

Payable from Kankakee Public Library
Fund, a component unit. $2-607t63

The following is an analysis ofthe assets recorded under capital leases at April 30,2014.,

Classes of Property

Component Units - Library:
Buildings

Accumulated
Cost Depreciation

$ZJ5!JS1 $t554J2t

Net Book
Value

$6J$-952

Future minimum lease payments for all capital lease obligations:

Year Ending
Aoril 30.

2015
2016
2017
2018
20t9
2020-2024
2025-2029

Total minimum lease payments

Less: amount representing
interest

Present value of minimum lease
payments

Component Unit -
Library

$ 2s4,215
254,2r5
254,215
254,215
254,215

1,27r,076
r.122.784

3,664,935

o.951J,2)

$ 2-607-863
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CITY OF KAITKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

Unfunded Employer Pension Contributions

Cumulative difference between the annual pension cost and the
contributions funded for the Police Pension Fund

Cumulative difference between the annual pension cost and the

contributions funded for the Firefighters' Pension Fund

Cumulative difference between the annual required pension cost and
the contributions funded for Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Total unfunded employer pension contributions due from
General Fund

Govemmental
Activities

$ s,s83,86s

8,19'7,402

62'1.329

$14tCI8196

Business-type
Activities

Govemmental
Activities

Compensated Absences

Vested portion of the vacation and sick
leave and other employee benefits which
are expected to be paid from the
governmental funds and enterprise
funds.

Net Other Post Employment Benefits

Cumulative difference between the
actuarially determined annual other post
employment benefit cost and
contributions made for the governmental
funds and enterprise funds.

Revenue Bonds

$5224J0{L $1J82J00

$683J5 $248*0&1

Details of the revenue bond indebtedness of the City's Environmental Services Utility Fund at

April 30' 2014' are as follows: 
Business-type

Activities
$4,000,000 Sewer Utility serial bonds dated

December 1, 2009, due in annual installments
on May 1 of amounts ranging from $220,000 to
$385,000, through May 1,2024, plus interest at
rates ranging from 2.00o/o to 5.80%, payable
semiannually. $3,325,000



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2014

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued):

52,700,000 Taxable Sewer Utility serial bonds
dated December 2, 2010, due in annual
installments beginning on May 1, 2022 of
amounts ranging from $300,000 to $330,000,
through May 2025, with a final single payment
of $1,440,000 due on May 1,2030, plus interest
at rates ranging from 5.35% to 5.75Yo, payable

semiannually.

$2,740,000 Sewer Utility serial bonds dated

December 2, 2010, due in annual installments
on May 1 of amounts ranging from $15,000 to
$290,000, through May 2022, plus interest at

rates ranging from 2.00%o to 3.90Yo, payable
semiannually.

$2,170,000 Taxable Sewer Utility serial bonds
dated August 6, 2013, due in annual
installments on May 1 of amounts ranging from
$215,000 to $285,000, through May 2025, plus

interest at rates ranging from 2.91%o lo 5.l3oh,
payable semiannually.

$3,550,000 Taxable Sewer Utility serial bonds

dated August 6, 2013, due in annual
installments on May 1 of amounts ranging form
$95,000 to $460,000, through May 2034, plus

interest at rates ranging from 4.38Yo to 4.88Yo,
payable semiannually.

Total revenue bonds

Less: Unamortized discount on bond
issuance

Total revenue bonds payable

Business-type
Activities

$ 2,700,000

2,290,000

2,170,000

3.550.000

14,035,000

(61.762)

$3DBAB
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NOTE l0 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued):

Debt service on the above revenue bonds payable at April 30,2014, are as follows:

Business-Type Activities
Principal Interest Totat

$ 465,000 $ s89,788 $ 1,054,788
480,000 642,685 1,122,685
500,000 625,295 I,t25,295
730,000 606,017 1,336,017
750,000 s78,798 1,328,798

4,280,000 2,371,332 6,651,332
2,930,000 1,322,571 4,2s2,571
3,440,000 456,744 3,896,744
460.000 22.425 482.425

Year Ending

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
202s-2029
2030-2034
2035

$14-035.000 $7215-655 $2L250.655

Revenue bond ordinances of the Kankakee Environmental Services Utility require that certain

reserve accounts be maintained at designated minimum dollar amounts or that specific monthly transfers
be made to such accounts. The following shows such required reserve balances and the amounts actually
reserved at April 30, 2014 in the Utility:

Reouired Actual
Surplus
(Deficit)

$ 991,240 $ 280,71s
7,567,914 (364,6t7)
500,000 -0-
673.843 (184.ss1)

vJ329e1 $(268J53)

Activity in the reserve accounts during the year ended April 30, 2014 was as follows:

Operation and maintenance
Bond reserve
Reserve and replacement
Bond and interest

Restricted balance as of May 1, 2013
Additions to restricted balance
Revenue bond interest

Restricted balance as ofApril 30,2014

$ 710,525
1,932,53r

500,000
858.394

$4,00L450

$1,993,063
1,943,340
(203.406)

$3J_32991

The reserve account balances are represented in the Utility as restricted cash and investments. At
April 30, 2014, the above amounts were sufficient to meet the minimum balance or reserye account

transfer requirements of the revenue bond ordinance.

The Utility covenants in the bond ordinance to establish, maintain and collect at all times fees,

charges and rates for the use and service of the system, sufficient at all times to pay operating and

maintenance costs, to pay the principal of and interest on all outstanding revenue bonds of the City which
by their terms are payable solely from the revenues, to provide net revenues in each fiscal year in the

amount of not less than 120 percent of the current debt service requirement for all outstanding bonds for
such fiscal year, and to the extent necessary after the application of the net revenues available

pursuant to the rate covenant described in this paragraph, such additional amounts as may be required to
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April 30,2014

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued):

provide an adequate depreciation fund, and to provide for the creation and maintenance of the respective
reserve accounts described above. "Current Debt Service Requirement" as used in this paragraph means

the amount required to be credited under the bond ordinance to the bond and interest account in a given
fiscal year. "Revenues" as defined in the bond ordinance and as used in the covenant calculation does not
include proceeds from the sale of capacity. During the year ended April 30,2014, the Utility did comply
with this rate covenant. The covenant calculation is included on page 113.

Required Bond Indenture Disclosures

Insurance Coverage - The plant, buildings and contents of the Kankakee Environmental
Services Utility were insured at April 30, 2014 for $8,557,296 under the City of Kankakee
master policy with the Liberty Mutual Insurance Company. The Utility is also included on the
master umbrella liability policy with the Chubb Insurance Company and on the City's general

liability and auto liability policies with Governmental Insurance Exchange. The master policy
includes the following significant coverages:

Policv limits
$3 1,666,736

10,000,000
6,000,000

Customer and Flow Information - Most of the customers have a water meter; the number of
unmetered customers is negligible. As of April 30,2014 there were 7,729 customers providing
sewer charge revenue as follows:

Number of
Customers

7,683
46

Total 1-1D

User Rates - The rates in effect at April 30,2014 were as follows:

Flow charge (100 cu. ft.)

BOD surcharge (lb.)

SS surcharge (lb.)

FOG surcharge (1b.)

GW contaminated (100 cu. ft.)

Fixed charge (month)

IPP charges

Outstanding Bond Issues - 2009 bonds due May 1,2011 to 2019 are noncallable in advance of
maturity. 2009 bonds due May 1,2020 to 2024 are callable on or after May l, 2019. 2010A
and B bonds due May l, 201 I to 2019 are noncallable in advance of maturity. 20104 and B
bonds due May 1,2020 to 2030 are callable on or after May 1,2020.20134 bonds due May l,
2017 to2025 are noncallable in advance of maturity.2013B bonds due May 1,2014to2022
are noncallable in advance of maturity. 20138 bonds due May 1,2023 to2034 are callable on
or after May 1,2023.

Properly damage
General liability
Auto liability

Residential and commercial
lndustrial and institutional

Sewer Charses

$ 4,064,780
7.437.482

$1L502262

s 4.7s

.40

.40

.40

10.00

30.00

t0%
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NOTE 11 . PROPERTY TAXES:

Property taxes ale levied each year on all taxable real property located in the City. The City must

file its tax lely ordinance by the last Tuesday of December ofeach year. The owner of real property on

January I (lien date) in any year is liable for taxes of that year. Property taxes are collected by the

Kankakee County Collector who remits to the City its share of the collection. Taxes levied for calendar

year 2012 were due, payable, and collected in two installments in June and September 2013.

Revenue for property taxes is recognized in the govemmental funds in the year for which the

taxes are intended to finance and the funds are available. The City considers property tax revenue to be

available if it is collected during the current year or within 60 days after year end. Property taxes levied
for calendar ye ar 2012 were intended to finanoe the fiscal year 2014 expenditures. Accordingly, the City
recognized revenue during the year ended April 30, 2014 for collections from the calendar year 2012levy
if it was received by lune 30,2014. Property taxes levied for calendar year 2013, which will be collected
in fiscal year 2015, are recorded as receivables and unavailable revenue as of April 30,2014. The 2014

tax levy, which attaches as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1,2014, has not been rscorded as

a receivable as ofAprit 30,2014, as the tax has not yet been levied by the City and will not be levied until
December 2014, and therefore, the levy is not measurable at April 30,2014.

NOTE 12 . INTERFUND TRANSFERS:

Fund Transferred
From

General Fund

Kankakee Environmental
Services Utility $1,000,000

Fund Transferred To

Kankakee
General Environmental Nonmajor
Fund Services Utilitv Governmental Total

$330,000 $ 330,000

$3,276,279 4,276,279

1.998.139 1.998.139

$5214AL8 $6-604J.18

Nonmajor Governmental

$r,000*000 $330-000

The following paragraphs provide information conceming the various interfund transfers for the

year ended April 30, 2014:

The General Fund transferred $330,000 to the Kankakee Environmental Services Utility to
provide for the operations of the Department of Public Works.

The Kankakee Environmental Services Utility made the following transfers:

Transferred $1,000,000 to the General Fund to provide for payments in arrears to the

Debt Service Fund for the 1992A General Obligation Bond, provided for by the General

Fund.

Transferred $3,276,279 to the Debt Service Fund to provide for bond and interest

retirement.
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NOTE 12 - INTERFIIID TRANSFERS (Continued):

The following Tax Increment Financing Districts transferred funds to the Debt Service Fund to
provide for bond and interest retirement:

Tax Increment Financing District No. I

Tax Increment Financing District No. 5

Tax Increment Financing District No. 6

Tax Increment Financing District No. 7

Tax Increment Financing District No. 8

$450,150

194,294

225,655

41,608

633,993

The General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 Fund transferred $452,439 to the General Obtigation
Bonds, Series 2013 Fund from its excess cash upon the refunding of the 2005 bonds'

NOTE 13. SEGMENT INFORMATION:

Kankakee Environmental Services Utility - Accounts for the operation of the

City sewer and solid waste systems. The City has issued revenue bonds to
support its sewer utility activities. The fund financial statements report the

Utility as a major fund. All segment report requirements are included in the
fund fi nancial statements.

NOTE 14 - FEDERAL PROGRAM AUDITS:

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, principal of which are the

Community Development Block Gran! HOME Grants, Lead-based Paint Hazard Control Program and

various other public safety grant programs. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the

appropriate grantor govemment. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant

program regulations, the City may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of April 30,

2014, significant amounts of grant expenditures have not been audited by the grantors, but the City
believes that disallowed expenditures discovered in subsequent audits, if any, will not have a material

effect on any ofthe individual funds or the overall financial position ofthe City.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTST

Lease Commitments

In July 1988, the City leased the Kankakee Dam for 60 years from the lllinois Department of
Conservation for the purpose of constructing, operating and maintaining the Hydroelectric Plant. The

annual lease payment is based on the number of kilowatt hours of electricity produced by the

Hydroelectric Plant. The annual lease payment for the year ended April 30,2014 was $ 1,967.
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April 30,2014

NOTE 15 - COMIVIITMENTS (Continued):

Kankakee Environmental Services Utility entered into a lease agreement with Spaoe Center

Chicago, Inc. on October 5,2001 to lease 34,922 sqtnre feet ofoffice and warehouse space. The lease

was scheduled to commenc€ on December 15, 2001, and continue for a period of 240 months. The actual

commencement date was April 2002. Rent consists of a base amount plus additional rent composed of
operating expenses, amortization of tenant improvements and Common Area Maintenance charges. Rent

expense for the year ended April 30, 201 4 was $ I 02,470.

Kankakee Environmental Services Utility entered into a lease agreement with the Village of
Manteno on February 20,2006, to provide the means and use of the City's ability to transport and treat
wastewater generated by the Village of Manteno and provide for the compensation by Manteno for the

rights to utilize the collection and treatment capaclty owned by Kankakee. The Village of Manteno will
lease the transport and treatment capacity of 1,000,000 gallons per day, (365,000,000 galtons annually)
fromtheCityforaperiodof20yearsforasumof$150,000peryear. Theannualleasepaymentreceived
for the year ended April 30,2014 was $ I 50,000.

Kankakee Environmental Services Utility entered into an intergovemmental agreement with the

Village of Chebanse on April 5, 2004, to connect to the City's sewer system for providing sanitary sewer

service for the residents of Chebanse. For the year ended April 30, 2014, lhe Utility received $93,069
based upon the number of connections established for the residents of Chebanse'

Construction Commitments

The City has several active construction projects as of April 30,2014. These projects and the

City's commitment with contractors at April 30,2014 are as follows:

Proj ect

Governmental activities:
Traffic camera project
Martin Luther King Park

Total

Business-type activities :

Stone Street lift station
Sanitary sewer project

Remaining
Soent-to-date Commitment

Total

$ 43,s30
342.366

$385-E96

$712,893
3 1.155

$144-048

$65,000
20.052

$85-012

$ 9,210
1.050

s10260
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NOTE 16 . II{Vf,STMENT IN JOINT VENTT]RE:

Kankakee River Metropolitan Agency

Effective May I, 1996, pursuant to a Municipal Joint Sewage Treatrnent Agency
Intergovemmental Agreement, the City of Kankakee and the villages of Aroma Park, Bourbonnais, and

Bradley agreed to the establishment of an independent agency with authority to operate the Regional
Wastewater Treatrnent Facility (RWTF), raise revenue and exercise other powers as necessary. The
independent agency created is the Kankakee River Metropolitan Agency (KRMA). The agreement
requires a seven member board comprised of four persons appointed by the Mayor of the City of
Kankakee and one person appointed by the Mayor of each village. A majority of five affirmative votes is
required to modif, this agreement, modiff the methodology or the amount of user charges, approve bond
issues or any appropriation in excess of $50,000 or to change the membership of the Agency. On
April22, 1999, KRMA acquired ownership of the RWTF.

As of April 30,2014, the City has recorded in the Kankakee Environmental Services Utility an

investment in the joint venture of $1,086,512 relative to its investment in KRMA and a due to joint
venture in the amount of $430,712. During the year ended April 30, 2014, KRMA billed the Utility
$4,525,499 for treatment charges.

Financial statements of I(RMA can be obtained from the City's accounting departrnent. Pertinent
financial information for the joint venture as of April 30,2014 is as follows:

Statement of net position:
Current assets
Restricted assets

Capital assets, net
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows
ofresources

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Total net position

Statement ofrevenues, expenses and changes in net position:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Other income (expense), net

Change in net position

Ownership percentage

Utility's share of change in net position
(equity interest in joint
venture income)

$ 3,468,349
1,007,320

61.844.489
66,320,158

540.897

66.861.055

7,629,450
s3.846.492
6t.475.942

$ 5J85Jr3

$10,923,841
(7,328,227)

(879.707)

2,7t5,907

63.44%
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NOTE 16 - IIIVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTIIRE (Continued):

An explosion at the facility on December 27, 2010, destroyed a building and certain plant
equipment. Before insurance proceeds arrived, KRMA required funding to facilitate repairs and

reconstruction work at its facility. Therefore, KRMA entered into an agreement with the City on July 19,

201 1, requiring the City to establish a $2,500,000 line of credit at a local bank on behalf of KRMA. This
agreement required KRMA to satisf any balance due on the line of credit and pay all costs incurred by
the City in establishing this tine of credit, and the maximum on the line of credit was extended to

$5,000,000 on January l7 ,2012. The line of credit note to the bank was paid off by April 30, 2014, with
City's General Fund contributing $1,125,000 towards the payment. KRMA reimbursed the Utility
$2,975,000 in principal payments on the line of credit during the year ended April 30, 2014 and

reimbursed General Fund $1,125,000 subsequent to April 30, 2014.

At April 30,2014, the interest payable on the line of credit was $2,078. Accordingly, the Utility
has recorded interest payable and a due fromjoint venture of$2,078 at April 30,2014.

As discussed in Note 21 below, the Kankakee Environmental Services Utility restated its net
position at May 1, 2013, in order to report its share of a prior period adjustment reported by KRMA. The

Utility recorded a $130,338 decrease in its investment in the joint venture (KRMA) as a result of this
adjustment.

Wi-Fi Kankakee. LLC

Effective May 15,2006, pursuantto a joint operating agreement, the City and Kankakee Daily
Journal (KDJ), a local newspaper company, formed a limited liability company named
Wi-Fi Kankakee,LLC (Wi-FD, with an equal ownership of 50 percent each for the City and KDJ. The
purpose of Wi-Fi is to design, acquire, establish, install, operate, maintain and own a system by which
authorized individual users (residents, businesses, visitors) may obtain and use, within the boundaries of
the City, wireless access to the internet. The agreement requires each item of Wi-Fi's income, gain, [oss,

deduction and credit be allocated equally to the City and KDJ.

As of April 30,2014, the City has recorded in the Environmental Services Utility an investment
in joint venture of $( 1 8,706) relative to its investment in Wi-Fi. A due from joint venture in the amount

of $35,184 is reported in the Environmental Services Utility from City paying for certain initial costs of
wi-Fi.

Audited financial statements of Wi-Fi are not available. At April 30,2014, the City has recorded
in the Environmental Services Utility an equity interest in joint venture income (loss) of Wi-Fi in the
amount of $(5,293).

NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT A]TID LITIGATION:

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City utilizes
conventional outside insurance to cover its exposure to such liabilities and worker's compensation claims
with standard retention levels. ln addition, a safety committee works at prevention activities to keep risk
exposure at a minimum level through employee education and monitoring of risk control activities. All
risk management activities are accounted for in the General Fund. Expenditures and claims are

recognized when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. In determining claims, events that might create claims, but for which none have been reported,

are considered. For insured programs there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage.

Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.
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NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT AIYD LITIGATION (Continued):

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Most recently, the City has been named in two

lawsuits in regards to its sales tax incentive agreements. See Note 18 for additional details about the

agreements. it e City has also been named in a lawsuit in regards to a contract for services dispute.

A'lthough the outcome of these lawsuits is presently not determinable, in the opinion of the City's

AttornJy and management, the resolution of these matters will not materially affect the financial

condition of the City or any of the individual funds. Therefore, the General Fund contains no provision

for estimated claims.

NOTE 18 - SALES TAX INCENTIVES:

The City has entered into various sales tax sharing agreements with several retail firms to

generate additional revenue for the General Fund. These tax sharing programs are based on the retail

irrm's willingness to site a purchasing and/or a sales approval ofhce within the boundaries of the City.

These agreernents provide for rebating a portion of the sales taxes generated on the transactions

conductJd within tire City by the partnering firm. During the fiscal year ended April 30,2014,

$10,625,086 in sales taxei wire rebated under these agreements. At April 30,2014, the City owed

$4,632,029 in sales tax incentives to various firms which are reflected in accounts payable in the General

Fund.

NOTE 19 - DEFICIT F[]ND BALANCE:

At April 30,2}l4,the foltowing tunds had a deficit fund balance. This deficit is not in violation

of any state law.

Tax lncrement Financing District No. 6 Fund

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2008

$303,403

16,980

NOTE 20 _ BOND REFUNDING:

Refunding of General Obligation Bonds. Series 2005

On December 12,2013, the City issued $2,635,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013C,

with an average interest rate of 3.27 percent from which all the proceeds were used to provide resources

to purchase U-.S. Government Securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of the-

current refunding of $2,600,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 with an average interest rate of
4.17 percent.

As a result of the above refunding, the refunded bonds were retired and the liability was removed

from the governmental activities column of the statements of net position. The reacquisition price

exceeded ihe net carrying amount of the old debt by $61,124. This amount is being netted against,the

new debt and amortized over the life of the refunded debt, which is the same as the life of the new debt

issued. The City decreased its total debt service requirements (difference between the cash flow

requirements to service old and new debt) over the next 11 years by $73,335 which resulted in an

economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payment on the old and new

debt) of$63,202.
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CITY OF KAI\KAI(EE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINAITCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2014

NOTE 20 - BOND REFIINDING (Continued):

Refunding of General Obligation Bonds. Series 2007 and 2009

On August 6,2013 the Kankakee Environmental Services Utility transferred $3,276,2'19 to the

Debt Service Fund to provide for bond and interest retirement, which was used to provide resources to
purchase U.S. Govemment Securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of the

advanced partial refundings of $505,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007A with an average

interest rate of 4.20 percent and $2,375,000 ofGeneral Obligation Bonds, Series 2009B with an average

interest rate of 3.50 percent.

As a result of the above refunding, the refunded bonds were retired and the liability was removed

from the govemmental activities column of net position. The amount placed with the debt escrow agent

exceeded the net carrying amount of the otd debt by $182,011. The amount is being amortized over tle
remaining lives of the refunded debt.

NOTE 21 _ RESTATEMENT OF FUND EQIIITY/NET POSITION:

The Kankakee Environmental Services Utility has restated net posifion as of May 1, 2013, to
coffect an understatement of its compensated absences liability in prior years and to adjust for its share of
bond issue costs no longer amortized due to KRMA's adoption of GASB No. 65.

Net position, May 1, 2013,
as previously reported

Restated for:
Compensated absences
Bond issue costs

Prior period adj ustment

Net position, May l, 2013, restated

Kankakee
Environmental

Services
Utilitv Fund

$2_J-!2UJ1

(214,300)
(130.338)

(344.638)

$NJlt$g

Business-Type
Activities

$22.698.013

(214,300)
(130.338)

(344J18)

$p35i:1s
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CITY OF KAI{KAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CIIANGES IN FTII{D BALANCE
BI]DGET AND ACTUAL

GENERALFI]}[D
For the year ended April 30,2014

Original

$ 10,792,450

1,299,000
140,000

400,000
26,460,017

420,s00

39,511,967

$ 10,792,450

1,299,000

140,000

400,000
26,460,01'l

420,500

39,511,967

10,507,602
t,332,011

149,t02
318,r52

20,836,804
13

527.882

33,67t,566

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (Under)

$ (284,848)

33,01 I
9,102

(81,848)
(5,623,213)

l3
r07,382

(s,840,401)

Budgeted Amounts

Final Actual

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses, permits and fees

Charges for services

Fines and penalties

lntergovemmental
lnterest

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures :

Curent:
General government

Public safety

Economic development
Debt Service:

Principal retirement

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers:

From other funds

To other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in flrnd balance

Fund balance, May l, 2013

Fund balance, April 30, 2014

10,000 10,000 10,000

38,939,322 38,939,322 33,539,479 (5,399,843)

572 645 572,645 132 087 (440,s58)

5,643,808
16,785,514

16,500,000

(330,000)

$ 242,645

5,643,808

t6,785,514
16,500,000

(33o,ooo)

242,645

5,575,8r 9

17,328,574

10,625,086

(67,989)

543,060
(5,874,914)

1,000,000

(33o,ooo) (330,000) (330,000)
1,000,000

-0-

670,000 1,000,000

802,087 _$ 559442

2,740,663

$ 3,s42,750



CITY OF KAI\KAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY IIIFORMATION .

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCTIEDI'LE
April 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - BIJDGETARY ACCOTJNTING:

The City adopts annual budgets for the General Fund, Band Fund, Illinois Municipal Retirement

Fund, Special Service Area No. 2, Special Service Area No. 3 and Special Service Area No. 5. For
Community Development Agency, Motor Fuel Tax, and Tax Increment Financing District funds, legally
authorized non-appropriated budgets are utilized to control expenditures on a project (or designated

purpose) basis and are carried forward each year until the project is completed or the grant award has

been expended. No legally adopted budgets are prepared for capital projects funds and debt service

funds. Expenditures for capital project funds are controlled on a project basis. Expenditures for debt

service funds are controlled through general obligation bonds' indenture provisions. Budgets for
enterprise funds serve as a spending guide for the City and do not constitute legally binding limitations.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to July 1, the City Council's budget committee submits to the City Council a proposed

operating budget for the fiscal year which had commenced May 1.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Prior to August 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage ofthe annual appropriation
ordinance. This ordinance places legal restrictions on expenditures at the department level
for the General Fund and at the fund level for the special revenue funds. Once approved,

the City Council may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are

required in estimated revenues and appropriations.

Revenues are budgeted by source. Although legal restrictions on expenditures are

established at the department level for the Ceneral Fund and at the fund level for special

revenue funds, effective administrative control over expenditures is maintained through the

establishment of more detailed line-item budgets such as personal services, materials and

supplies, capital outlay, contractual and debt service. Expenditures are budgeted by fund
and department and classified by function, activity and/or program. Management may

transfer budgeted amounts between line items within a department in the General Fund and

within a fund in the special revenue funds without the approval of the City Council.

All budgets are adopted on a modified accrual basis. Unencumbered and unexpended

appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

4.

5.



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDT]LE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

ILLINOIS MI]NTCIPAL RETIREMENT FUNI)
April 30' 2014

Actuarial

Valuation

Date

December 31,

2013

2012

20tr

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

Actuarial

Value of
Assets

(a)

$ 17,210,709

15,043,081

t5,490,536

t4,660,404

t4,047,445

t4,024,803

16,700,977

15,930,997

15,029,323

13,670,956

Actuarial Accrued

Liability (AAL)

--Entry Age

(b)

$ 22,012,290

20,703,923

20,485,433

19,042,169

l',l,989,344

17,070,490

16,228,325

16,04'7,t39

14,644,O35

t3,269,673

Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)

$ 4,801,581

s,660,842

4,994,897

4,38t,765

3,941,899

3,045,687

(472,6s2)

tt6,t42

(385,288)

(401,283)

Frmded

Ratio

(a/b)

78.19o/o

72.66%

75.62Yo

76.99%

78.09%

82.16%0

l02.9IYo

99.28Yo

1O2.63Yo

1O3.O2o/o

Covered

Payroll

(c)

$ 6,251,91s

s,9s0,270

5,818,925

5,8s3,164

5,695,408

5,655,415

5,448,065

s,300,924

5,175,03s

5,070,450

UAAL as a

Percentage of
Covered Payroll

((b-a)/c)

76.80%

95.14%

8s.84%

7 4.860/o

69.21o/o

53.85o/o

(8.68%)

2.19o/o

(7.4s%')

(7.et%)

On a market value basis, the actuarial value ofassets as ofDecember 31, 2013, is 520,643,144. On a market basis, the

funded ratio would be 93.78Yo.

-'19-



CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDTILE OF FIINDING PROGRESS

POLICE PENSION FI]NI)
April 30,2014

Actuarial

Valuation

Date

April 30,

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

Actuarial

Value of
Assets

(a)

$ 17,955,268

16,153,885

15,528,t78

13,443,659

11,900,298

12,940,099

t2,s67,316

tt,760,602

r1,178,72t

10,839,066

Actuarial Accrued

Liabitity (AAL)

--Entry Age

(b)

$ 53,641,749

50, t 12,894

47,690,763

40,648,322

35,675,4t0

33,676,363

3t,3',16,263

30,146,624

27,683,110

26,207,14t

Unfunded

AAL

OAAL)
(b-a)

$ 35,686,481

33,959,009

32,162,585

2'.7,204,663

23,775,r12

20,'736,264

18,808,947

18,386,022

16,504,389

15,368,075

Funded

Ratio

(a/b)

33.47y6

32.23%

32.56%

33.07o/o

33.360/o

38.420

40.05o/o

39.O1Yo

40.38Yo

4t.36%

Covered

Paytoll

$ 4,917,819

5,040,621

4,694,622

4,888,208

4,',|83,798

4,367,019

4,189,099

4,088,956

3,689,544

3,691,174

UAAL as a

Percentage of
Covered Payroll

((b-a)/c)

725.66Yo

6',13.7|vo

685.09o/o

556.54o/o

49699%

474.84o/o

449.000h

449.65Yo

447.33%

415.67Yo

-80-



CITY OF KAT\KAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCTIEDULE OF FfIIIDING PROGRESS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND
April 30, 2014

Actuarial

Valuation

Date

April 30,

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

Actuarial

Value of
Assets

(a)

$ 9,288,664

8,874,137

8,820,43s

8,284,059

7,716,547

10,207,462

10,578,956

10,236,367

to,147,331

i0,431,881

Actuarial Accrued

Liability (AAL)

--Entry Age

(b)

$ 48,0s3,263

44,289,836

4t,794,307

37,037,202

34,495,541

31,736,t97

30,541,100

29,094,938

27,661,230

26,119,708

Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)

(b-a)

$ 38,764,599

35,415,699

32,973,872

28,753,143

26,778,994

21,528,735

19,962,144

I 8,858,571

17,513,899

15,687,827

Funded

Ratio

(a/b)

19.33Yo

20.04o/o

21.l0Yo

22.370h

22.37o/o

32.t60h

34.64%

35.189/.

36.68%

39.94%

Covered

Palroll
(c)

$ 3,669,529

3,739,227

3,680,655

3,634,232

3,666,627

2,973,182

3,008,348

2,866,921

2,673,932

2,427,257

UAAL as a

Percentage of
Covered Payroll

((b-a)/c)

1056.39%

947.14%

895.87%

791.18%

730.34%

724.10%

663.56Yo

657 .YOYo

654.99Yo

646.32o/o
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDT]LE OF FTINDING PROGRESS

OTHER POST.EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
April 30,2014

Actuarial

Valuation

Date

April 30,

2014

2013

20t2

201 I

2010

2009

Actuarial

Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entry-Age

Normal
(b)

Unfunded
Actuarial

Accrued

Liability
(UAAL)
(b-a)

Active

Members'

Covered

Payroll

$ 14,839,261

14,730,1l8

14,194,202

14,375,604

14,t45,833

12,852,862

UAAL as a

Percentage of
Covered Paltoll

((b-a)/c)

29.33%

29.55%

41 .ll%o

40.59%

22.77o/o

25.060/o

Funded

Ratio

( a/b)

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

$ 4,3s2,020

4,352,020

5,83s,321

5,835,321

3,220,549

3,220,549

0.00% $ 4,3s2,020

0.00Yo 4,352,020

0.00Yo 5,835,321

0.00% s,835,321

0.00% 3,220,549

0.00% 3,220,549



CITY OF KAT{KAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCIIEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

POLICE PENSION FIIND
April 30,2014

Year
Ended

April 30,

2014
2013
2012
20tt
2010

2009
2008

2007
2006
2005

Annual
Required

Contribution
Actual

Contribution
Percentage

Contributed

$ 2,103,081

t,988,469
1,968,889

t,794,582
1,41',1,545

1,283,420
1,234,017

t,104,725
t,035,423

954,929

$ 2,103,081

t,988,469
1,968,889

t,794,582
1,417,545

t,283,420
t,234,017
t,104,725
t,035,423

954,259

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

99.93o/o



CITY OF KAI\KAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FI.MD
April 30,2014

Year
Ended

April 30,

2014
2013
2012
20tt
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

Annual
Required

Contribution
Actual

Contribution
Percentage

Contributed

$ 2,197,060
2,075,813
2,117,020
2,046,r32
1,518,183

1,400,985
t,303,662
t,222,675
t,082,677
l,085,807

s 2,197,060
2,075,813
2,117,020
2,046,132
1,518,183

1,400,985
t,303,662
t,222,675
r,082,677
1,090,926

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%

100.47o/o



CITY OF KANKAKEE, IT,INOIS
SCHEDI]LE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTIIER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFM PLAN

April 30,2014

Yem
Ended

April 30,

2014
2013
2012
20tt
2010
2009

Annual

Required

Contribution
(ARC)

$ 303,612
363,074
363,074
202,103
202,t03
204,545

Employer
Contributions

Percentage

Contributed

95,141
145,422
145,422

112,792

112,792

112,792

31.34o/o

40.05%
40.05Yo

55.81%
s5.81%
55.t4%
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COMBINING AND II\DIYIDUAL tr'T'ND FINA}ICIAL STATEMENTS
AND SI'PPLEMENTAL SCIIT'DIJLES



CTTY OF KAhIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
MAJORFT]IYDS

General Fund

Accounts for all financial resources traditionally associated with governments which are not
required to be accounted for in anottrer fund.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES AND COMPARISON TO BI]DGET

GENERAL FUND
For the year ended April 30, 2014
(With comparative totals for 2013)

Budgeted Amounts 2014
Actual

2013
ActualOriginal Final

Taxes:

Property taxes

Utility taxes

Total taxes

Licenses, permits and fees:

Business licenses

Other licenses

Franchise fees

Ambulance fees

Other permits and fees

Total licenses, permits and fees

Charges for services:

Environmental Services Utility
Community Development Agency
Fire Department

Police Department

Total charges for services

Fines and penalties

Intergovernmental:

State replacement income tax
State income tax
State sales tax
Local use tax
Grants fiom various

governmental agencies

Kankakee River Metropolitan Agency

Total intergovernmental

Interest

Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

6,622,450 6,622,450 $ 6,506,059 $ 6,116,420
4,001,543 4,072,7794.170.000 4_ l 70.000

to,792,450 10,792,450 10,507,602 10 189 199

120,000

30,000

300,000

500,000

r20,000
30,000

300,000
500,000

t28,825
13,502

362,437

509,670

123,775

?4,379

36t,693
538,059

54,827

100,000
3s,898
I 1-790

749,102 202,515

318,152 268,300

349.000 349.000 317,577 s79,260

1,299,000 1,299,000 1,332,011 166

r0,000
89,000
26,000

10,000

89,000
26,000

250
100,000
37,782
1t,07015.000 15.000

140.000 140.000

400.000 400.000

589,000
2,627,030

22,500,000

446,099

247,888

589,000
2,627,030

22,500,000
446,099

247,888

7t4,450
2,683,375

t6,514,574
483,125

391,280

50,000

681,707
2,481,649

18,584,185
Mt,9t4

595,336

50.000 50.000 50"000

26.460.01',7 26.460-017 20,836,804 22,834,791

39613

420,500 420,500

$ 39,s11,967 s 39,511,967

527,882

s 33,671,s66

442,126

$ 35,564,493
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OT EXPEI{DITURES AND COMPARISON TO BUDGET

GENERALFUND
For the year ended April 30, 2014
(With comparative totals for 2013)

Budgeted Amounts
Final

20r4
Actual

2013
Actual

General city government:

Council
Mayor
Commissions and boards

City clerk
Central services

Collection
computer operations

corporate counsel

Adjudication
City planning

Public buildings and grounds

Community promotion

Human relations
Group insurance

Liability and

workers compensation insurance

Unemployment tax
Transportation support
Other

Total general city govemment

Public safety - police department:

Administration and operations

Training
Records

Communications

Detention and custody

Pension contribution

Total public safety - police departrnent

Public safety - fire department:

Administration
Training
Alarm and communications system

Supplies and maintenance

Fire prevention
Fire fighting force
Emergency service

Pension contribution

Total public safety - flre departrnent

5,643,808 5,643,808 5,575,819 5,036,049

Original

$ 160,500
t02,250
27,200

130,600

484,000

25,800

30,s00
194,600
129,300

41,200
125,000

I 17,100

101,750

t,622,500

t,314,514
65,000

76,000
895,994

6,036,983
45,800

337,068

778,496
18,900

160,500 $
102,250
27,200

130,600

484,000
25,800
30,500

194,600

129,300

41,200
125,000

I 17,100

101,750

t,622,500

151,691

I r 9,834

20,519
141,679

324,539
27,404
47,088

21t,672
118,236

2,933
140,593

128,744

97,742

1,759,8'16

$ 151,958
I 19,561

25,563
125,890

247,517

22,t76
8,741

169,708
119,039

4,327

145,250

125,829

96,876
1,462,982

1,515,052

63,020
75,988

556,572

1,314,514

65,000

76,000
895,994

1,442,882
49,203

75,994
715.190

593,241
152,996

41,600
20,900

255,449
2,483,531

890,784

593,241
152,996
41,600
20,900

255,449
2,483,531

890,784

6,437,705
20,9t1

402,879
759,019

99,398

659,049
136,262

1,070
40,446

249,514
2,234,460

967,363

6,293,857
21,470

325,204
745,861

52,891

73s,562
123,960

6,1 18

246,814
2,t42,233

987,529

6,036,983
45,800

337,068
778,496

18,900

2.120.000 2.120.000 2,23t,894 2,103,081

9,337 ,247 9,337 ,247 9,95 1,806 9,542,364

2,2tr,000 2,211.000 2,394,084 2,197,060

6.649.501 6,649,501 6,682,248 6,439,276

(Continued)
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDI]LE OF E}PENDITTIRES AND COMPARISON TO BI]DGET

GENERALFT]I\D
(Continued)

For the year ended April 30' 2014

(With comparative totals for 2013)

Budgeted Amounts 2014
Actual

2013
ActualOriginal Final

Public safety - code enforcement:

Properlry maintenance

Building safety

Total public safety - code enforcement

Public safety - other:

Animal control
Crossing guards

Total public safety - other

Total public safety

Community development:

Residential rehabilitation

Economic development:
Sales tax incentives

Debt service:
Principal retirement

Total expenditures

$ 528,278 $ 528,278 $ 470,369 $ 515,157

174,988 174,988 154,278 151,784

703,266 703,266 624,647 666,941

30,000 30,000 19,095 25,145
47,10665,s00 65,s00

95,s00 95,500

50.778

69,873 72,251

16,785.5t4 16,785,514 17,328,574 16,720,832

2,262

16,500,000 16,500,000 10,625,086 12,670,343

10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

$ 38,939,322 $ 38,939,322 $ 33,519,479 _$ 34,439,486_
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NONMAJOR GOVERI{MENTAL FUI{DS

SPECIAL REVENUE FT.]i\tDS

Band Fund

Accounts for the revenues and expenditures related to the City's financial support provided to the

Kankakee Municipal Band.

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Accounts for the expenditures related to the state-administered retirement system which is available to
general service employees and which is financed through taxation and contributions from employees, and

the City (employer) FICA, Medicare, and state unemployment ta-res, a[I of which are financed through

taxation.

Special Service Area No. 2

Accounts for the revenues and expenditures related to the maintenance and repairs of omamental street

lights in the fuverview Historic District.

Special Service Area No. 3

Accounts for the revenues and expenditures related to the Coachlight Square lighting improvement

project which was financed through local borrowing and property taxes.

Special Service Area No. 5

Accounts for the revenues and expendifures of maintenance and repairs to the str€et and roadway

infrastructure in the East Side Business District.

Community Development Asency

Accounts for the revenues and expenditures of the Community Development Block Grant Program and

various other federal grant programs.

Tax Increment Financins Districts Nos. 1. 5. 6. 7 and 8

TIF Districts Nos. l, 5, 6,7 and 8 are trust funds established to finance redevelopment project costs in

connection with various "blighted redevelopment project areas" throughout the City. The project areas are

redeveloped through the use of incremental property tax revenues generated by related redevelopment

projects.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund

Accounts for the expenditures related to state-approved projects which are financed from the local share

ofthe state gasoline tax as collected and distributed by the State oflllinois.



CITY OF KAIIKAI(EE, ILLINOIS
NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FI]I\DS

DEBT SERYICE FUIIDS

General Oblieation Bonds

Each series ofgeneral obligation bonds issued is set apart as an individual fund that is used to account for
the accumulation of resources for the payment of debt principal, interest and related costs of each

respective issue.



CITY OF KAI\KAKEE, TLLINOIS
COMBINING BALAI{CE SIIEET

NOI\MAJOR GO\IER}IMENTAL FTJIIDS
April 30,2014

Special
Revenue

Funds

Debt
Service
Funds

Total
Nonmajor

Govemmental
Funds

Assets

Cash and investrnents

Receivables, less allowance for
uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes

Due from other governmental agencies

Due from other ftmds
Due from component units
Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued wages payable

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable property tax revenue

Unavailable loan receivable

Total deferred inflows ofresources

Fund Balance

Restricted for:
Debt service

Street maintenance programs

Economic development

Culture and recreation
Retirement obligations
Community development

Unassigned (deficit)

Total fi.rnd balance

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
ofresources and fund balance

$ 4,930,061

3,327,t75
324,ss3
394,394
26,204

546,856

$ 3s9,921

5,472,605

822,644

g s,289,982

8,799,780
324,ss3

1,217,038
26,204

546,856

$ 30,000 $ 209,218

49,984
378,748 1,790,719

8,799,780
537,705

(16,980)

773,811

790,79',1

1,845,666

1,844,300

19,291

539,820

97,516
(320,383)

4,817,007

$ 9,549,243 $ 6,65s,170 $t6,204,4r3

s r79,218
49,984

1,4tt,971

1,64t,173 408,748 2,049,921

3,327,175
537,705

5,472,605

3,864,880 5,472,60s 9,337,485

790,791

1,845,666
1,844,300

19,29t
s39,820
97,516

(303,403)

4,043,190

-89-



CITY OF KANKAKEE, TLLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AI{D CHA}IGES IN FUITD BALANCES
NONMAJOR GO\'ERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the year ended April 30,2014

Special

Revenue
Funds

Debt
Service

Funds

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

Revenues:

Property taxes

Special assessments

Intergovemmental
Interest income

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

General government

Highways and streets

Community development
Culture and recreation
Economic development

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Issuance of refunding bonds

Premium on issuance of refunding bonds

Payment to refunded debt escrow

Transfers:

From other funds

To other flrnds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, May 1, 2013

Fund balance, April 30, 2014

2,806,862

2,523,462

792

7,716

5,338,832

s 5,316,388
449,0't4

103,3 l6

5,868,778

$ 8,123,2s0
449,074

2,523,462

104,108

7,716

lt,207,6t0

936,242

492,332
1,479,712

16,000

130,001

7,700

3,061,987

2,276,845

(1,54s,700)

(1,s45,700)

731,145

3,312,045

$ 4,043,190

4,616,899
2,362,946

6,979,845

(1,1r 1,067)

2,635,000
36,064

(5,723,r35)

5,274,418
(4s2,439)

t,769,908

658,841

114,976

$ 773,817

936,242

492,332

t.479,712
-16,000

130,001

4,616,899
2,370,646

10,041,832

1,165,778

2,635,000

36,064
(s,723,t3s)

s,274,418
(1,998,139)

224,208

1,389,986

3,427,021

$ 4,817,007

-90-
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL RE\'EIIUE FTINDS

April 30, 2014

Band Fund

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Fund

Special

Service Area
No.2

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables, less allowance for
uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes

Due from other
govemmental agencies

Due from other funds

Due from component units
Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued wages payable

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable property tax revenue

Unavailable loan receivable

Total deferred inflows ofresources

Fund Balance

Restricted for:
Street maintenance program

Economic development

Culture and recreation

Retirement obligations
Community development

Unassigned (deficit)

Total fund balance (deficit)

Total tiabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balance

$ 35,891 s 1,478,887 $ 37,900:::

47,383
49,984

16,600

91,361

841,700 3,000

16,600 841,700 3,000

34,900

19,29t
539,820

19,291 s39,820 34,900

19,29t

16,600

$ 614,749

841,700

12,073

9,952
413

34,900

3,000

-0-

-91-

$ 3s,891 $ 1,478,887 $ 37,900



Special

Service Area
No.3

Special
Service Area

No. 5

Community
Development

Agency

154,402

546,443

413,797

Motor
Fuel Tax

Fund

Tax
Increment
Financing

District
No. I Fund

Tax
Increment

Financing
District

No. 5 Fund

50,713

3,200

t22,090

17,650

383,970

943,775

369,816
16,252

oq sqq

20s,750

348,173 $ 1,719,275

170,151

$ 53,913 $ 139,740 $ 1,049,018 $ 1,8E9,426 $ l,7l3,El3 $ 3u),J4e30s,349$ 139.740 $ 1,049,018 $ 1.889.426 $ 1,713,813

131,835

$ 43,760 s 277,438 $ 25,0s0

43,760 25,050-0--0- 277,438

943,775 205,7503,200 t7,650

3,200 r7,650

537,705

537,705 -0- 943,775 205,750

1,845,666

50,713 t22,090 492,600 74,549

97,516

50,713 122.O90 97,s16 r,845,666 492,600 74,549

53,913 $ 139,740 $ 1,049,018 $ 1,889,426 s 1,713,813 305,349

(Continued)
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING BALAI{CE SIIEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL RE\IENUE FTIIIDS
(Continued)

April 30' 2014

Tax
Increment
Financing
District

No. 6 Fund

s 240,450

Tax
Increment
Financing
District

No. 7 Fund

s s3,267

39,650

12,s05

Tax
Increment

Financing
District

No. 8 Fund Totals

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables, less allowance for
uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes

Due from other
govemmental agencies

Due from other funds

Due from component units
Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued wages payable

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable property tax revenue

Unavailable loan receivable

Total deferred inflows ofresources

Fund Balance

Restricted for:
Street maintenance proglam

Economic development
Culture and recreation
Retirement obligations
Community development

Unassigned (deficit)

Total fund balance (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balance

240,450 39,650 1,015,400 3,864,880

$ 1,484,034

1,015,400

$ 4,930,061

3,32'1,175

324,553
394,394
26,204

546,856

65,772 1,003,676

1,015,400 3,327,175
537,705

1,845,666

I,844,300
19,291

539,820

97,516
(303,403)

4,043,190

$ 9,549,243

(303,403)

(303,403) 65,772

s ?4! 4s0 s lo5.4n

t,003,676

_g-_2,4ee,434_

s 240.450 $ 105.422 $ 2,495,434 $ 9,549,243...-".......-::

$ 303,403

303,403 $ -0-

240,450 39,650

$ 480,358

480,358

$ 179,218

49,984
t,417,97 |

1,641,173

-93-
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CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVEI\ruES, EXPEI\IDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALA}ICES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENTIf, FT]NDS

For the year ended April 30, 2014

Illinois
Municipal Special

Retirement Service Area
Band Fund Fund No.2

Revenues:

Property taxes

Intergovemmental
Interest income

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures :

Current:

General government

Highways and streets

Community development
Culture and recreation

Economic development
Debt service:

Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer to other funds

g t6,214 $ 822js6 $ 3,025

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance (deficit), May l,2013

Fund balance (deficit), April 30, 2014

2t

t6,274 822,377 3,025

758,275

16,000

1,800

16,000 758,275 1,800

214 64,102 1,225

214 64,102 1,225

19,077 475,718 33,675

$ 19,291 $ 539,820 $ 34,900

-94-



Special

Service Area
No. 3

Special
Service Area

No.5

Commrmity
Development

Agency

Motor
Fuel Tax

Fund

Tax
Increment
Financing
District

No. 1 Fund

Tax
Increment
Financing
District

No.5 Frmd

795 t5,294
$ 1,603,876

7,716

795 t5,294 1,611,592 919,748 801,984 187,332

$ 919,586

162

$ 801,964

20

r87,332

795

t't1,967

1,479,712

6,t49

7,700

6,149 1,665,3'19

492,332

117,258 1,528

492,332 117,258 1,528

427,4t6 684,726 185,8049,t45 (53,787)

795

49,918

9,t45 (s3,787) 427,4t6

1s1,303 t,418,250

(4s0,1s0)

234,576

258,024

$ 492,600

(194,294)

(8,490)

g 74,549

t12,945

(Continued)
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CITY OF KAIYKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEIIDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVEI{UE FI]NDS

(Continued)
For the year ended April 30,2014

Tax
Increment
Financing
District

No. 6 Fund

Tax
lncrement
Financing
District

No. 7 Fund

Tax
Increment
Financing

District
No. 8 Fund Totals

Revenues:

Property taxes

Intergovernmental
Interest income

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

General government

Highways and streets

Community development

Culture and recreation
Economic development

Debt service:

Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer to other funds

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance (deficit), May 1, 2013

Fund balance (deficit), April 30, 2014

21,239

2

$ 938,643

514

2,806,862
2,523,462

792

7,716

936,242

492,332

1,479,712

16,000

130,001

7,'100

3,061,987

21,241 939,1s7 5,338,832

800 1,666 800

800 1,666

20,441 (1,593) 938,357 2,276,845

(22s,6ss) (41,608) (633,993) (1,545,700)

(20s,214) (43,201) 304,364 73r,r4s

(98.189) 108,973 699,312 3,312,045

_!_1191192. _9__6sJn_ _!_1-,003,676_ _$_4,043,1e9_

-96-



CITY OF KANKAIGE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITI]RES,

AND CHANGES IN FI]ND BALAIICE
BI]DGET AND ACTUAL

BAIID FI]i\tD
For the year ended April 30,2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Over (Under)Original

$ 16,000

Actual

$ 16,000 g 16,214 214
Revenues:

Property taxes

Expenditures:

Current:
Culture and recreation

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, May l, 2013

Fund balance, April 30, 2014

16,000 16,000 16,000

214

19,077

$ 19,291

-0-

-97-



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
For the year ended April 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (Under)

12,356
2t

Actual

Revenues:

Property taxes

Interest income

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

General government

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, May 1,2013

Fund balance, April 30, 2014

$ 810,000 $ 810,000 $ 822,356
21

810,000 810,000 822,377 12,377

-0- s -0-

7s8,27s (sr,725)

64,102 $ 64,102

475,718

$ s39,820

-98-



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITI]RES,

A}ID CHANGES IN FUND BALAIICE
BI]DGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO.2
For the year ended April 30,2014

Revenues:

Property taxes

Expenditures:

Current:

Economic development

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, May I,2013

Fund balance, April 30, 2014

$ 3,000 $ 3,000 3,025 $ 25

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

3,000 3,000

$ -0- $ -0-

1,800

1,225

33,67s

$ 34,900

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (Under)

(1,200)

$ 1,22s

-99-



CITY OF KAI\KAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEITDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAIICE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL SERVICE ARI,A NO.3
For the year ended April 30,2014

Budgeted Amounts

Original

$ 4,s00 $ 4,500

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (Under)Actual

Revenues:

Property taxes

Expenditures:

Cument:

Economic development

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, May 1, 2013

Fund balance, April 30, 2014

1<OO

$ -0-

4,500

$ -0-

(3,70s)

(4.s00)

79s $ 795

49,918

$ s0,713

-100-



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEI{DITURES,

AIID CHANGES IN FI'ND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 5
For the year ended April 30,2014

Original

$ 16,600

Final Actual

$ 16,600 $ ts,294

Variance with
Final Budget
Over (Under)

$ (1,306)

Budgeted Amounts

Revenues:

Property ta-\es

Expenditures:

Current:

Economic development

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, May 1,2013

Fund balance, April 30, 2014

50,000 50,000 6,149 (43,851)

$ (33,400) $ (33,400) 9,14s

1t2,945

$ 122,090

$ 42,545

-101-



CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINTNG BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

April 30' 2014

General

Obligation
Bonds, Series

2005

General

Obligation
Bonds, Series

2006

General
Obligation

Bonds, Series

20074

Indian
Meadows

Debt
Service

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables, less allowance for
uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes

Due from other funds

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable pmperty ta.x revenue

Fund Balance

Restricted for debt service

Unassigned (deficit)

Total fund balance

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balance

-0- $ 20,342

643,550

55,000

675 $ 3,137

$ 80,000

5l 1,590

550,000

$ -0- $ 718,892 $ 5s0,675 g 594,727

i 7,62s $ 266,938

$ -0- 7,62s $ -0- 266,938

-0- 643,550 ss0,000 80,000

67,7t7 675 247,789

-0- 67,717 675 247,789

s 718,892 $ 5s0,67s g s94,727

-r02-



General

Obligation
Bonds, Series

2008

General

Obligation
Bonds, Series

2009

General

Obligation
Bonds, Series

2011

General

Obligation
Bonds, Series

2012

General

Obligation
Bonds, Series

2013 Totals

$ 2U,970

21,418

2,345,370

190,18s

372,130

$ 66,413

66,413

359,921

5,472,605
822,644

$ 30,000

378,748

408,748

29,880

500,575

94,284

696,010

4r.980 139.024 7s,0s0

_$_284,e?q_ _$_2,40s,76!_ _$ 66e,47e_ _$_637,365_ _5 7e02%_ _q_6,6ss,179_

$ 30,000

$ 16,980 20,792

16,980 50,792

284,970 2,345,370 500,575 372,130 696,010 5,472$05

12,606 168,904 198,822 94,284 790,797
(16,e80)(16,e80)

(16,930) 12,606 168,904 198,822 94,284 773,E17

g 284,910 $ 2,408,768 $ 669,479 $ 637,365 s 790,294 $ 6,6s5,170

-103-



CITY OF KAITKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVEI\ruES, EXPEI{DITURES,

AF{D CHANGES IN FI]ND BALANCES
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FT]NDS

For the year ended April 30,2014

General General

Obligation Obligation
Bonds, Series Bonds, Series

2005 2006

General Indian
Obligation Meadows

Bonds, Series Debt
2007A Service

Revenues:

Propelty taxes

Special assessments

Interest income

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and flscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Issuance of refunding bonds

Premium on issuance ofrefirnding bonds

Payment to refunded debt escrow

Transfers:

From other funds

To other funds

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance (deficit),
May l,2013

Fund balance (deficit),
April 30,2014

$ 464,985 $ 335,s19

464,99',1 335,527

r24,064

t24,064

340,933

2,635,000
36,064

(2,661,124)

22,810
(452,43e)

78,756

335,000
393,630

728,630

(393,103)

80,000

182,233

262,233

Q62,233)

s 368,401

449,074
103,193

920,668

306,899
69,042

375,941

s44,727

382,t48

(s37,s70)

'799,803

(419,689) 382,148 262,233

(78,756) (l0,es5) -0- 544,727

78,672

$ 67,717

Q96,938)

s 247,789

675

-104-
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General General

Obligation Obligation
Bonds, Series Bonds, Series

2008 2009

General General

Obligation Obligation
Bonds, Series Bonds, Series

20il 2012

General

Obligation
Bonds, Series

2013 Totals

s 279,283 s 1,708,328 s 1,807,386 $ 352,486

43 45

279,289 1,708,371 1,807,431 352,495

s 5,316,388

449,074
103,316

-0- 5.868.778

284,975

284,975

1,240,000
'748,957

1,988,957

1,56s,000

2'79,225

t,844,225

540,000

269,820

809,820

550,000

561,000

4,6t6,899
2,362,946

6,979,845

(s,686) (280,s86) (36,794) (4s7,32s) (s6r,000) (r,111,067)

(2,s24,441)

2,769,929 644,444 655,284

2,635,000
36,064

(5,723,13s)

5,274,418
(452,439)

658,841

1t4,976

245,488

(35,098) (36,794)

644,444

187,119

47,704 205,698 11,703

655,284 r,769,908

(5,686)

(11,294)

94,284

-0-

$ (16,980) $ 12,606 $ 168,904 $ 198,822 S 94,284 $ 773,817

- 105-
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLTNOIS
FIDUCIARYFUNDS

Police Pension Fund

A pension trust which accounts for the police officers' pension fund. Revenue includes City
contributions, contributions from participants and investment earnings.

EiLefi ghters' Pension Fund

A pension hust which accounts for the firefighters' pension fund. Revenue includes ci$r contributions,
conhibutions from participants and investment eamings.
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CITY OF KAI\KAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FTII\DS
April30,2014

Police
Pension

Fund

Firefighters'
Pension

Fund Totals

Assets

Cash and short-term investments

Receivables, less allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Employee contributions
Employer contributions
lnterest

lnvestments, at fair value:

Open-end mutual funds

Corporate securities

U. S. treasury and agency securities

Corporate bonds

State and local obligations
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities

Benefits and other payables

Net Position

Net position held in trust for pension benefits

17,417 ,552 10,010,610 27,428,162

194,598 230,048 424,646

$ 1,446,013

21,614
t53,926
41,000

4,004,556
5,304,5t4
3,749,127
2,290,056

406,746

1,401,448

14,186

225,774
34,792

3,052,075
t,063,579
2,610,394
1,3 85,190

213,7t5
9,457

2,847,461

35,800

379,700
75,792

7,056,631
6,368,093

6,359,521
3,675,246

620,461
9,457

$17,222,954 $ 9,780,562 $27,003,5 16
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CITY OF KATTKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARYNET POSITION

PENSIONTRUST FUITDS
For the year ended April 30,2014

Police
Pension

Fund

Firefighters'
Pension

Fund Totals

Additions:
Contributions:

Employer
Employee

Total contributions

Invesfinent income:

Net change in fair value of investments

Interest and dividends

Less: investnent expense

Net invesfinent income

Total additions

Deductions:
Benefits
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net position-restricted for pension benefits

Net position held in trust for pension benefits:

May l,2013

April 30, 2014

g 2,231,894
523,141

2,755,035

816,540

268,898

1,085,438

(tt4,t7s)

97t,263

3,726,298

2,262,725

49,549
43,257

2,355,53t

1,370,767

15,852,187

$ 2,394,084
365,013

2,759,097

247,192
224,725

471,9t7

(60,676)

411,241

3,170,338

2,628,145

50,295

2,678,440

491,898

9,288,664

s 4,625,978
888,154

5,514,132

t,063,732
493,623

1,557,355

(174,85 r)

1,382,504

6,896,636

4,890,870

49,549

93,552

5,033,971

1,862,665

25,140,851
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
COMPONENTUNITS

Kankakee Public Libran

Accounts for the revenues and expenses ofthe local public library. A majority of the revenues are from a

property tax levy approved by the City Council.

Special Serice Are #1

Accounts for activities to promote and develop downtown Kankakee. The major source of revenues is

from a property tax lery approved by the City Council.
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, TLLINOIS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT IT}IIT - KANKAKEE PUBLIC LIBRARY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AIID GOVERNMENTAL FT'IYD BALANCE SHEET

April 30,2014

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables, less allowance

for uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes

Pledges

Capital assets:

Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to primary government
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year

Due within more than one year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable property tax revenue

Deferred graflt revenue

Total deferred inflows ofresources

Fund Balance / Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

Unassigned / Unrestricted

Total fund balances/net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources

and fund balances/net position

General

Operating Adj ustment

747,849

1,720,'150
100

$ 747,849

1,720,750

100

$ 6,40t,902 6,401,902

$ 6,401,902 $ 8,870,601

Statement of
Net Position

s 2,468,699:

33,148

71,53I

104,686

$ 33,148
71,538

g 126,699 126,699

2,48t,164 2,481,164

2,607,863 2,'112,549

t,720,750
4,043

1,724,793

3,794,O39

639,220

639,220 3.794.039

$ 2,468,699

1,720,750

4.043

-0- 724.793

3,794,039
639,220

4A33,259

-t 08-
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPOIYENT UNIT - KA}IKAKEE PUBLIC LIBRARY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIESAND GOYERNMENT FT]}ID
STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXPENDITTIRES AND CIIANGES IN FIJND BALA}ICE

For the year ended April 30,2014

General

Operating Adjustrnent

$ 1,658,617

72,633
107,347

1,838

154,627

1,995,062

1,622,644

t20,533
r33,682

1,876,859

1 18,203

szt,0t7

tt4,26l

(120,533)

(6,272)

6,272

3,787,767

$ 3,794,039

-0- 1,995,062

1,736,905

-0-
133,682

1,870,587

124,475

4,308,784

$ 4,4332s9

Statement of
Activities

Revenues:

Prcperty taxes

Fees

IntergoYemmental

Interest

Other

Total revenues

Expenditures/expenses :

Current:

Culture and recreation
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

t,658,6t7
72,633

107,347

1,838
154.627

Total expenditures/expenses

Net change in fund balances/net position

Frurd balances/net position, May l, 2013

Fund balanceVnet position, April 30, 2014
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
DISCRI,TELY PRESENTED COMPONENT T]NIT - SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENT FT]I\D BALANCE SIIEET
April 30,2014

Assets

Cash and investrnents

Receivables, less allowance for rmcollectible amounts:
Property taxes

Due from primary governrnent

Capital assets:

Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to primary govemment

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable propefty tax revenue

Fund Balance / Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

Unassigned / Unrestricted

Total firnd balances/net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows ofresources and

fund balances/net position

$ 335,805 $ 76s,236 s 1,101,041

General
Operating Adjustment

$ 210,478

124,350
977

$ 2,t62
16,252

18,414

t24,350

193,041

193,041

Statement of
Net Position

$ 210,478

,rn;],,

$ 76s,236 765,236

$ 2,162
16,252

18,414

124,3s0

765,236 765,236

193,041

765,236 958,277

-0-

765,236 1,101,041
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT IiNIT - SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1

STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES AND GOVERNMENT FT]}ID

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEI\DITI]RES AND CHANGES IN FI]ND BALANCE
For the year ended April 30' 2014

General

Operating Adjustment
Statement of

Activities

Revenues:

Property taxes

Interest

Other

Total revenues

Expendihrres/expenses :

Current:

General govemment

Net change in fund balances/net position

Fund balances/net position, May 1, 2013

Fund balances/net position, April 30, 2014

r24,299
2to

t42,t22

130,966

11,156

181,885

_$_1e3,911_

124,299

210

-0- 142,t22

54,918

(54,918)

820,154

$ 765,236

18s,884

(43,762)

1,002,039

$ 958,277
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
PROPERTY TAXES RECETVABLE

2013 LEYY TO BE COLLECTED IN 2014

April30,2014

Taxes

extended

Estimated

losses

Estimated

net taxes

receivable

Primary Govemment:

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds:

Band Fund

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Special Service Area No. 2
Special Service Area No. 3
Special Service Area No. 5
Tax Inffement Financing District #l
Tax Increment Financing District #5

Tar Increment Financing District #6

Tax Increment Financing District #7

Tax Increment Financing Disrict #8

Total Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Flrnds

Total Primary Govemment

Component Units:
Library
Special Service Area No. 1

Total Component Units

7.031 $ 1,0s7 7-030.720

16,738
841,748

3,000

3,249
17,682

943,798
205,757
240,484

39,668
015.419

3,327,543

5,472,687

$ 1,720,93't

124,360

$ 1s,832,007 $ 1,507

16,600

841,700
3,000

3,200
17,650

943,77s

205,750
240,450

39,650

01s.400

3,327,175

5,472,605

_$_1s,83049_

$ 1,720,750

t24,3s0

1.845.100

138

48

49

32

23

7

34

l8
19

368

82

187

10

1,845,297 197
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KANKAKEE
SCHEDULE

CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES UTILITY FUND

OF BOND RATE COVENANT CALCULATION
April 30,2014

Debt service requirements
120o/o covenant

Total required revenues

Net revenues generated by sewer utility:
Sewer charges

Utility operations expenses

Net revenues generated

Sewer Utility's share of Kankakee River Metropolitan
Agency's plant operations expenses

Total net revenues available
(expressed in dollars and as a percentage ofdebt service

requirements)

Bond covenant coverage over the required revenues

$ 1,054,788
x l20o/o

$ 1,26s,746

$11,502,262
(4,000,804)

7,50r,458

(4,52s,499)

$ 2,97s,959

$ 1,710,213

282o/o

-113-
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

KANKAKEE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVTCES UTILITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVEIruE BONDS PAYABLE

April 30,2014

Date of issue

Interest rates

Principal redemption
date

Interest payment

dates

Original issue

Paid to date

Balance, April 30,2014

Date as follows:

Year ending
April 30,

2015

2016
2017

2018

2019
2020
2021
2022

2023
2024
2025
2026

2027

2028
2029
2030
203t
2032
2033
2034
2035

Principal

$ 240,000
250,000
260,000
270,000
280,000
295,000
310,000
325,000
345,000
365,000
385,000

Principal

$ 225,000
230,000
240,000
245,000
250,000
260,000

270,000
280,000
290,000

Series 2009

December 1, 2009
2.00oh to 5.80o/o

May I

May I and November 1

$ 4,000,000
675,000

$ 3,32s,000

Series 2010A Series 2010B

December 2, 2010
2.00"/o lo 3.90Vo

May 1

May 1 and November 1

$ 2,740,000
450,000

_q_2,2e0,009_

t62,988
154,038

143,698

131,695

t18,283
103,686

87,875
70,885
\) A)7

32,733
1 1,165

73,05 8

66,795
59,745
52,470
44,920
36,430
27,023
t6,770
5,655

_t_l r:l ooo $ 
' 
06qje_ $ ,rqoj()()_ $ j8r.866_

December 2, 2010

5.35%o to 6.500/o

May I

May 1 and November 1

$ 2,700,000
-0-

$ 300,000

310,000

320,000

330,000

163,755
t63,755
163,755
163,755
t63,755
t63,755
t63,755
t63,755
t63,755
155,730

139,180
121,615

103,088

82,550
59,963
36,563
12,350

$ 2,700,000 $ 2,184,834
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August 6, 2013

4.375o/o to 4.875%o

May 1

May I and November I
$ 3,5s0,000

-0-

_$_1!!9!99_

$ 121,274

164,750
164,750
164,750
164,750
164,750
164,750
164,750
164,750
t64,750
t64,750

$ 95,000 164,750

160,594
t46,594
t32,t56
1r7,063
100,181
82,606
64,106
43,875

460.000 22,425

$ 1 5so ooo _t_2 80j.rr4

Series 2013A

August 6, 2013

2.91%to 5.13%

May 1

May 1 and November 1

$ 2,170,000
-0-

Series 20138

$ 1s,160,000
1,125,000

_q_14,03s{9!_$ 2,170,000

$ 215,000

220,000
230,000

235,000

245,000

260,000

270,000
285,000
210,000

Principal Interest Principal

$ 465,000
480,000
500,000
730,000
750,000
785,000
815,000
850,000
895,000
935,000
980,000
625,000
650,000
330,000
345,000
36s,000

1,820,000
400,000
415,000
440,000

Interest Totals

68,713
93,347
93,347
93,347
87,090
80,248

71,439
62,438
50,727

38,300
25,393
r0,773

s89,788
642,685
625,295
606,017
578,798
548,869

514,842
478,598
437,5t0
391,513

340,488

297,t38
263,682
229,144
t92,tt9
153,626

I 12,531

82,606
64,106
43,875

$ 1,054,788

1,t22,685
t,r25,295
t,336,0t7
t,328,798
1,333,869

t,329,842
1,328,598

r,332,5r0
1,326,513

1,320,488

922,138
913,682
559,144
537,119

578,626

1,932,531
482,606
479,106
483,875

$ 2,170,000 $ 775,162

460,000 22,42s 482,425

_q-14,0319!9_ _9_ 7 21 s,6ss_ _q4250,6s5_
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CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCIIEDULE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

April 30,2014

Series 2006

September 15, 2006

3.50Vo to 5.25Yo

January 1

July I and January I
$ 9,555,000

1,840,000

$ 7,715,000

Series 2007A Series 2007B

August 2, 2007
4.25o/o to 4.360/o

January I

July 1 and January 1

$ 1,422,327
-0-

$ 1,422,327

Principal Interest

s 402,672 $ 147,329

3s0,125 149,875

267,496 132,504
402,034 227,965

Date of issue

Interest rates

Principal redemption

date

Intercst payment

dates

Original issue

Paid to date

Balance,

April 30,2014

Due as follows:

Year ending

April 30,

2015

2016
2017
2018

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2079

Principal

s 6ss,000
67s,000
375,000
540,000
585,000
645,000
730,000
790,000
880,000
715,000

1,125,000

lnterest

g 376,77s
351,885
325,898
31 1,460
290,400
259,688
222,600
t84,275
142,800

96,600

59,063

_q_7,7 1 

'999_ 
_$_2,621 A44 -s t,424n_ _$ 6s7,6?3_

August 2,2007
A.Olct/o lo 5.0o%lo

January I

July 1 and January 1

s 5,40s,000
1,640,000

$ 3,76s,000

$ 90,000 $ 168,445

90,000 164,845

95,000 161,155
1 10,000 157 ,260
125,000 152,750
140,000 147,625

160,000 141,745

170,000 t35,025
180,000 t27,885
600,000 120,325

635,000 90,325

670,000 58,575

700,000 30,100

_q_j,?6s,999_ _L_l-,6s6,069_
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April 15,2009
2.30o/o to S.OOVo

January 1

July 1 and January 1

$ 10,180,000

g 434,593
431,803
427,078
42t,303
384,553
333,303
306,633
278,913
249,933
2t9,903
187,868
t54,328
119,093

8l,693
42,088

Series 2008

June 1,2008
3.45o/o to 5.25Yo

January 1

July I and January I

$ 6,930,000
-0-

$ 6,930,000

Series 2009A Series 20098

April 15, 2009
3.OO%o to 5.00o:/o

January I

July 1 and January I
$ 14,905"000

8,785,000

6,120,000

Principal

$ 315,000
425,000
585,000

670,000
900,000
900,000
98s,000

1,075,000
1,075,000

Principal

$ 1,74s,000
430,000
475,000

1,145,000

1,500,000
610,000

35,000
40,000
4s,000
45,000
s0,000

Interest Interest

284,975

284,975
274,1O8
259,O20

228,308
193,808
1s9,603
t24,953
86,538
43,538

230,638
169,212

753,812
137,322

96,103
39,853

9,353
7,830
6,090
4,r33
) t1\

$ 6,930,000 s 1,939,826 $ 6,120,000 $ 856,521

(Continued)
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CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PAYABLE

(Continued)
April 30' 2014

Date ofissue
Interest rates

Principal redemption

date

Interest payment
dates

Original issue

Paid to date

Balance,
April 30,2014

Due as follows:

Year ending
April 30,

2015
2016
2017
2018

2019
2020

202t
2022

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

2028
2029

Principal

16s,000
225,000

440,000

600,000
725,000

85s,000
930,000

955,000

$ 222,755
)'r1 1\<

216,980
209,10s

209,105
209,ro5
190,185

t64,385
t32,123
92,365
46,795

Series 2011A

April27,20ll
2.50o/o to 4.90Vo

Ianuary 1

July I and January 1

$ s,000,000
105,000

$ 4,895,000

Series 2011B Series 201lC

April27,2011
2.00%oto 3.OV/o

January 1

July I and January I
$ 1,310,000

1,055,000

$ 2ss,000

Principal

$ 255,000 7,6s0

$ 4,89s,000 $ 1,915,658 255,000 $ 7,6s0

April2T,2011
4.70o/o

January 1

July 1 and January 1

$ 370,000
-0-

$ 370,000

15,170
15,170
t5,t70
15,170

t5,t70
15,170

$ 370,000 $ 91,020
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Series 2012

March 73,2012
2.00% to 2.50%o

January 1

July 1 and January I
$ 2,645,000

470,000

$ 2,175,000

Principal

$ 405,000
420,000
435,000
450,000

465,000

Series 2012A Series 2012B

November l, 2012
2.00o/o to 3 -00o/o

January 1

July I and January I
s 3,790,000

130,000

3,660,000

Principal

$ 160,000

1,370,000
1,820,000

100,000
100,000
I 10,000

Interest Interest

52,350
44,250
33,750
22,875
11,625

76,300
73,100
45,700
9,300

6,300
3,300

October I 1, 2012

2.00%o lo 2.90%o

January 1

July I and January I
$ 3,91s,000

Principal

$ 40,000
460,000
475,000
49s,000

510,000
s20,000
s35,000
320,000

320,000
220,000

95,835
95,03s
8s,835
76,335

63,960
51,210
38,210
24,300

15,500
6,380

2.175.000 164.850 _q_uq9J99_ _! 214-000

(Continued)
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CITY OF KAI{KAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL OBLTGATION BONDS PAYABLE

(Continued)
April 30,2014

Date of issue

Interest rates

Principal redemption
date

Interest payment

dates

Original issue

Paid to date

Balance,
April 30,2014

Due as follows:

Year ending

April 30,

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
202s
2026
2027
2028
2029

Series 2013C

December 23, 2013

2.00%;o to 3.95Yo

January 1

July 1 and January 1

$ 2,635,000
-0-

$ 68,062,327
14,375,000

_$ 53,68Un--

Principal

$ 4,462,672
4,64s,125
5,O02,496
4,817,034
5,245,000

4,245,000
4,450,000
3,545,000

$ 2,635,000

Principal Totals

620,000
235,000
245,000
255,000
265,000
270,000
280,000

170,000
175,000
120,000

$ 76,012
61,960
57,260
52,360
44,7t0
36,760
27,3t0
17,510

11,390

4,740

$ 2,188,827
2,064,865
1,929,250
1,899,475

1,502,984

772"259
587,984
386,226

$ 6,651,499
6,709,990
6,931,746
6,776,s09
6,747,984
5,929,822
4,995,639

4,827,t91
5,017,259
5,037,984
3,931,226
1,692,903
1,699,r93

971,693

4,640,000 1,289,822

3,900,000 1,095,639

3,890,000 937,t91

1,480,000 212,903
1,550,000 t49,193
890,000 81,693

925,000 42,088 967,088

$ 2,63s,000 s 390,012 _$ s3,687 327__q_15,140,22_ _$ 68.f27 ;7%_
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The objective of this part of the City of Kankakee's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is to
provide financial statement users with additional historical perspective, context, and detail. It is
intended that the information in the financial statements, notes to financial statements, required

supplementary information, combining and individual fund financial statements and supplemental

schedules, and the statistical section, taken as a whole, will assist readers in further understanding

and assessing the City's economic condition.

Contents

(A) Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information that indicates how the

City's financial performance has changed over time.

(B) Revenue Capacitv
These schedules provide information on one of the City's most

significant and locally controlled revenue sources, the property tax

(C) Debt Capacity
These schedules provide information about the affordability ofthe
City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to
issue additional debt in the future

Pase(s)

(D)

(E)

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators about

the environment within which the City operates. This information is

intended to facilitate comparisons of the City's finances over time
and among other cities.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data related to the

services the City provides and the activities it performs

t2t-125

126-129

130- 133

134-135

136- l3 8

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive

annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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Table A-1
CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT (Unaudited)
Fiscal Years Ended April 30, 2005 to 2014

(accrual basis of accounting)
amounts expressed in millions

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Govemmental activities

N€t investrnent in capital assels

Reshicted

Umestricted

Total govemmental activifies net postion

Business-type activities

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary govemment

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unreshicted

Total primary government net position

Source: Audited Financial Statements

$ 29.1 $ 32.3

9.4 6.9

(32.0) (29.0)

s 6.5 S 10.2

$ 36.9

9.8

(31.8)

$ r4.9

$ 40.7

8.9

(33.6 )

$ 15.9

$ 45.3

10.8

@7.5\

$ 8.6

$ 43.7 $ 46.9

6.3 9.6

(41.1) (45.6)

$ 9.0 $ 10.8

$ 42.8 $ 49.1 s 44.7

7.6 6.3 5.9

(40.0) (44.2) (33.0)

$ 10.4 s 1r.l $ 17.6

s 22.5 $ 22.4 g 22.0

2.2 2.8 1.7

4.0 3.2 3.6

$ 28.7 $ 28.4 $ 27.4

$ 22.0 $ 24.9

l.l 2.2

3.7 2.6

$ 26.8 s 29.7

$ 2r.3 $ 22.3 $ 21.8

t.4 1.5 2.0

5.3 2.8 1.2

$ 28.0 $ 26.6 $ 25.0

$ 20.9 $ 20.1

1.7 2.7

0.1 (3.5)

s 22.7 s r9.4

$ 51.6 $ 54.7

11.7 9.7

(28.0) (25.8)

$ 3s.2 $ 38.7

$ s8.9 $ 62.7

11.5 10.0

(28.1) (29.9\

$ 42.3 $ 42.8

$ 70.2 $ 65.0

13.0 7.7

(44.9\ (35.8)

$ 42.8 $ 37.0

$ 69.1 $ 64.6

11.0 9.6

(42.8\ (38.8)

$ 37.4 S 35.4

$ 70.0 $ 64.8

8.0 8.7

(44.1) (36.5)

$ 33.8 $ 37.0

Note: There may be some slight dilferences in tolals due to rounding.
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Table A-2

CITY OX' KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GOVERIYMENTAL ACTMTIES (Unaudited)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 to20l4
(accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in millions)

Program Revenues

Charges for services:

General govemment

Public safety

Public works
Community development

Operating gants and contributions
Capital grants and contribuiions

Total program revenues

Expenses

General govemment

Public safety

Public works
Highways and streets

Community development

Culture and recreation

Economic development
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenses

Net revenue (expense)

Property taxes
Special assessments

Illinois retailers' tax, net

Utility taxes

Other taxes
Intergovemmental, not restricted

to specific programs

lnvestment income

Other
Contributions from developers
Transfers

Total general revenues and
other changes

Total change in net position

27.0 29.7 27 .8 57.1

2005

$ 1.4

0.8

0.5

0.1

4.0
1.1

7.9

2006

$ 1.1

1.0

0.3

0.1

2.9
2.0

2007

$ 1.2

1.0

0.3

0.1

2.8
2.9

2011

$ 1.2

0.6

0.1

0.1

4.3
o.2

2012

s 1.3

0.5

0.I
3.9
0.1

5.9 4.86.58.3

2008 2009 2010

$ 1.2 s t.2 s 1.2

0.5 0.6 0.6

0.2 0.4 0.6

0.1 0.1 0.1

3.5 4.0 3.4
6.9 0.7 4.3

12.4 7.0 10.2

2013 2014

0.3

5.6

$ 1.4 $ l.l
0.6 0.6

0.1 0.1

3.2 3.0

$ 5.1

11.7

2.1

2.6

2.7
0.1

0.7
2.0

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.7
0.2

7.4

$ 6.0
12.5

2.2
J.J

1.4

0.1

1.4
2.2

$ 6.7
13.1

2.1

1.7

1.5

0.1

0.5
2.1

0.1 0.1

0.6 0.9

0.2 0.1

t.6
0.9 0.7

$ 6.2

13.6

2.5

7.2
1.8

0.1

23.s
2.3

$ 8.6
14.2

3.6
2.2
2.5

0.3

18.8
2.8

$ 8.3

16.1

2.4
J.J

1.9

0.1

17.O

2.8

51.9

$ 8.8
16.2

0.3

1.2

2.4
0.0

16.4
2.9

$ 8.2
17.O

3.1

2.2
0.2

12.3
2.8

$ 7.8 $ 7.8

17.1 17.6

2.6 2.4

1.9 1.5

0.0

12.9 10.8
2.6 2.3

53.0 45.8 44.9 42.3

q@Jl ${?!_iD q{120 qE14 $@.0) qE!4 $(11.7) $(!2g) $C9'3) S_AIO

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

$8.ss9.8$e.7$

5.3 6.2 6.0

3.3 3.3 3.3

2.7 3.1 3.4

$ 11.4 $ 12.1 $ 14.6

0 0.3 0.3

24.4 Zt.t 21.3

3.4 3.4 3.6

3.6 3.1 3.3

0.1 0.1 0.1

0.4 0.1 0.1

0.3 0.4 0.8

__E9 l.s _19_4

s 39.0 s 42.1 $ 43.7

$ 13.s $ 13.9 $ 14.6

0.3 0.0 0.4

18.7 18.6 16.5

3.9 4.1 4.0

3.3 3.6 3.9

10.7

26.6
3.5

3.8

0.1

0.9
0.1

0.1

0.t
0.9

0.1 0.1

0.0 0.1

0.5 0.5

s 21.2 $ 25.8 $ 24.2

__190

$ 4s.7

__(0D 0.1 3.e

$ 40.7 $ 40.9 $ 44.1

$ 1.6 $ 6.5$ 2.1 $ 4.r $ 4.7 $ r.0 $ (7.0) $ 0.4
-+':

$ 2.0 $ 0.8

Note: There may be some slight differences in totals due to rounding.
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Table A-3
CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION. BUSINESS.TYPE ACTIVITIES
AND TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (Unaudited)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30' 2005 to2014
(accrual basis of accounting)

Business-type activities
Charges for services
Expenses

Net business-type revenues (expenses)

Other income and charges in net position:

Investment income

Other

Contributions from developers
Transfers

Total other income and changes in
net position

Total change in net position

Total Primary GoYernment
Program revenues

Expenses

Net revenues (expenses)

General revenues and other changes

in net position

Total change in net position

__$.8) lqo __190 __g_0 ___@a)

2011 2012 2013 2014

$ 12.0 $ 12.6 g 12.7 $ 16.6
13.9 14.3 14.6 t5.7

(1.e) (1.7) __l1A 0.e

amounts

2005

$ 8.3
9.1

2006

$ 8.3
8.9

0.1 0.1

0.2 1.7

1.0

__194 __(g2

l.l 0.9

in millions

2008 2009 2010

$ 8.8 $ 10.0 $ 12.6
9.6 12.2 14.2

2001

S 8.4
8.9

0.1

0.0

___p2

(0.6)

0.0
(0.0)

4.9

__110

0.0
0.1

1.2

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1

___@.8) 0.r

(0.8)

0.0 0.0
0_t 0.1

__CI,-L) __Q2)

o'o --!-94.90.2

0.3 ( r. r) (0.6) 2.7 (0.3) (2.1) _-llopj-9)

$ 16.3 $ 15.7 $ 16.7 $ 21.4 $ 17.0

1j!.e) _l?!:D _a,a _@3) _(65_.9

(19.6) (22.4\ (20.0)

22.2 26.8 23.6

$ 2.6 S 4.4 S 3.6

(45.3) (48.4) (43.5)

5 22.7 g 18.5 $ 18.5 $ 18.3 s 21.3

_KqA _(62.r) _$q!) _-A2_ _gqQ)

4s.9

$ 0.6

43.8 43.4

$ (4.6) $ (0.1)

(43.6) (42.3) (41.3) (36.7)

42.9 40.3 40.8 40.2

@ g_@ $__lpJ $ 3.6

Source: Audited Financial Statements

Note: There mav be some slishl differences in tolals due to roundins.
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Table A-4
CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS

FUND BALAI\CES, GOVERIIMENTAL FUI\DS (Unaudited)
Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 lo20l4

(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in milllions)

General Fund

Nonspendable

Unassigned

Total General Fund

200s 2006 2007 2008

$ 0.s s 0.s $ 0.6

2.7 2.6 2.6

$ 2.6 S 3.1 $ 3.2

2010 2011 2012 2013

$ 0.s $ 0.5 $ 0.4

0.0 1.0 1.4

s 0.s $ 1.6 $ 1.8

20142009

$ 0.8 $ 0.9

2.3 1.3

s 3.1 $ 2.2

$ 0.4 $ 0.4

2.4 3.1

$ 2.8 $ 3.5

All Other Govemmental Funds

Restricted for:

Capitalprojectstund $ 5.9 $ 3.5 $ 7.4 $ 5.4 $ 7.9 S 4.4 $ 8.0 $

Unexpended street maintenance

Economic development

Culture & recreation

Retirement obligations

Community development

5.0

1.3

0.9

0.0

0.4

0.2

0.4

3.1

1.4

1.3

0.0

1.5

1.8

1.8

0.0

0.5

0.1

0.8

2.0

1.5

2.2

1.2

0.5

0.2

0.4

2.5

0.9

1.8

0.7

1.3

0.3

1.6

0.3

1.9

1.0

Special revenue funds

Debt service funds

Unassigned, reported in :

Special revenue funds

Capital projects funds

Debt service funds

Total all other governmental

funds

Total, all govemmental funds

Source: Audited Financial Statements

v.t 0.8 (0.1) (0.4) (0.3)

(0.0) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (0.0)

$ 10.6 $ 7.8 $ 10.3 $ 10.s $ 11.5 $ 6.6 $ 10.4 $ 8.1 $ 6.s $ 6.3

$ 13.2 $ 10.9 $ 13.5 $ 13.6 $ 13.7 $ 7.1 $ 12.0 s 9.9 $ 9.3 $ 9.8

Note: There may be some slisht differences in totals due to rounding.

0.31.70.40.91.2
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Table A-5
CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES' GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Unaudited)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 to 2014
(modifred accrual basis of accounting)

R€venues

Taxes
Special assessments

Licenses, fees and permits
Intergovemmental

Charges for services

Fines and penalties

lnve stment eamings

Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
General govemmEnt

Public salety
Public works
Highways and stleets
Community development

Cultue and recreation

Economic development

Debl service:

Principal retirement

Interest and fiscal charges

Total expendilures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Proceeds from borrowing
Proceeds from refunding
Palments to escrow agent

Proceeds ftom disposal of
capital assets

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balanoes

Capita.l outlay (included in
expenditures above)

Debt service as a percentage of
non-capital expenditures

Source: Audited Financial Statements

amounts

2006 2007

$ 22.4 S 22.s

L4 1.5

4.8 4.7
0.'1 0.6

0.6 0.5

0.6 0.9

0.3 0.2

$ 30.8 $ 30.9

2008

$ 44.6 $ 42.9
0.3

l. t 1.1

7 .9 4.7
0.5 0.7

0.5 0.4

0.9 0.4

0.1 0.3

s 55.6 $ 50.8

$ 39.8 $ 42.7

0.3 0.3

t.2 1.3

3,6 4.s
0.8 0.3

0.4 0.4

0.i 0.1

0.7 0.8

$ 46.9 $ 504

$ 38.8 $ 40.r
0.3 0.0
1.4 1.6

4.1 3.6
0.2 0.7

0.4 0.3

0.1 0.5

0.9 0.0

$ 46.2 $ 46.3

in millions

2009 2010 7011 2012 20132005

$ r9.8

1-4
5.0
0.9
0.8

0.?

0.3

$ 28.4

2014

$ 39.0
0.4
t.3
3.0
0.1

0.3

0.1

0.5

$ 44.9

$ 5.4$
I1.9
2.0

2.9
2.6

0.1

0.7

$ 9.1 $
14.2

2.7

2.3

0.1

24.2

7.2 s 6.8

16.1 16.9
0,3

1.3 2.2
2.4 2.2

0.0 0.2't6.4 lz.4

$ 6.7 $ 7.1

17.0 11.4

1.7 1.4

1.9 1.5

0.0 0.0

12.9 10.8

4.9 4.6
2.8 2.4

$ 47.e $ 1!.3

$ 7.9 S 2.1
(7.7) (s.7)

3.0 6.3
(2.9\ (2.3\

$ 0.3 $ 0.9

$ (1 3)$ 0.6

6.s $
12.4
2.2

5.0
1.4

0.1

1.4

7.1

13.0
2.1,

3.8
r.4
0.1

0.5

8.2 $
22.8

3.5
4.0
2.5

0.3

18.8

7.6 S

16.0
2.6
2.8
1.9

0.1

16.5

2.5 2.8 2.9
?.0 ?.2 4.0

$ 30.1 $ 34.0 $ 34.9

3.3 3.9 4.2
2.3 3.4 2.7

$ 65.9 $ 67.4 S 54.4

4.6
3.1

$ 51.4

4.8

2.9

s 48.4

$ 6.4
-r -t

(3.1)

r.9 2.9
(1.n (2.0)

$ 6.7 $ 0.9

s s.0 $ (2.3\

$ 2.3 $ 4.0

16.20/o 16.8%

$ 2.s s (0.1)

$ t7.6
15.1

(11.0)

4.7 4.4

o.o (2.9\

$ 16.8 S l.s

$ 0.2 $ (6.0)

$ 5.0
1.7 s 4.8

( 1.7) (4.7)

{ 1S ,)q

(3.7) (3.0)

$ 5.8$ -

$ 48 $ (2.2)

$ 5.8
4.3

(4.4)

0.t
$ 4.1

(3.4)

$ 6.s

s 10.3

4.0
(4.1)

$ 10.2

4.3 $ 6.7

9.5o/o

s 12.2

13 .ZYo 13 .2o/o 15 .3Yo

s r.6 $ 1.6 $ (0.0) $ (0.0) s 0.6

16.0% 16.00/o 15.7%

differences in totals due to



Table B-l

CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS

ASSESSED VALUATION AI\ID ESTTMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (UNAUditEd)

LEVY YEARS 2004 - 2013

Levy

year Residentialz Commercial2 Industrial2 Farm2 Railroad2

Valuation,

Citv of Kankakee

Assessed2 Actual2

Ratio,

Assessed/

Actual

City
Direct

Ratel

2013 $ 130,167

2012 147,614

20rl 164,041

2010 182,769

2009 182,470

2008 183,'.t37

2007 t81,232

2006 168,329

2005 153,859

2004 138,099

$ 395 $ 2,310

371 2,256

374 2,185

448 1,887

428 1,682

467 1,382

482 1,135

483 1,090

483 1,066

488 1,203

$ 236,198 $ 708,594$ 80,839

81,104

79,539

82,s01

83,328

81,298

'19,317

75,596

70,978

68,247

$ 22A86

2 1,058

21,613

21,676

21,645

20,377

)) )a')

20,813

20,783

2t439

252,403

267,752

289,282

289,554

287,26t

284,408

266,31t

247,168

229,476

757209

803,255

867,845

868,661

861,782

853,225

798,933

74t,504

688,429

33.3%

33.3%

33.3%

33.3%

33.3%

333Y.

33.3%

33.3%

33.3%

33.3Vo

6.817

6.r56

5.448

4.880

4.78s

3.99',7

3.808

3.806

3.735

3.923

Source: Office of the Kankakee County Clerk

Note: State law prescribes an assessment ratio of 33oh of actual value.

lcity direct rate is per $100 EAV
2Amounts expressed in thousands

differences in totals due to

-126-



Table B-2

CITY OF I(ANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
PROPERTY TAX RATES - PER $100 ASSESSED VALUATION, DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENT (Unaudited)

LEVY YEARS 2OO4 - 2OI3

LEVY YEAR
City Direct Rates

General Fund:
General Corporate

Fire Protection

Police Protection

Firemen's Pension

Police Pension

School Crossing Guard

Liability Insurance

Audit
Debt Service

Total General Fund

Special Revenue Funds
Parks

Band

IMRI
Library

Tolal Special Revenue Funds

Totsl City Direct Rate

Special District and
Oy€rlapping Unit Rates

Special Service Area No. I
Special Service Area No. 2

Special Service Area No. 3

Special Service Area No. 5

Kankakee Township (including

Road & Bridge)

School District No. I I I
Kankakee Valley Airport

Authorily
Kankakee Valley Park Disfiict
Kankakee County Forest

Preserve District
Kankakee County

$0.010 $0.009
0.107 0.098

0.082 0.076

0.523 0.482

0.460 0.461

0.013 0.012

0.455 0.421
0.016 0.015

1.421 1.377

s0.009 s0.008

0.092 0.087

0.071 0.067

0.510 0.511

0.461 0.484

0.011 0.010

0.378 0.371

0.014 0.013

1.509 1.465

$0.008 $0.008 $0.006
0.087 0.086 0. 163

0.067 0.067 0.173

0.s47 0.797 0.753

0.501 0.699 0.661

0.010 0.010 0.011

0.370 0.369 0.401

0.013 0.013 0.015

1.550 1.812 1.773

2011 2012 2013

$0.007 $0.008 $0.009

0.183 0.201 0.225

0.194 0.2t3 0.238

0.826 0.936 r.087

0.792 0.897 1.014

0.012 0.013 0.014

0.452 0.496 0.554

0.017 0.019 0.021

1.961 2.295 2.485

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

$3.087 $2.951 $3.055

$0.017 s0.016 $0.0t5
0.007 0.006 0.006

0.239 0.220 0.207

0.s73 0.542 0.523

$0.836 $0.784 $0.75 r

$3.923 $3.735 $3.806

s0.014 $0.014

0.006 0.006

0.203 0.280

0.62t 0.624

$3.016

$0.014

0.006

0.194

0.578

$0.792

$3.808

$3.t53 $3.861 $3.956 s4.444 $5.078 S5.646

$0.000 $0.000 $0.000 $0.000

0.006 0.007 0.007 0.008

0.295 0.323 0.355 0.382

0.623 0.614 0.716 0.781

$0.844 $0.924 s0.924 $1.004 $1.078 $1.t71

$3.997 $4.785 s4.880 s5.448 $6.156 $6.817

$2.000
0.047

r. t98

0.53 6

4.664

0.049

0.577

0.060

0.881

$1.986 $1.963
0.047 0.043

r.087 1.008

0.300

0.515 0.508

4.455 4.320

0.045 0.043

0.549 0.531

0.058 0.056

0.842 0.833

$2.000 $2.000

0.041 0.039

0.947 0.952

0.300 0.300

0.494 0.51I
4.196 4.294

0.039 0.039

0.511 0.518

0.054 0.056

0.833 0.816

$2.000 $2.000

0.040 0.040

0.083 0.083

0.300 0.300

0.515 0.533

4.3't9 4.325

0.038 0.038

0.519 0.526

0.057 0.059

0.807 0.833

$2.000 $2.000
0.049 0.057

0.100 0.100

0.t54 0.163

0.618 0.674

4.49t 5.377

$2.000

0.044
0.100

0. t45

0.569

4.695

0.040 0.041 0.044
0.568 0.618 0.464

0.060 0.600 0.060

0.890 0.9s3 1.022

Kankakee Community College

Dishict #520 0.304 0.320 0.348 0.381 0.377 0.384 0.396 0.404 0.417 0.451

Total OYerlapping Units $ 10.316 s9.904 $9.9s3 s9.796 $9.902 s9.062 $9.133 $9.515 $10.041 $10.41r

overallraxRate $14139 $.L1632 $13J59 $13-60l $131t99 $13-&tZ $14-013 $14-963 $t6-191 $11228

Note: Each taxing unit levies a total dollar amount. The mte is then determined by the Counf by dividing the lerry by the taxable equalized

assessed value ofthe property within each taxing unit's dishict.

Source: Tax bills for respective years

Note: There may be some slight differences due to rounding.
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Table B-3
CITY OF KANKAKEE

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS (Unaudited)
LE\rY YEARS 2004 AND 2013 (10 YEARS, PRrOR AND CURRENT LEVY YEAR)

Lew year 2004 Levy year 2013

Taxpayer

BASF Cognis Corporation

Great Oak LLC

Walmart

Armstrong World Industries, Inc.

Riverside Senior Living Center

Riverside Medical Center

Presence Properties (Med Centers)

IKO Midwest, Inc.

Riverwoods Association

Space Center Chicago, Inc.

Rohm & Haas (Cor Unum)

Riverstone Hotel Partners LLC

GNB Industrial Battery

Heritage Executive Center, Inc.

Total

Total EAV

Taxable
Assessed

Value

6,414,135

4,052,572

2,774,970

2,793,759

2,,742,962

2,558,509

2,556,4t7

1,960,004

1,938,391

1.840.155

$ 29.631.874

$ 229,476,246

Percentage

of Total City
Taxable

Assessed

Rank Value

2.80%

t.77%

t.21%

t.22%

t.20%

0.00%

Taxable

Assessed

Value

4,795,798

3,658,733

2,864,843

2,849,634

2,702,837

2,637,716

2,609,679

2,557,311

2,169,030

2,033,130

$ 28,878,711

$ 236.197.879

Percentage

of Total City
Taxable

Assessed

Rank Value

4

J

5

6

7

8

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

2.03%

1.55%

1.21%

1.21%

t.t4%

t.t2%

1.10Yo

1.08%

0.92%

0.86%

0.00%

0.00%

12.23%

9

l0

1.1lyo

1.t1%

0.85%

0.84%

0.80%

12.91%

Kankakee County Supervisor of Assessments
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Table B-4

CITY OF KAI\KAKEE, ILLINOIS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AIID COLLECTIONS (Unaudited)

LEVY YEARS 2OO4 - 2OT3

TaxLevy
Year

2013

2012
2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006
2005

2004

Taxes Levied
for the

Fiscal Year

15,107,818

14,542,067

13,699,916

13,293,730

72,300,272

10,438,232

10,015,994

9,432,477

8,702,452

8,488,900

14,338,748

13,878,l0l
13,273,991

12,328,309

10,325,580

9,822,065

9,239,993

8,714,051

8,397,370

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Lew

Percentage
Amount of Lew

98.6%

101.3%

99.9%

100.2%

98.9%

98.r%
9',1.9%

100.1%

98.9%

Property taxes levied during the current fiscal year are not extended and/or collected until
the subsequent fiscal year. Therefore, no property taxes are collected for the most recent

tax levy year at the close of the current fiscal year.

Property taxes not paid at the time of the payment deadline are sold by the County Treasurer at

auction. The proceeds from the sale of the unpaid taxes are remitted by the County to the City

by the end of each calendat year. Therefore, there are no tax collections for subsequent years.

The property owners then have two years to purchase the taxes back through the County

before title to the property passes to the holder ofthe paid taxes.

The County Clerk rounds the levy to assure the full lery is extended. Periodically, this results

in property tax collections slightly greater than 100% for a particular levy year.
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Table C-l
CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS

OUTSTANDING DEBT (PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST) BY TYPE AND LEGAL DEBT MARGIN (UNAUditEd)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30, 2005 to 2014

Govemmental Activities

Business-type

Activities

Fiscal General

Year Obligation

Ended Bonds (A)

zot4 s53,687,327

2013 60,842,327

2012 65,302.327

2011 69,687,327

20 t 0 68,912,327

2009 72,817,327

2008 55,097,327

2001 51,455,000

2006 50,620,000

2005 53,110,000

tLine ofcredit
2Installment loan

Installment

Loans (B)

$ 1,970,020

2,286,919

2,591,617

2,884,600

3,166,333

3,484,556

3,660,534

359,319

444,500

703,023

Revenue

Bonds (C)

$14,035,000

8,315,000

8,765,000

9,205,000

6,795,000

2,970,000

7,54s,000

8,075,000

8,585,000

9,075,000

Other

Loans (D)

$ 4,350,000

$ 4,000.000

Total

Primary

Govemment
(A+B+E)

g 69,692,347

75,794,246

80,658,944

81,'176,927

78,873,660

79,271,883

66,302,861

59,889,319

59,649,500

62,888,023

Total

Business-

' t"p" (C+D=E)

14,035,000

12,665,000

12,765,000

9,20s,000

6,79s,000

2,970,000

7,545,000

8,075,000

8,585,000

9,075,000

Total Total

Debt Debt

per as a%o of
Capita Personal lncome

2,531 7.2%

2,752 7.9%

2,929 8.7o/o

2,970 9.2o/o

2,869 8.90/"

2,884 8.8%

2,412 7.8%

2,179 7.4%

2,170 7.60/o

2,288 8.2Yo

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN -

The City ofKankakee, Illinois is a "Home Rule" unit as established by the 1970 Illinois

Constitution. As a Home Rule Community, no statutory debt limit exists.
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Table C-2

CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
RATIOS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT OUTSTAIIDING (Unaudited)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 to20l4

Fiscal

Year

Ended

2014

2013

2012

201t

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

GO Bonds

$ s3,687,327 $

60,842,327

6s,302,327

69,687,327

68,912,327

72,817,327

55,097,327

5 1,455,000

50,620,000

53,110,000

GO Debt
Per Capita

1,950

2,209

2,371

2,s31

2,507

2,649

2,004

1,872

1,841

t,932

GO Debt

as a o/o of
Personal Income

5.6%

6.30/o

7.t%

7.5%

7.8%

8.1%

6.4%

6.3%

65%

6.9%

GO Debt asaYoof Revenue

Actual Property Coverage,

EAV Value Utilitv Bonds

22.7% 7.6% 2.82

24.1% 8.0% 1.06

22.6% 7.5% 2.48

Z4.l% 8.0o/o 0.69

23.8% 7.9% 3.80

25.3% 8.4o/o 0'19

19.4% 6.5% 1.36

19.3% 6.4% l.3l

20.s% 6.8% 0.99

23.1% 7.7% 0.74

Population and personal income from Table D-l

Source of Revenue coverage calculation: City Records
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Table C-3

CITY OF KAI{KAKEE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT (Unaudited)

April 30,2014

Jurisdiction
Direct

City of Kankakee 
(1)

overlapping (2)

Kankakee School District No. 111

Herscher School District No. 2

Bradley School District No. 61

Bradley-Bourbonnais High School District No. 307

Clifton School District No. 4

Bourbonnais Park District

Kankakee Community College Dist. No. 520

Kankakee County3

Total Overlapping Debt

Total Net Direct and Overlapping Debt

2013 Equalized Assessed Valuation (EAV)

2013 Estimated Full Valuation

Population - 2010 Census

Full Valuation per Capita

Outstanding

Debt

$ 40.033.385

14,t77,034
8,460,000

3,09s,000

12,980,000

9,048,792

2,405,000

13,925,000

64.090.826

sr04.124-211

ao

EAV

76.95o/o

21.70%

Estimate

Applicable to City

Percent

100.00%

64.89%

0.72%

4.88%

1.48o/o

1.89%

1.66%

10.13%

12.s8%

% Full
Value

s.6s% s

7.23% $

Amount

$ 40.033.38s

9,r99,477

60,912

15 1 ,036

t92,104

171,022

39,923

1,410,603

_.--------------

11.225.077

$_-5Jfi3A62

$

$

236,197,879

708,593,637

27,537

25,732

Per

Capita

1,454

1,861

Debt Ratios

Net Direct Debt: $ 40,033,385

Net Direct and Overlapping Debt: $ 51,258,462

(l) Net direct debt is exclusive of self-supporting debt

(2) Debt Information current to April 2014; overlapping bonded debt as of September 2014; source is Kankakee County

(3) The County's bonded debt totals 521,320,000, all of which is self-supporting
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Table C-4

CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF UTILITY REYENUf, SUPPORTED BOND COVERAGE (UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 to 2Ol4

Fiscal

Year

2014

20t3

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

Sewer

Revenue

$ 11,502,262

9,293,626

9,426,813

8,626,955

7,872,9t9

7,692,,088

8,836,943

8,391,133

8,290,892

8,257,237

Sewer

Expense (l)

$ 8,s26,303

8,374,382

7,284,586

7,212,080

6,392,731

7,053,293

7,598,441

7,203,822

7,393,728

7,s88,837

Net Revenues

Available for
Debt Service

$ 2,97s,9s9

919,244

2,142,227

2,409,054

1,480,188

638,795

1,238,s02

1,187,3 1 1

897,164

668,400

Princioal

$ 46s,000

450,000

440,000

3,030,000

175,000

3,078,923

530,000

510,000

490,000

470,000

Interest

$ s89,788

420,195

424,515

438,202

214,788

356,250

377,936

398,626

417,930

435,823

870,195

864,5 l s

3,468,202

389,788

3,,435,173

90't,936

908,626

907,930

905,823

Total Coveraee (2)

$ 1,0s4,788 2.82

1.06

2.48

0.69

3.80

0.19

t.36

1.31

0.99

0.74

(1) Total operating expenses exclusive ofdepreciation.

(2) Net revenues available for debt service divided by debt service payments.
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Table D-l
CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS

DEMOGRAPHIC AIID ECONOMIC STATISTICS (Unaudited)
Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 to 2Ol4

Fiscal

Year

Ended

2014

2013

2012

20l l

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

Population 1

27,537

27,537

27,s37

27,s37

27,491

27,49t

27,491

27,49t

27,491

27,49r

Per Capita

Personal

Income 2

$ 34,997

34,997

33,603

32,443

32,205

32,650

31,079

29,625

28,442

27,821

Total
Personal

Income

$ 963,712,389

963,7t2,389

925,325,811

893,382,891

885,347,6ss

897,581,150

854,392,789

8t4,420,875

781,899,022

764,827,111

Unemployment

Rate

8.6%

77.30/o

14.5%

75.Oo/o

16.7%

15.5%

12.0%

8.8%

7.9%

9.1%

t C"n.u. Bureau, 2010

' Br."ur, of Economic Analysis for Kankakee/Bradley Metro Statistical Area
3 

June 2014, Itlinois Department of Employment Security
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Table D-2

CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
LARGEST REGIONAL EMPLOYERS (Unaudited)
Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 and April 30,2014

2005 2014

Employer

Riverside Healthcare

Shapiro Developmental Center

Presence St. Mary's Hospital

CIGNA (Connecticut General lnsurance)

CSL Behring

Kankakee School District No. 1 I I

Baker & Taylor Company

Kankakee County Government

Olivet Nazarene University

Kankakee Community College

Flanders-Precisionaire I

City of Kankakee

Illinois Veterans Homel

Van Drunen Farmsl

K-Mart D istribution Center

Total

Number of
Employees

2,000

1,300

800

I,111

900

800

800

550

400

396

352

oh of
Total County

Rank Population
Number of
Emolovees

2,254

1,400

1,199

900

804

760

600

536

531

385

370

351

335

302

300

o/o of
Total County

Rank Population

1

2

5

3

4

7

6

9

t2

l3

14

1t

1.9%

13%

0.8%

t.t%

0.9Yo

0.\Yo

0.8o/o

0.sYo

0.4%

0.4%

0.3o/o

0.40

9.4o/o

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

1l

12

13

14

15

2.0o/o

l.2o/o

l.lo/o

0.8o/o

0.7o/o

0.7o/o

0.5V"

0.5%

0.s%

0.3%

0.3%

0.3%

o.3%

0.3%

0.3%400

9,809 I1,033 9.7o/"

rEmployer was not in top 15 in calendar 2005

Source: Economic Alliance ofKankakee County
City of Kankakee records from fiscal 2005 audit
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Table E-l
CITY OF KANKAI(EE, ILLINOIS

FULL-TIME EQIIVALENT EMPLOYEES (Unaudited)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30, 2005 to 2014

2oo5 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

General Government
Mayor and Council

Affi rmative Action /PersonneI

Clerk

Finance/Central Services

Accounting
Billing and Collections

Legal
Counsel and Legal
Adjudication

Senior Aides

Public Safety
Police

Officers
Civilians

Fire
Firefighters and Officers
Civilians

Public Works
Administration
Garage

Streets, Alleys, and Solid Waste

Parks

Community Development Agency

Sewer Utility
Administration and clerical
Lab
Sewer services

Technical services

Building maintenance

Plant operations and maintenance

Total

Source: City records

16.0

1.5

3.5

16.0

1.5

3.5

16.0

1.5

3.5

73.0
15.0

16.0

1.5

3.0

16.0

1.5

3.0

16.0

1.5

2.5

r 6.0

1.5

3.0

16.0

1.5

3.5

16.0 17.0

1.5 1.5

2.5 2.5

69.0 70.0 69.0
7.0 7.5 9.0

4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

1.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0
l.s 1.5 1.5 1.5

4.0

1.0

2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

2.O 2.0 2.0 2.0

70.0

12.0

56.0 52.0

2.0 1.0
52.0 52.0 58.0

2.0 2.0 2.0

4.0

1.5

2.0 2.0

3.0 2.0
2.0 2.0

3.0 3.0

2.0

3.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.02.02.0

70.0

15.0

15.016.016.0Code
Planning

70.0

15.0

50.0

2.0

15.0

73.0
15.0

74.0
13.0

74.0

13.0

58.0

2.0

1s.0

51 .0
)n

16.0 9.0t2.o

53.0 5l.0
1.0 3.0

9.0 12.0

2.0

2.0
10.0

1.0

6.0

3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0

2.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

10.0 19.0 21.0 2r.0
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

6.0 6.0 6.0 9.0

3.0 3.0
4.0 4.0

21.0 22.0
1.0

9.0 9.0

3.0 3.0 3.0

3.0 3.0 3.0

25.0 29.0 24.0

9.0 7.0 5.5

7.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 1.0 5.0 5.0

6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.0 5.0 s.0 6.0 6.0 4.0

10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 7 .0 6.0

4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 11.0 ll.0 11.0 9.0 8.0 5.0

4.0 4.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

-----: ---: -----: ----: --: -----: -----: -: 
-----: -----:

231.0 237.s _41;_ _4]_1 262.0 .262e u!.o 232.s _?3!J. 2i!.0

differences in totals due to



Table E-2

CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
OPERATING INDICATORS (Unaudited)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 to April 30' 2014

Function/Prosram

Public Safety
Police

Total arrests

Traffic citations

Fire
Fire runs

Structure fires
EMS calls

2005

2,478 2,633 2,575
7,328 3,459 4,265

2,37E
94

3,371

2007 2008 2009 2010 20tl 2012 2013 20142006

3,750
6,983

2,366 2,225 2,038

5,279 3,540 5,260
2,038 2,230 7,494

5,260 3,330 4,217

5,377 s,372 4,299
88 57 168

3,658 3,685 3,941

2,479 2,643 2,564
123 124 tt4

3,394 3,445 3,7ss

932 1,079 1,079
629 922 922

8,337 8,302 8,162

38 33 36

$ 2,5s8 $ 2,52s S 2,s16

$3,979 $4,130 $4,714

2,328 2,509
173 123

3,768 3,782
t44

3,723

1,079

922

903
613

478
656

478

656

Public Works

Street Sweepings (tons)

Non-demolition waste (tons)

Wastewater

Number of customers

Residential and commercial 8,383

Indushial and institutional 38

Sewer charges (in thousands of$'s)

8,043 7,907 7,985 7,957

40 40 40 44

475 568

665 774

7,683 7,683
45 46

Residential
lndustrial

Treatrnent capacity (MGD)
Present Load (MGD)

Source: City records

$2,436
5 4,197

16

9

s2,737 $3,222 s 3,373 $ 3,718 $ 3,491 $ 4,065

$4,372 $4,729 Ss,076 S5,709 S5,35s $7,437

l5
8

t4
8

l4
I

t4
8

14

I
14

8

14

8

14 25

812
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Table E-3

CITY OF KANKAKEE, ILLINOIS
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS (Unaudited)

Fiscal Years Ended April 30,2005 to April 30,2014

Function/Prosram

Public Safety

Police
Stations

Patrol units

Fire
Stations
Front-line apparatus

Public works
Streets (miles)

Alleys (miles)
Bridges
Sidewalks (miles)
Streetlights

Traffi c sigrals (intersections)

Storm sewers (miles)

Wastewater

Sanitary sewers (miles)

Source: City records

2005 2006 2001 2008 2009 2010 20tt 2012 2014

270 270

113 113

t7 l7
)'r) 'r))
192 192

JJ JJ

t22 t22

2013

I
25

1

)\
1

24
1

24

6

6

249
113

17

219
135

9

t17

130

I
24

6
6

254
113

17

221

180

9

119

145

6
6

256
113

17

222
792

JJ

120

145

I
24

6
6

270
113

17

222
192

JJ

122

t45

7

7

270
113

t7
1))
t92
JJ

t22

t45

1

7

270
113

t7
222
192

33
t22

145

7

7

270

113

t7
222

192

33

122

145

7

270
ll3
t7

222

192

33

122

145

I
25

1

25

1

22

I
25

t45145
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GROSKREUTZ
SCHMIDT
ABRAHAM
ESHLEMAN

& GERRETSE

PARTNERS

Larry D. Groskreuta C.P.A,

M.J. Abraham, C.PA.

Amy Eshleman, C.PA.

Dale L. Gerretse, C.P.A.

ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS MEMBERS OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AI]DITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON A}I AUDIT OF
FINANCTAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH
G O VE RNME NT AU D I TING S TANDA R,D S

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Kankakee, Illinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits containe d in Government Auditing Standards

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental

activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major

fund, and the ag$egate rernaining fund information of the City of Kankakee, Illinois (the Clty), as of and

for the year ended epril 30,2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively

comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22,2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control

ouir financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances foi the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal control. Accordingly, we do

not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internat control.

A deJiciency in internal control exists when the desigr or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

deteciand coffect, misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealcness is a deficiency, or a combination

of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement

of the entity's financial statements witl not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis' A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less

sweie than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with

governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

section and was not designed to identifi all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material

weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identiff any

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified.

214 South Center Street

Forrest, lllinois 61 741

Phone: (815) 657-8433

1949West Court Street

Kankakee, lllinois 60901

Phoner (815) 933-7781

801 laurel 0ak Drive, Suite 103

Naples, tlorida 34108

Phone:(239)593-8152 - 139 -

216 Hack Street
(ullom,lllinoh 60929

Phone: (815) 689-2174

www.cpa-kankakee.com



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

conhacts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the

determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion' The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be

reported urder Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance

and iheiesults ofthat testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity's internal

control or on compliance. ihis report ii an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in ionsidering the entity's intemal control and compliance' Accordingly,

this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

qr**V,f.i^d+, \hravwn-, vew^- f qatr*-

Kankakee, Illinois
October 22,2014
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SCHMIDT
ABRAHAM
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Larry D. Groskreutz, C.P.A.

M.J. Abraham, C.P.A.

Amy Eshleman, C.P.A.

Dale L. Gerretse, C.P.A.

ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

1949West Court Street

Kankakee, lllinois 6090'l

Phone: (815) 933-7781

MEMBERS OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AI]DITORS' REPORT ON COMPLTANCE
FOR EACTI MAJOR PROGRAM AI{D ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR 4-133

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Kankakee, Illinois

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Kankakee, Illinois' (the City's) compliance with the types of compliance

requirements described ir.the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and

material effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended April 30,2014. The City's

major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying

schedule offindings and questioned costs.

M an ag eme nt's Re sp o ns i b ility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of [aws, regulations, contracts, and

grants applicable to its federal programs.

A udit o r's Respo ns ib ility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs

based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the

standards applicable to financial audits contain ed in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroltei General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local

Govirnments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that coutd have a direct and material effect on a major federal

p.ogiu. occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance

with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federul Program

ln our opinion, the City, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred io above that could ha-ve a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the

year ended April 30, 2014.

801 Laurel Oak Dilve,Suite 103

Naples, Florida 34108
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

comp[ance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our

audii of compliance, we considired the City's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements ihat could have a direct and material effect on each major federal-program to determine the

nuditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an op_inion on

compliince for each major fedirai program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in

u..oidun " with OMB Circutar A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness ofthe City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control oter compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over

compliance'does not allow management oi employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned

funciions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A matelial wealvtess in internal control over compliance ls a

deficiency, 
-or 

combination of d"fi.i.n.ies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a

reasonabie possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deJiciency in

intinal control over-compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over

compliance with a type oi compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material

weakness in internal control over comptiance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identiff all deficiencies_ in intemal control over

lo.iti*"" that might be material weaknesies or significant deficiencies. We did not identifu any

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified'

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely 1o describe the scope of our

testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of tlrat testing based on the requirements of
oMB Circular 4-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

4t*tUV,{cru^ra{, {braltan-, 6rllgi^- * W&u

Kankakee, Illinois
October 22,2014
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CITY OF KAI\KAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DPEI\DITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the year ended April 30,2014

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

Federal

CFDA
Number

Pass-Through

Grantods

Number Expenditures

MAJORPROGRAMS

Department of Housinq and Urban Development

Community Development Block Grant:
Program year 2012
Program year 2013

Program year 20 14

Passed-through Illinois Housing Development
Authority:

Homebuyer Acquisition and Rehabilitation Program
Homebuyer Acquisition and Rehabilitation Program

Single Family Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Program

Total Major Programs

OTHERPROGRAMS

Deoartment of Transportation

Passed-through Illinois Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction

Highway Safety Project

Highway Safety Prcject

Highway Safety Project

Total Departrnent of Transportation

Departrnent of Housine and Urban Development

Lead-Based Paint Abatement

Economic Development tnitiative

Total Departrnent of Housing and

Urban Development

14.900 ILLHB 0526-12 723,526

14.251 B-09-SP-IL-0137 81,282

14.218 B-12-MC-17-0026
14.218 B-13-MC-17-0026
14.218 B-14-MC-17-0026

14.239 SHB-50436
14.239 SH8-50653
14.239 HO-50229

20.205 P-93-035-10
20.205 C-93-121-12

20.616 AL-13-0480

20.602 MM-13-393

20.600 AP-14-0092

$ 30,958

478,467

15,369

524,794

6,018
37,299

105,380

148,697

673,491

988

39,200
40,188

7,197

3,603

9,919

60,907

804,808

(Continued)
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CITY OF KAI\KAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

(Continued)
For the year ended April 30,2014

Federal Grantor/Pass-Th rou gh

Grantor/Program Title

Federal

CFDA
Number

Pass-Through

Grantor's

Number Expenditures

Deoartrnent of Justice

Passed-through Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority:
Law Enforcement/Prosecutor-Based Victim Assistance Services

Law Enforcement/Prosecutor-Based Victim Assistance Services

JAG Program Cluster:

FY2007 Justice Assistance Grant Proglam
FY2010 Justice Assistance Grant Program
FY20l2 Justice Assistance Grant Program

Passed-through Illinois Criminal Justice Inforrnation Authority:
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance (2009) - ARRA

Total JAG Program Cluster

Total Department of Justice

Total Other Programs

Total Federal Awards

16.575 212044
16.575 213044

16.738 2007-DJ-BX-0341
16.738 201o-DJ-BX-1386
t6.738 20I2-DJ-BX-0210

16.738 411005

16.738 410005

t6.803 809023

$ 9,515

20,776

30,29t

1,087

16,454
18,577

62,978
74,627

173,723

4t,744

215,467

245,758

I,ttr,473

$ 1,784,964

-144-



CITY OF KATTKAKEE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO SCIIEDULE OF EXPENDITT]RES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended April 30,2014

SIGNIFICANT ACCOT]NTING POLICIES:

The City's accounting records are maintained in accordance with the accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America established by the Govemmental Accounting

Standards Board.

The significant accounting policies followed by the City are as follows:

Reporting Entitv

The fina:rcial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its
component units, which are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the

primary government are financially accountable.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant

activity of the City and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information

in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits

of States, Local Goyernments, and non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented

in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic

financial statements.

Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they are

both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For

this purpose, the City considers grant revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days

of the end of the cunent fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is

incurred, as under accrual basis ofaccounting.

Grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expendifures made under the

provisions ofthe grant. Accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred

revenues until eamed.

Subrecipients

The City did not have any subrecipients.

Other information

The City did not receive any federal insurance or non-cash assistance.
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CITY OF KAIIKAI(EE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF FII\DTNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS

For the year ended April 30,2014

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS RESULTS:

Financial Statements

Tlpe of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Signifi cant defi ciency(ies) identified that are

not considered to be material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements

noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditors report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit finding disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with $5 lO(a)
of OMB Circular A-133?

Identification of maj or programs:

CFDA Number(s)

14.2t8
14.239

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

yes Xno

yes X none reported

Unqualified

Xno

Name of Federal
Program or Cluster

Community Development Block Grant
Home Investment Partnership Program

$ 300.000

X yes

Unqualified

yes

Xno

X none reported

Xno

yes

yes

yes

(Continued)
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CITY OF KAIIKAKEE, ILLINOIS
SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS AI\D QUESTIONED COSTS

(Continued)
For the year ended April 30,2014

SECTION IT _ FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS:

No findings are reported.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AI\D QUESTIONED COSTS:

No findings are reported.

SECTION TV_ SUMMARY SCHEDULE OFPRIORAUDIT FIIT{DINGS:

No findings were reported.
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